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Dear stockholders, customers, suppliers and employees:

Fiscal 2005 has been a year of investing in Adaptec’s future. We successfully broadened our range of
storage products and technologies while maintaining strong financial reserves. Yet, the year also proved to
be challenging as we tried to balance our growing commitments to our OEM partners with those to our
channel business. These challenges have helped us to sharpen our operating focus and to establish a leaner
cost structure. With the new Adaptec management team now in place, we feel that we are positioned to
make additional operational and business changes that will help us emerge a far stronger and more
competitive company.

Key Progress in the Fiscal 2005

Despite the challenges, during Fiscal 2005 we made progress on a number of fronts.

Product Leadership

Adaptec is continuing to build on its RAID market leadership. In June 2004, we acquired certain
RAID data-protection intellectual property, products and expertise from IBM in an effort to continue to
expand and enhance Adaptec RAID product offerings. This investment provides a broader market scope
and larger customer opportunity in the enterprise market space for Adaptec. Adaptec’s RAID software is
thoroughly tested and proven in millions of business-critical installations around the world. As such, our
hardened RAID code ships inside 50% of all RAID servers. It is also sold as RAID on Motherboard
(ROMB), with controller boards and as a software add-on through our channel and to OEM customers.
This gives customers a more flexible way to increase data protection when their business needs change. As
a result, Adaptec is able to target a larger installed base of data protection customers, over traditional
after-market RAID board vendors, which we can leverage to up sell additional software and solutions.

We also expanded our channel product offerings by acquiring the privately held Snap Appliance, Inc.,
a leading volume supplier of network attached storage (NAS) solutions. This acquisition expanded our
reach beyond direct attached storage (DAS) and storage area network (SAN) solutions while further
expanding our software platform base.

Unique Product Capabilities

We continue to broaden our range of storage products and technologies which helped us to win more
than 20 industry awards during Fiscal 2005. In August 2004, Adaptec introduced the Snap Server 18000, a
high-performance midrange storage solution that provides support for both block and file data types. The
Snap Server 18000 is Adaptec’s fastest Snap Server, offering scalability from 2TB up to 31.2 TB at a very
cost-effective price point—less than $5.00/GB.

We also added software products on several fronts including Snap Enterprise Data Replicator (EDR),
which is an enterprise-class software application sold through the channel for our Snap Server line of
storage systems. Snap EDR allows customers to implement enterprise-wide backup, data replication,
disaster-recovery and compliance operations across distributed locations and remote sites.

Enhanced OEM Relationship with IBM

Adaptec gained traction with its Flexible Storage Architecture in Fiscal 2005 with the introduction of
two new storage systems from IBM. IBM’s Total Storage DS300 and DS400, which were built on Adaptec
hardware and software technology, feature single and dual controllers, Fibre Channel and iSCSI
capabilities, and leverage the same platform with common components and management software. The
DS300 and DS400 are offered at an aggressive price point that redefines affordable storage for the small/
medium enterprise.

6

@
trl
©
=
§3
&
&
i)
[¢]




In March 2005, IBM became the first major vendor to ship a Serial Attached SCSI (SAS)-enabled
server with its new x366 xSeries server. The x366 xSeries server incorporates Adaptec’s SAS Protocol
Controller ASIC and SAS Zero-Channel RAID controller with RAID 6 software. This is significant in that
IBM is the industry’s first major vendor to ship a SAS-ready server with Adaptec technology enabling the
transition from parallel to serial technology.

IBM further -exterided its storage relationship with Adaptec by adding Adaptec-branded controller
technology designed for IBM’s iSeries and pSeries eServers. Now IBM eServer customers are able to select
Adaptec controller products directly from the IBM Product Configurator to protect their storage in
mission-critical applications. This gives Adaptec the ability to.create relationships with customers who
haven’t been exposed to us in the past, penetrating new ‘up-market’ opportunities with IBM’s enterprise
customer base. : »

Initiatives to Reduce Operating Expenses and Improve Profitability

In the past fiscal year we executed and initiated a number of programs to reduce our expenses and
improve profitability. We have summarized key details from a few of these accomplishments below:

Adaptec is continually driving to create more efficient operations and optimize our supply chain. To
this end, during Fiscal 2005 we launched initiatives to improve our operating processes and controls,
restructure demand fulfillment and implement a configure-to-order manufacturing model. Supply chain
touches all aspects of the business and we are now on the path to reduce forecast volatility and decrease
manufacturlng costs, all of which we hope will continue to improve our operating margins.

In Fiscal 2005 we developed strategic alliances to speed time-to-market of next generation Adaptec
technology. We entered into agreements with Vitesse Semiconductor Corporation and ServerEngines LLC
that allowed the two companies to license certain technology, acquire certain assets and employ certain
‘Adaptec engineers in order to jointly desrgn and develop advanced ASICs. By partnering on ASIC
development, Adaptec is able to reduce operating expenses and focus on the delivery of board-, system-
and software level products based on these ASICs with a faster time-to-market.

f

In conclusmn Adaptec will continue to focus on improving our financial performance. We wrll work to
drive further simplification of our product lines and establish clear differentiation for our solutions. A new
emphasrs will be placed on improving our execution in key areas such as product development and delivery
as well as channel development and marketing effectiveness. We will also be working toward establishing
accountability throughout the organization to help drive Adaptec’s success. We are confident that these are
the right steps to build Adaptec’s prosperity. We thank our stockholders, customers, suppliers and
employees for your contrnued support

Smcerely,

D. Scott Mercer - ‘ | _ S. “Sundi’ Sundaresh
Interim Chief Executive Officer ) " President




Notice of 2005 Annual Meeting
and Proxy Statement




adaplec

July 15, 2005
To our stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”)
to be held at our principal executive offices located at 691 South Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas, California
95035 on Thursday, August 25, 2005 at 10:00 a.m., local time,

The matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting are described in detail in the accompanying
Notice of 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement.

If you received your annual meeting materials by mail, the Notice of 2005 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, Annual Report, Proxy Statement and proxy card are enclosed. If you received your annual
meeting materials by e-mail, the e-mail contains voting instructions and links to the annual meeting
materials on the Internet.

Please use this opportunity to contribute to our company by voting on the matters to come before this
Annual Meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, you can cast your vote online
(beneficial holders only), even if you did not receive your annual meeting materials electronically. To vote
online, follow the instructions for online voting contained within your annual meeting materials. In
addition, you may vote by telephone by following the instructions for telephone voting contained within
your annual meeting materials. If you received your annual meeting materials by mail and do not wish to
vote online or by telephone, or you are a registered stockholder (see definition in the accompanying Proxy
Statement), please complete, date, sign and promptly return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed
postage-paid envelope before the Annual Meeting so that your shares will be represented at the Annual
Meeting. Voting online, by telephone or by returning the proxy card does not deprive you of your right to
attend the Annual Meeting and to vote your shares in person.

We encourage you to conserve natural resources, as well as significantly reduce printing and mailing
costs, by signing up for electronic delivery of Adaptec stockholder communications. For more information,
see the “Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications” section of the enclosed Proxy Statement,

We hope to see you at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,
, W)%am

D. Scott Mercer
Interim Chief Executive Officer




Adaptec, Inc.
691 South Milpitas Boulevard
Milpitas, California 95035

NOTICE OF 2005 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To our stockholders:

Our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (“Annual Meeting”) will be held at our principal executive
offices located at 691 South Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas, California 95035 on Thursday, August 25, 2005
at 10:00 a.m., local time.

At the Annual Meeting, you will be asked to consider and vote upon the following matters:

1. The election of seven directors to our Board of Directors, each to serve until our 2006 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and until his or her successor has been elected and qualified or until his or her
earlier resignation, death or removal. Our Board of Directors intends to present the following nominees
for election as directors:

Carl J. Conti Joseph S. Kennedy Robert J. Loarie Douglas E. Van Houweling
Lucie J. Fjeldstad Ilene H. Lang D. Scott Mercer

2. The approval of a stock option exchange program for employees (excluding Section 16 officers
and directors) providing for the exchange of stock options previously granted under our stock plans having
an exercise price of $7.00 or greater per share for a lesser number of stock options to be granted following
the expiration of a tender offer to be made to such employees.

3. The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006.

4. The transaction of any other business that may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any
adjournment or postponement of the Annual Meeting.

These items of business are more fully described in the attached Proxy Statement. Only stockholders
of record at the close of business on June 27, 2005 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual
Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Annual Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Eonns, At

Dennis R. DeBroeck
Secretary

Milpitas, California
July 15, 2005

Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person, please either cast your vote online, by
telephone, or by completing, dating, signing and promptly returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed
postage-paid envelope before the Annual Meeting so that your shares will be represented at the Annual
Meeting.




Adaptec, Inc.
691 South Milpitas Boulevard
Milpitas, California 95035

PROXY STATEMENT
July 15, 2005

The accompanying proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Adaptec, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), for use at the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (“Annual Meeting”) to
be held at our principal executive offices located at 691 South Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas, California
95035 on Thursday, August 25, 2005 at 10:00 a.m., local time. This Proxy Statement and the accompanying
form of proxy card were first mailed to stockholders on or about July 15, 2005. Our Annual Report for the
2005 fiscal year is enclosed with this Proxy Statement.

Record Date; Quorum

Only holders of record of common stock at the close of business on June 27, 2005 will be entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting. At the close of business on the record date, we had 112,491,135 shares of
common stock outstanding and entitied to vote. A majority of the shares outstanding on the record date,
present in person or represented by proxy, will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the
Annual Meeting.

Effect of Abstentions and “Broker Non-Votes”

If a stockholder indicates on his or her proxy card that the stockholder wishes to abstain from voting,
including a broker holding its customers’ shares of record who cause abstentions to be recorded, these
shares are considered present and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. These shares will count toward
determining whether or not a quorum is present. However, these shares will not be taken into account in
determining the outcome of any of the proposals.

If a stockholder does not give a proxy to his or her broker with instructions as to how to vote the
shares, the broker has authority under New York Stock Exchange rules to vote those shares for or against
“routine” matters, such as the election of directors to our Board of Directors and the ratification of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm. Brokers cannot vote
on their customers’ behalf on “non-routine” proposals such as the approval of the stock option exchange
program for employees (excluding Section 16 officers and directors) providing for the exchange of stock
options previously granted under our stock plans having an exercise price of $7.00 or greater per share for
a lesser number of stock options to be granted following the expiration of a tender offer to be made to such
employees (the “Option Exchange Program”). These rules apply to us notwithstanding the fact that shares
of our common stock are traded on The Nasdaq National Market. If a broker votes shares that are unvoted
by its customers for or against a “‘routine” proposal, these shares are counted for the purpose of
establishing a quorum and also will be counted for the purpose of determining the outcome of such
“routine” proposals. If a broker chooses to leave these shares unvoted, even on “routine” matters, the
shares will be counted for the purpose of establishing a quorum, but not for determining the outcome of
any of the proposals. ‘

Voting Rights; Required Vote

Because brokers cannot vote “unvoted” shares on behalf of their customers for “non-routine” matters
such as approval of our Option Exchange Program, it is very important that stockholders vote their shares.
If you do not vote your shares, you will not have a say in the important issues to be considered at the
Annual Meeting.




Stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held as of the record date.
Directors will be elected by a plurality of the shares of common stock present in person or represented by
proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Stockholders do not have the
right to cumulate their votes in the election of directors. Approval of each of Proposal No. 2 approving our
Option Exchange Program and Proposal No. 3 ratifying the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006 requires the
affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented and voting at the Annual Meeting, either in person
or by proxy, provided that the affirmative votes must be not less than a majority of the required quorum for
the Annual Meeting. The inspector of elections appointed for the Annual Meeting will separately tabulate
the relevant affirmative and negatlve votes, abstentions and broker non-votes for each proposal.

Voting of Proxies

Most stockholders have three options for submitting their votes, by: (a) Internet, (b) telephone or
(c) mail. If you have Internet access, you may submit your proxy from any location in the world by
following the “Vote by Internet” instructions on the proxy card. If you live in the United States or Canada,
you may submit your proxy by following the “Vote by Telephone” instructions on the proxy card. If you'
complete and properly sign the proxy card you receive and return it in the prepaid envelope to us, it will be
voted in accordance with the specifications made on the proxy card. If no specification is made on a signed
and returned proxy card, the shares represented by the proxy will be voted “for” the election to the Board
of Directors of each of the nominees named on the proxy card, “for” approval of the Option Exchange
Program, “for” ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006 and “for” any other matter that '
may be properly brought before the Annual Meeting. We encourage stockholders with Internet access to”
record your vote on the Internet or, alternatively, to vote by telephone. Internet and telephone voting is
convenient, saves on postage and mailing costs and is recorded immediately, minimizing risk that postal:
delays may cause your vote to arrive late and therefore not be counted. If you attend the Annual Meeting,
you also may vote in person, and any previously submitted votes will be superseded by the vote you cast at:
the Annual Meeting,

Adjournment of Annual Meeting

If a quorum is not present to transact business at the Annual Meeting or if we do not receive sufficient-
votes in favor of the proposals by the date of the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies may’
propose one Or more adjournments of the Annual Meeting to permit solicitation of proxies. Any
adjournment would require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or;
represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting.

Expenses of: Sohcltmg Proxies

We will pay the expenses of soliciting proxies for the Annual Meeting. After the original mallmg of the
proxy cards and other soliciting materials, we and/or our agents also may solicit proxies by mail, telephone,’
facsimile, email or in person. After the original mallmg of the proxy cards and other soliciting materials, we'
will request that brokers, custodians, nomineés and other record holders of our common stock forward:
copies of the proxy cards and other soliciting materials to persons for whom they hold shares and request.
authority for the exercise of proxies. We will reimburse the record holders for their reasonable expenses if’
they ask us to do so. We have engaged The Proxy Advisory Group of Strategic Stock Surveillance, LLC to
assist in the solicitation of proxies and provide related advice and information support at an estimated cost
of $8,500, plus expenses and disbursements.




Revocability of Proxies

Any person signing a proxy card in the form accompanying this Proxy Statement has the power to
revoke it at any time before it is voted. A proxy may be revoked by signing and returning a proxy card with
a later date, by delivering a written notice of revocation to Registrar and Transfer Company, 10 Commerce
Drive, Cranford, New Jersey 07016, that the proxy is revoked or by attending the Annual Meeting and
voting in person. The mere presence at the Annual Meeting of a stockholder who has previously appointed
a proxy will not revoke the appointment. Please note, however, that if a stockholder’s shares are held of
record by a broker, bank or other nominee and that stockholder wishes to vote at the Annual Meeting, the
stockholder must bring to the Annual Meeting a letter from the broker, bank or other nominee confirming
the stockholder’s beneficial ownership of the shares and that the broker, bank or other nominee is not
voting the shares at the Annual Meeting. In the event of multiple online or telephone votes by a
stockholder, each vote will supersede the previous vote and the last vote cast will be deemed to be the final
vote of the stockholder unless such vote is revoked in person at the Annual Meeting according to the
revocability instructions outlined above.

Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications

If you received your annual meeting materials by mail, we encourage you to help us conserve natural
resources, as well as significantly reduce printing and mailing costs, by signing up to receive your
stockholder communications electronically via e-mail. With electronic delivery, you will be notified via
e-mail as soon as the Annual Report and Proxy Statement are available on the Internet, and you can easily
submit your stockholder votes online. Electronic delivery also can eliminate duplicate mailings and reduce
the amount of bulky paper documents you maintain in your personal files. To sign up for electronic
delivery: ‘

Registered Owner (you hold your Adaptec shares in your own name through our transfer agent,
Registrar and Transfer Company, or you are in possession of stock certificates): follow the instructions
on the proxy card enclosed with your annual meeting materials to enroll.

Beneficial Owner (your shares are held by a brokerage firm, a bank or a trustee): visit
www.icsdelivery.com to enroll. -

Your electronic delivery enrollment will be effective until you cancel it. If you have questions about
electronic delivery, please call our Stock Administration Department at (408) 957-5624.




PROPOSAL NO. 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors currently consists of seven directors. Robert N. Stephens, our former
President, Chief Executive Officer and one of our directors retired as an officer and director effective
May 25, 2005. It is intended that the proxies will be voted for the seven nominees named below for election:
to our Board of Directors unless authority to vote for any such nominee is withheld. All of the nominees.
are presently directors of the Company.

Proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees named. If any
nominee for any reason is unable to serve or for good cause will not serve, the proxies may be voted for
such substitute nominee as the proxy holder may determine. We are not aware of any nominee who will be
unable to or for good cause will not serve as a director. The term of office of each person elected as a
director will continue until the next annual meetlng of our stockholders or until his or her successor has
been elected and quahfled

Directors/Nominees

The names of the nominees, their ages as of the date of this Proxy Statement and certain information
about them are set forth below:

Director
Name of Director ‘ A__g_e Principal Occupatron Since
Carl J.Conti ........... 67 Independent management consultant 1995
Lucie J. Fjeldstad .. ... ... 61 . Retired . 2001
Joseph S. Kennedy .. ... .. 58 President and Chief Executive Officer of Omneon, Inc. 2001
Ilene H. Lang........... 60 President of Catalyst, Inc. 1997
Robert J. Loarie . . ....... 62  Advisory Director of Morgan Stanley & Co. 1981
D. Scott Mercer .. ... .... .54 Interim Chief Executive Officer of Adaptec, Inc. 2003

Douglas E. Van Houweling . 61  President and Chief Executive Officer of the University 2002
‘ Corporation for Advanced Internet Development

Mr. Cnnti has been an independent management consultant since 1991. From 1959 to 1991, Mr, Conti
held a variety of technical and managerial positions with International Business Machines Corporation, a
_manufacturer of computer hardware and software, mcludmg as a Senior Vice President from 1987 to 1991.

Ms. Fjeldstad has been retired since December 2001. From September 1999 to December 2001,
Ms. Fjeldstad served as Chief Executive Officer of DataChannel, Inc., a software development company:
She also served as President of DataChannel, Inc. from October 1998 to December 2001.

Mr. Kennedy has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Cmneon, Inc., a developer of
video media servers for the broadcast industry, since June 2003. From June 1999 until March 2002, he
served as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Pluris Inc., a developer of
Internet routers. Mr. Kennedy was the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Rapid City
* Communications from February 1996 until that company was acquired by Bay Networks in June 1997, after
which time he served as President and General Manager of Bay Networks’ switching products division until
June 1998.

Ms, Lang has served as President of Catalyst, Inc., a non-profit research and advisory organization for
women in business, since September 2003. From June 2000 to August 2003, Ms. Lang worked as a
corporate advisor. From May 1999 to May 2000, Ms. Lang served as President and Chief Executive Officer
of Individual.com, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Office.com, a provider of news to corporations, which
was sold to Winstar Inc. in February 2000. Ms. Lang is also a director of Art Technology Group, Inc. and a
director of a privately held company.




Mr. Loarie has served as an Advisory Director of Morgan Stanley & Co., a diversified investment firm,
since April 2003, as a Managing Director from December 1997 until March 2003, and as a Principal of that
firm from August 1992 until November 1997. Mr. Loarie also has served as a general partner or managing
member of several venture capital investment partnerships or limited liability companies affiliated with
Morgan Stanley since August 1992. Mr. Loarie is also a director of a privately held company.

Mr. Mercer was appointed to serve as our Interim Chief Executive Officer on May 25, 2005. Mr. Mercer
had been a private investor since December 2004. Mr. Mercer served as a Senior Vice President and
Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of Western Digital Corporation, a supplier of disk drives to the
personal computer and consumer electronics industries, from February 2004 through December 2004.
Prior to that, Mr. Mercer was a Senior Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of Western Digital
Corporation from October 2001 through January 2004. From June 2000 to September 2001, Mr. Mercer
served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Teralogic, Inc., a supplier of semiconductors and
software to the digital television industry. From June 1996 through May 2000, Mr. Mercer held various
senior operating and financial positions with Dell, Inc., a provider of products and services required for
customers to build their information-technology and Internet infrastructures. Mr. Mercer is also a director
of Conexant Systems, Inc., NetRatings, Inc., palmOne, Inc. and a privately-held company.

Dr. Van Houweling has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the University
Corporation for Advanced Internet Development (UCAID), the formal organization supporting Internet2,
since October 1997. Dr. Van Houweling also serves as a professor in the School of Information at the
University of Michigan. Before undertaking his responsibilities at UCAID, Dr. Van Houweling was Dean
for Academic Outreach and Vice Provost for Information and Technology at the University of Michigan.

Composition of Board of Directors

Following the retirement of Mr. Stephens, the Board of Directors amended our Bylaws to reduce its
size to seven directors to eliminate the vacancy created by the retirement of Mr. Stephens. All of our
current directors will stand for re-election at the Annual Meeting, as described in this Proxy Statement.

Board of Directors Meetings and Committees

During the 2005 fiscal year, the Board of Directors met 15 times, including telephone conference
meetings, and acted by unanimous written consent three times. No director attended fewer than 75% of
the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and the total number of meetings held by all
committees of the Board of Directors on which the director served during the 2005 fiscal year, except that
Mr. Kennedy attended 11 of the 15 meetings held by the Board of Directors, four of the six meetings held
by the Audit Committee during the time he served as a member of the Audit Committee and the one
meeting held by the Governance and Nominating Committee during the time he served as a member of
the Governance and Nominating Committee. Three of the four meetings of the Board of Directors that
Mr. Kennedy was unable to attend were unscheduled special meetings called by our Board of Directors on
relatively short notice. Mr. Kennedy was subsequently briefed on the matters discussed at each of the
meetings he was unable to attend.

Standing committees of the Board of Directors include the Audit Committee, Compensation
Committee and Governance and Nominating Committee. All committees operate under written charters
approved by the Board of Directors, which are available on our website at www.adaptec.com. Each of these
charters also is available in print to any stockholder upon request.

We strongly encourage directors to attend our annual meetings of stockholders. The Board of
Directors endeavors to hold its meetings on the same day as the annual meetings of stockholders to
encourage director attendance. Each of our directors attended the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.




Audit Committee. The current members of the Audit Committee are Joseph S. Kennedy, Ilene H.
Lang and Robert J. Loarie. Messrs. Kennedy and Loarie and Ms. Lang are each independent directors as
defined by the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Mr. Kennedy joined the Audit Committee in
October 2004, at which time Mr. Loarie ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee and was elected to
the Compensation Committee. Mr. Loarie rejoined the Audit Committee in May 2005 in connection with
Mr. Mercer’s resignation from the Audit Committee to become our Interim Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Mercer had served as our “audit committee financial expert,” as defined by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, until his resignation from the Audit Committee in May 2005. Given the recent
change in the composition of our Audit Committee, our Board of Directors has not had an opportunity to
determine if any of the current members of the Audit Committee qualify as an “audit committee financial’
expert.” If our Board of Directors determines that we do not have an “audit committee financial expert,”
we will add a new director to our Board of Directors and the Audit Committee who would qualify as an
“audit committee financial expert.” The Audit Committee met 11 times during the 2005 fiscal year,
including telephone conference meetings. The Audit Committee assists the full Board of Directors in its
general oversight of our financial reporting, internal controls and audit functions, and is directly
responsible for the appointment, compensatlon and oversight of the work of our independent registered
public accounting firm.

'

Compensation Committee. The current members of the Compensation Committee are Lucie J.
Fjeldstad and Robert J. Loarie. The Compensation Committee met six times and acted by unanimous
written consent seven times during the 2005 fiscal year. The Compensation Committee establishes our:
executive compensation policy, determines the salary and bonuses of our executive officers and
recommends to the Board of Directors stock option grants for our executive officers.

Governance and Nominating Committee. The current members of the Governance and Nominating
Committee are Lucie J. Fjeldstad and Douglas Van Houweling. Dr. Van Houweling and Ms. Fjeldstad are
each independent directors as defined by the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Governance and
Nominating Committee is responsible for reviewing the qualifications of potential candidates for
membership on our Board of Directors and recommending such candidates to the full Board of Directors.
In addition, the Governance and Nominating Committee makes recommendations regarding the structure
and composition of our Board of Directors and advises and makes recommendations to the full Board of
Directors on matters concerning corporate governance The Governance and Nominating Committee met
two times durmg the 2005 fiscal year.

Consideration of Dlrector Nominees

Director Qualifications. The goal of the Governance and Nominating Committee is to ensure that
our Board of Directors possesses a variety of perspectives and skills derived from high-quality business and
professional experience. The Governance and Nominating Committee seeks to achieve a balance of
knowledge, experience and capablllty on our Board of Directors. To this end, the Governance and
Nommatmg Committee seeks nominees with h1gh professional and personal ethics and values, an
understanding of our business lines and industry, diversity of business experience and expertise, broad-
based business acumen and the ability to think strategically. In addition, the Governance and Nominating
Committee considers the level of the candidate’s commitment to active participation as a director, both at
board and committee meetings and otherwise. Although the Governance and Nominating Committee uses
these and other criteria to evaluate potential nominees, we have no stated minimum criteria for nominees.
When appropriate, the Governance and Nominating Committee may retain executive recruitment firms to
assist in identifying suitable candidates. After its evaluation of potential nominees, the Governance and
Nominating Committee submits its chosen nominees to the Board of Directors for approval. The
Governance and Nominating Committee does not use different standards to evaluate nominees depending
on whether they are proposed by our directors and management or by our stockholders.




Stockholder Nominees. The Governance and Nominating Committee will consider stockholder
recommendations for director candidates. If a stockholder would like to recommend a director candidate
for the next annual meeting of stockholders, the stockholder must deliver the recommendation to our
Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices no later than 45 days prior to the anniversary date of
the mailing of our Proxy Statement in connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders
(the deadline for nominations for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is June 1, 2006); provided,
however, if the next annual meeting of stockholders occurs on a date more than 30 days earlier or later
than the anniversary of the prior year’s annual meeting of stockholders, then the Board of Directors will
determine a date by which stockholders must submit director recommendations, which date will be a
reasonable period prior to the date that we mail to stockholders our proxy materials for such annual
meeting and will publicize such date (in a filing under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or by press
release) at least 10 days before the date of that annual meeting. Recommendations for candidates should
be accompanied by personal information about the candidate, including a list of the candidate’s references,
the candidate’s resume or curriculum vitae and the other information required in the stockholder notice
required by Section 2.15 of our Bylaws. A stockholder recommending a candidate may be asked to submit
additional information as determined by our Corporate Secretary and as necessary to satisfy the rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission or The Nasdaq Stock Market. If a stockholder’s recommendation
is received within the time period set forth above and the stockholder has met the criteria set forth above,
the Governance and Nominating Committee will evaluate such candidate, along with the other candidates
being evaluated by the Governance and Nominating Committee, in accordance with the committee’s
charter and will apply the criteria described under “Consideration of Director Nominees—Director
Qualifications.”

Independent Directors

Each of our directors other than Messrs. Conti and Mercer qualifies as “independent” in accordance
with the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Nasdaq independence definition includes a series of
objective tests, including that a director may not be our employee and that the director has not engaged in
various types of business dealings with us. In addition, as further required by the Nasdaq rules, the Board
of Directors has made a subjective determination as to each independent director that no relationships
exist which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, would interfere with the exercise of a director’s
independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

Communication with the Board

You may contact the Board of Directors by sending an email to directors@adaptec.com or by mail to
Board of Directors, Adaptec, Inc., 691 S. Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas, California 95035. An employee will
forward these emails and letters directly to the Board of Directors. We reserve the right not to forward to
the Board of Directors any abusive, threatening or otherwise inappropriate materials.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors serves as our ultimate decision making body, except with respect to matters
reserved for the decision of our stockholders. The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance
Principles to assist in the performance of its responsibilities. These principles are available on the Investors
section of our website at www.adaptec.com.

Director Compensation

Cash Compensation. Carl J. Conti, Chairman of our Board of Directors, receives $100,000 per year
as compensation. For the 2005 fiscal year, our director compensation policy provided that all other
non-employee directors receive a $3,000 retainer per fiscal quarter and $4,000 for each meeting of the
Board of Directors attended other than telephonic meetings and are reimbursed for their expenses




incurred in .attending meetings of the Board of Directors. The chairperson of the Compensation
Committee, currently Ms. Fjeldstad, receives an additional $7,000 per year as compensation. The
chairperson of the Audit Committee receives an additional $10,000 per year as compensation. Mr. Mercer
served as the chairman of the Audit Committee until his appointment .as our Interim Chief Executive
Officer in May 2005, and we have not yet elected a chairperson of the Audit Committee. Directors who
serve on committees in a non-chairperson capacity do not receive additional compensation for serving on
these committees. Employee directors do not receive additional compensation for attendance at meetings
of the Board of Directors. : :

Deferred Compensation Program. Non-employee directors may choose to receive their quarterly
payment in cash, defer the payment by investing it in our Deferred Compensation Plan or elect a
combination of both.

2000 Director Option Plan. Pursuant to our 2000 Director Option Plan, each of our current directors
were granted an option to purchase 15,000 shares of our common stock on March 31, 2005 at an exercise
price of $4.58 per share. These options become vested and exercisable with respect to 25% of the shares
subject to the options for each full quarter after the date of grant, so long as such person remains a
director, such that the option will be fully vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE F OR THE ELECTION OF EACH NOMINEE.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2—APPROVAL OF THE OPTION EXCHANGE PROGRAM

After careful consideration, our Board of Directors has determined that it would be in the best
interests of the Company and our stockholders to implement a stock option exchange program whereby
eligible employees would be permitted to exchange outstanding options issued under our 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan; Broadband Storage, Inc. 2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan; 2000
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan; 1999 Stock Plan; 1990 Stock Plan; and Stargate Solutions, Inc. 1999
Incentive Stock Plan, each plan as it may have been amended (the “Stock Plans™), with exercise prices
equal to or greater than $7.00 per share (the “Eligible Options”) for a lesser number of options (the “New
Options”) to be granted following the expiration of a tender offer to be made to such employees (the
“Option Exchange Program”). Members of our Board of Directors and our Section 16 officers are not
eligible to participate in the Option Exchange Program and do not stand to benefit from the program other
than in their capacity as stockholders. The New Options would have an exercise price equal to the closing
sales price of our common stock as quoted by the Nasdaq National Market on the date of the new grant
(the “Fair Market Value”). To be approved, this proposal must receive the affirmative vote of a majority of
votes cast at the Annual Meeting, provided the affirmative votes must be not less than a majority of the
required quorum for the Annual Meeting.

Background

Stock options are intended to encourage our employees to act as owners, which helps align their
interests with those of stockholders. The objectives of our Stock Plans are to encourage ownership in our
company by employees whose long-term employment is essential to our continued success and thereby
encourage employees to act in our stockholders’ interest and share in our success.

Like many companies in the technology industry, our stock price has steadily declined since the end of
our 2002 fiscal year. Sustained adverse economic conditions have had a negative effect on the entire
technology sector, including markets in which we operate. As of May 31, 2005, the closing price of our
common stock on the Nasdaq National Market was $3.98, and approximately 87% of our stock options had
exercise prices higher than $7.00 per share.

As a result of the decline in our stock price, a major component of our total compensation has been
significantly weakened. Many employees perceive that their options are of very limited or no value, which
means that the vast majority of our stock aptions no longer are effective as incentives to mativate and
retain employees. Although these stock options are not likely to be exercised as long as our stock price is
lower than the applicable exercise price, the stock options will remain on our books with the potential to
dilute stockholders’ interests for up to 10 years from the grant date unless they are cancelled or otherwise
forfeited.

We have taken steps over the years to reduce expenses and scale down operations in response to a
decreased demand for our products. These steps have included reducing our workforce, cutting back on
our use of temporary workers and reducing discretionary spending. During this same time, our voluntary
turnover rate has increased dramatically. For the 2004 fiscal year, our voluntary turnover rate was 6.9%
and for the 2005 fiscal year, the rate was 11.2%. In the last quarter of the 2005 fiscal year, that turnover
rate was an annualized 13.0%, and has increased further since March 31, 2005.

The Option Exchange Program would benefit the broad base of our employees, who are our most
important resource and are critical to our future growth. In order to increase the motivational and
retentive value of our Stock Plans and to decrease the potentially dilutive effect of the large number of
options held by employees that have exercise prices substantially above the current market value of our
common stock, we are proposing a “value neutral” exchange. This means that employees who elect to
participate in the Option Exchange Program would receive a smaller number of New Options than they
surrender in the exchange. Additionally, the New Options would have a new vesting schedule, thus




requiring employees to continue their employment with-us in order to realize the benefit from the New
Options.

General Description of the Option Exchange‘ Pregram

We have not commenced the Option Exchange Program and will not do so unless and until our
stockholders. approve this proposal. At the time the Option Exchange Program is commenced, eligible
employees will be sent written materials explaining the precise terms and timing of the Option Exchange
Program. The commencement of the Option Exchange Program,-as well as any determination to terminate
the Option Exchange Program, will be determined by our Compensation Committee. Eligible employees
will be urged to read all written materials carefully when they become available. At or before
commencement of the Option Exchange Program, we will file the written materials relating to the Option
Exchange Program with the Securities and Exchange Commission as part of a tender offer statement on
Schedule TO. Eligible employees, as well as stockholders and members of the public, will be able to obtain
these written materials and other documents filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission free
of charge from the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website at www.sec.gov.

Under the proposed Option Exchange Program, participating employees would surrender Eligible
Options they currently hold and in return receive New Options to purchase fewer shares, in accordance
with a specified exchange ratio. Eligible employees on the date that the program is commenced who
participate in the Option Exchange Program would need to be continuously employed and remain
employees on the date of the new grant in order to receive the New. Options. The New Options would have
an exercise price equal to the Fair Market Value of our'common stock on the date that the New Options
are granted (which will not be less than 20 business days following the commencement of the Option
Exchange Program). The ratios of surrendered Eligible Options to New Options would vary from 1.25 to 1,
to 7 to 1, depending upon the exercise price of the surrendered Eligible Options. ]

We have structured. the Option Exchange Program to strike a balance between stockholder and
employee interests and, as such, we designed the program to create a value-neutral exchange. We believe
that the Option Exchange Program would be beneficial to stockholders by canceling a larger number of
outstanding options and issuing fewer options in their place. In addition, by conducting this exchange
rather than granting new options to supplement the “underwater” options, we are avoiding potential
additional dilution to our stockholders interests. ' '

Our Stock Plans allow us to grant stock options, restricted stock, stock awards, restricted stock units
and stock appreciation rights to employees and consultants. As of May 31, 2005, there were 20,695,428
shares underlying stock options under our Stock Plans and 14,732,545 shares available for grant. Of the
outstanding options, as of May 31, 2005, options to purchase 10,039,648 shares of common stock would be
eligible for exchange under the proposed Option Exchange Program. If all of the Eligible Options were
exchanged for New Options at the exchange ratios set forth below, the number of stock options granted
(the sum of New Options plus outstanding stock options not available for exchange under the Optlon
Exchange Program) plus the number of stock options available for grant under our Stock Plans would
decrease by 10,039,648 shares after calculation of the shares representing such surrendered Eligible
Options, or from 24.0% to 18.4% of the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of
May 31, 2005.
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Details of the Option Exchange Program
Implementing the Option Exchange Program

Our Board of Directors authorized the Option Exchange Program in June 2005, upon the
recommendation of our Compensation Committee and subject to stockholder approval. If approved by our
stockholders, we would promptly file an Offer of Exchange with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and distribute it to all eligible employees. Eligible employees would be given 20 business days from the
date we commence the Option Exchange Program to elect to exchange any or all of their Eligible Options
for New Options. The surrendered Eligible Options would be cancelled and the New Options may be
granted on the first business day following this 20-day election period. We expect to commence the Option
Exchange Program and begin to grant New Options toward the end of September 2005). However, even if
approved by our stockholders, our Board of Directors would retain the authority, in its sole discretion, to
terminate or postpone the Option Exchange Program, at any time before the commencement or expiration
of the Offer to Exchange.

Eligible Employees

The Option Exchange Program would be open to all of our employees worldwide who hold options
except for (a) our Section 16 officers, and (b) employees located in countries where we decide, in our sole
discretion, that it is not feasible or practical under local regulations to offer the Option Exchange Program.
The Option Exchange Program also would not be available to members of our Board of Directors, former
employees or retirees.

An eligible employee who tenders his or her Eligible Options for exchange would receive New
Options in exchange only if he or she is employed by us on the date that New Options are granted. If an
eligible employee is no longer employed by us for any reason on the date that the Option Exchange
Program commences, that individual could not participate in the program. If an eligible employee is no
longer employed by us for any reason on the date that the New Options are granted, even if he or she had
elected to participate and had tendered his or her Eligible Options for exchange, that individual would not
receive New Options and the tendered Eligible Options would be forfeited. Options that are not vested at
termination of employment cannot be exercised and would be forfeited. Voting in favor of this proposal at
the Annual Meeting does not constitute an election to participate in the Option Exchange Program.

Exchange Ratios

The number of Eligible Options that an eligible employee must surrender to obtain a New Option is
called the exchange ratio. For example, an exchange ratio of 7 to 1 means that an eligible employee must
surrender seven Eligible Options to receive one New Option. All eligible employees would be required to
exchange a larger number of Eligible Options in exchange for a lesser number of New Options. The
exchange ratios set out below were established based on our stock price as of May 31, 2005, after
consultation with an independent third-party expert consultant on stock plans and stockholder proposals.
The information set forth in the table below is based on information as of May 31, 2005.

Maximum Number

Maximum Number Weighted ) Exchange of Shares
of Shares Average Weighted Ratio (Eligible Underlying New
Underlying Remaining Average Options to Options that May
Range of Exercise Prices Eligible Options Life (Years) Exercise Price =~ New Options) Be Granted
$16.01 and higher .. ... .. 208,188 4.62 $22.99 7tol 29,741
1001 t0 16.00 ......... 5,503,803 3.92 13.65 275t 1 2,001,383
7.001t010.00 ......... 4,327,657 5.26 8.06 125to0 1 3,462,126

Total ................ 10,039,643 5,493,250
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Any exchange resulting in fractional shares under the above exchange ratios would be rounded up to
the nearest whole share such that we will not issue any New Options for fractional shares. For example, if
an eligible employee elects to exchange Eligible Options to purchase 100 shares of our common stock with
an exercise price of $11.00, that employee would receive 37 New Options (100 shares divided by the
exchange ratio of 2.75 and rounded up to the next whole number).

Election to Participate

Participation . in the Option Exchange Program would be completely voluntary. Many eligible
employees currently hold multiple option grants. Under the Option Exchange Program, eligible employees
would have the choice, on a grant-by-grant basis (i.e., options granted on the same date with the same
exercise price) whether to exchange any or all of their Ehglble Option grants. However, employees would
not be permitted to exchange a portion of a single grant for New Options. For example, if an eligible
employee holds a grant of options to purchase 100 shares of our common stock at a specified exercise price
and elects to exchange these Eligible Options, all 100 Eligible Options must be tendered for exchange.
Options with an exercise price of $6.99 or lower would not be eligible for exchange in the Option Exchange
Program.

Exercise Price of New Options

All New Options would be granted with an exercise price equal to the Fair Market Value of our
common stock on the date of the new grant.

Vesting -of New Options

The New Options would have a new vesting schedule, meaning that eligible employees would have to
continue their employment in order to realize any benefit from the New Options. On the six-month
annwersary of the date that the New Options are granted, the percentage of options that an employee
surrenders in the Option Exchange Program that were vested on the date of the grant of the New Optlons
would be vested as of that six-month anniversary date. Of the remaining New Options, 50% would vest in
an additional six months, with the remaining New Options vesting in another six months (in other words,
all New Options granted would be fully vested on the 18-month anniversary of the date that the New
Options are granted). This means that all New Options would be completely unvested at the time of the
new grant, regardless of whether the Eligible Options exchanged were partially or wholly vested.

For example, assume that an eligible employee elects to participate in the Option Exchange Program
and will surrender 10,000 Eligible Optlons Of these 10,000 Eligible Options, assume that the eligible
employee receives 8,000 New Options in the exchange and that 50% of the Eligible Options are vested on
the date that the Eligible Optlons are exchanged for New Options. Under the Option Exchange Program,
on the six-month anniversary of the date that the New Options are granted 50% would be fully vested,
with 25% of the New Options becoming vested on the 12-month anniversary of the date that the New
Options are granted and the remaining 25% of the New Options becoming vested on the 18-month
anniversary of the date that the New Options are granted.

Employees would have the choice to exercise their New Options at any time after they have vested.
New Options would only vest if the employee remains employed by us and may only be exercised by the
employee as provided 'in the employee’s option grant agreements. New Options that are not vested at
termination of employment could not be exercised and would be forfeited.

Term of the New Options

The. term of an option is the length of time during which it may be exercised. Except in certain
countries outside the United States as determined by us in our sole discretion, each New Option would
have a term of four or five years from the date of grant. The actual term of a New Option for a particular
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employee would be based on the weighted average remaining life of the employee’s Eligible Options (as
set forth in the table above). The term of New Options would be shorter than the surrendered Eligible
Options, most of which had either seven or 10-year terms at their grant date. The four or five-year term is
intended to ensure that employees who participate in the Option Exchange Program will not derive any
additional benefit from an extended option term, unless they are relatively long-term employees whose
surrendered Eligible Options had a remaining term of less than four or five years.

Other Conditions of New Options

The other terms and conditions of the New Options would be governed by our 2004 Equity Incentive
Plan and would be set forth in an option agreement to be entered into as of the New Option grant date. All
New Options would be nonstatutory stock options under U.S. federal income tax laws, regardless of
whether the surrendered Eligible Options are incentive stock options. The shares of common stock for
which the New Options would be exercisable have already been registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. :

Cancellation of Surrendered Eligible Options

We would cancel all surrendered Eligible Options and shares representing such Eligible Options
would no longer be available for option grants in the future. Assuming 100% participation in the Option
Exchange Program, options to purchase 10,039,648 shares outstanding as of May 31, 2005 would be
permanently cancelled. ~

Accounting Treatment

We would incur a charge for New Options to purchase up to 5,493,250 shares (assuming all Eligible
Options outstanding as of May 31, 2005 are surrendered) calculated using variable option accounting.
Because the New Options would vest over a period of 18 months, this charge would be recognized
quarterly over the vesting schedule of the New Options. The amount of the charge recognized each quarter
would be such quarter’s portion of the aggregate difference between the Fair Market Value of our common
stock underlying the vested New Options at the end of each quarter and the exercise price of the New
Options, minus any expense recognized to date for the New Options. Upon our adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R), we will no longer
expense the New Options using variable accounting and will not be required to recognize any remaining
unrecognized variable compensation charge for the New Options. Based on current guidance, we will
implement SFAS 123R as of April 1, 2006.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The exchange of Eligible Options should be treated as a non-taxable exchange and neither we nor our
employees should recognize any income for U.S. federal income tax purposes upon the grant of the New
Options. The tax consequences for participating non-U.S. employees may differ from the U.S. federal
income tax consequences and would be discussed in the Schedule TO that we would file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Potential Modification to Terms to Comply with Governmental Requirements

The terms of the Option Exchange Program would be described in a Schedule TO that we would file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Although we do not anticipate that the Securities and
Exchange Commission would require us to modify the terms of the Option Exchange Program materially,
it is possible that we would need to alter the terms of the Option Exchange Program to comply with
comments from the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, we intend to make the Option
Exchange Program available to our employees who are located outside of the United States, where
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permitted by local law and where we determine it would be feasible and practicable to do so. It is possible
that we would need to make modifications to the terms offered to employees in countries outside the,
United States to comply with local requirements, or for tax or accounting reasons. We reserve the right not
to conduct the Option Exchange Program in any country in which we deem it inadvisable to do so for any.
reason. : _ N
Benefits of the Option Exchange Program to Employees and Officers "

Because the decision whether to participate in the Option Exchange Program is completely voluntary,
we cannot predict who will participate, how may Eligible Options any particular group of employees will
elect to exchange, nor.the number of New Options that we may grant. As noted above, however, our
Section 16 officers and members of our Board of Directors are not eligible to participate in the Option
Exchange Program. Of the outstanding Eligible Options held as of May 31, 2005, the maximum number of
shares of common stock underlying Eligible Options is 10,039,648 and the maximum number of shares of
our common stock underlying the New Options which could be issued under the above exchange ratios 1s
5,493,250.

Effect on Stockholders

We cannot predict with certainty the impact the Option Exchange Program would have on our
stockholders because we are unable to predict how many employees will elect to participate and how many
options they will choose to exchange. We designed the Option Exchange Program to be value neutral to
our stockholders and to avoid the dilution in stockholders’ ownership that results from granting new
options to supplement “underwater” options.

Required Vote and Board of Dlrectors Recommendation

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented and voting on approval of the Option
Exchange Program, either in person or by proxy, is required to approve the Option Exchange Program,
provided that the affirmative votes must be not less than a majority of the required quorum for the Annual
Meeting. If you hold your shares through a broker and you do not instruct the broker on how to vote on
this proposal, your broker will not have the authority to vote your shares. Abstentions and broker
non-vates will each be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum but will
not have any effect on the outcome of the proposal.

Our employees are our most valuable asset. We believe that the Option Exchange Program will help
us to retain and motivate people whose skills and performance are critical to our success. We strongly
believe that the Option Exchange Program is essential for us to compete for talent in the very difficult
labor markets in which we operate.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR
APPROVAL OF THE OPTION EXCHANGE PROGRAM.
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PROPOSAL NO. 3—RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
~ INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm for our fiscal year ending March 31, 2006, and our
stockholders are being asked to ratify the Audit Committee’s appointment. We have engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm since 1995.
Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are expected to be present at our Annual Meeting, will
have the opportunity to make a statement at the Annual Meeting if they desire to do so and will be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

If the stockholders fail to ratify the appointment, the Audit Committee will reconsider its appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2006. Even if this appointment is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may
direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the
year if the Audit Committee determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company
and our stockholders.

Audit Fees

The following table presents information regarding the fees estimated and billed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and affiliated entities (collectively, “PricewaterhouseCoopers”) for the 2005
and 2004 fiscal years. In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s guidelines, we have
itemized tax related and other fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers during the 2005 and 2004 fiscal years.

For the year ended March 31,

Nature of Services 2005 2004
AUt FEes . . o e $1,835,000 $ 637,000
Audit-Related Fees. . .. ... o e 127,000 —
Tax Fees

Tax Compliance . ......... ..., 406,000 802,000

Other TaX . ..o e 69,000 82,500
All Other Fees . . . ..o ot i e e — —
Total Fees . ... ......... . e $2,437,000 $1,521,500

Audit Fees. 'This category includes services provided in connection with the audit of our consolidated
financial statements, the review of our quarterly consolidated financial statements and the audit of
management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This category also includes services for assistance with debt offerings,
acquisitions, SEC comment letters and review of and consents issued in connection with documents filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Audit Related Fees. This category includes services for due diligence related to an acquisition.

Tox Fees. This category consists of Tax Compliance and Other Tax. Tax Compliance includes services
related to the preparation of tax returns and claims for refund. Other Tax includes services related to tax
planning and tax advice, including assistance with tax audits and appeals, research and development
credits, expatriate tax preparation and advice related to mergers and acquisitions.

All Other Fees. We did not incur any Other Fees during these periods.
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Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Our Audit Committee has established a policy for approving any non-audit services to be performed
by our independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee requires advance review and
approval of all proposed non-audit services that we wish to be performed by the independent registered
public accounting firm.”As permitted-by our Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee chairperson
may pre-approve certain non-audit- related fees and the entire Audit Committee will then ratify the
chairperson’s pre-approval in a subsequent meeting of the Audit Committee, in accordance. with’
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In the 2005 and 2004 fiscal years, the Audit’
Committee foilowed these guidelines in approving all services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Required. Vote

* The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented and voting on Proposal No. 3, either in
person or by proxy, is required to ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006, provided that the
affirmative votes must be not less than a majority of the required quorum for the Annual Meeting.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR _
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF PRICEWATERHOUSECQOQPERS LLPE
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STOCK OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common
stock as of May 31, 2005 by (a) each beneficial owner of 5% or more of our outstanding stock; (b) each of
our directors; (c) each of our named executive officers; and (d) all of our directors and executive officers as
a group. '

The percentage of beneficial ownership for the table is based on approximately 112,481,235 shares of
our common stock outstanding as of May 31, 2005. To our knowledge, except under community property
laws or as otherwise noted, the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and sole
investment power over their shares of our common stock. Unless otherwise indicated, each beneficial
owner listed below maintains a mailing address of c¢/o Adaptec, Inc., 691 South Milpitas Boulevard,
Milpitas, California 95035.

The number of shares beneficially owned by each stockholder is determined under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other
purpose. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes those shares of common stock over which the
stockholder has sole or shared voting or investment power and those shares of common stock that the
stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days after May 31, 2005 through the exercise of any stock
option. The “Percentage of Shares” column treats as outstanding all shares underlying such options held by
the stockholder, but not shares underlying options held by other stockholders.

Adaptec Shares Beneficially Owned
Name of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares(1)  Percentage of Shares

Directors and Executive Officers:

Carl J. Contl . .. e e e e 175,580 *
Lucie J. Fjeldstad(2). . ... ..... ...t 89,250 *
Joseph S. Kennedy . . ......... . ... ... 83,750 *
Ilene H.Lang ...... ... ... . ... . i, 161,750 *
Robert J. Loarie(3) ...... ... ... o i 176,354 *
D. Scott Mercer. .. ...t i 33,750 *
Douglas E. Van Houweling . . .. ....... ... ... ........ 81,250 *
Robert N. Stephens(4) .. ......... ... . ... . ... 2,219,740 1.94%
Marshall L. Mohr. . .......o oo o 146,800 *
EricKelly . ... 102,400 *
Kok Yong Lim . .......... i 367,211 *
Ahmet D. Houssein(5) . . ....... ..o i 109,126 *
Ramkumar Javam(6) ......... ... ... ... it 4,167 *
Kenneth B. Arola(7) ......... ... i, — *
Directors and executive officers as a group (15 persons) . . . . . 3,751,128 3.23%
5% Stockholder:
Pioneer Global Asset Management S.p.A.(8) ............. 6,245,730 5.55%

*  Less than 1% ownership.

(1) Includes shares that may be acquired by the exercise of stock options granted under our stock option
plans within 60 days after May 31, 2005. The number of shares subject to stock options exercisable
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)
®3)
4)

)

(6)

™

within 60 days after May 31, 2005 for each of the directors and named executive officers is shown
below:

Carl . Conti......... P 158,750
Lucie J. Fjeldstad . ....... ... ... ... . i 86,250
Joseph S. Kennedy . ......... .. . i 83,750
Hene HLLANE . . .o oottt et 158,750
Robert J.Loarie . ... oo 128,750
D. Scott Mercer ... ov it i e 33,750
Douglas E. Van Houweling .................. e 81,250
Robert N. Stephens . ... ... ..o i 2,154,525
Marshall L. Mohr .. ... . 137,436
EricKelly . ..ot 76,141
Kok Yong Lim .......... e 349,169 ,
Ahmet D. Houssein. . ............. I P 98,000 ;

Ramkumar Jayam . ............. .. ..., I —
Kenneth B. Atola . ... i o
Directors and executive officers as group . ................ 3,546,521

Includes 3,000 shares held in the name of a trust for the benefit of Ms. Fjeldstad and her spouse.
Includes 47,604 shares held in the name of a trust for the benefit of Mr. Loarie and his family.

Mr. Stephens served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and a director until his retirement
effective May 25, 2005. 1

Mr. Houssein served as our Vice President and General Manager of our Storage Solutions Group
until his termination of employment effective April 4, 2005. The number of shares reported for
Mr. Houssein includes 3,200 shares of our restricted stock which we repurchased from him in
June 2005 as permitted by the restricted stock purchase agreement previously executed with
Mr. Houssein.

Mr. Jayam served as our Vice President and General Manager of our Storage Networking Group until
his termination of employment effective August 6, 2004.

!

Mr. Arola served as our Principal Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller until his termination
of employment effective November 5, 2004.

Pioneer Global Asset Management S.p.A. (“Pioneer”) reported that it has sole voting and sole
dispositive power over 6,245,730 shares of our common stock. Pioneer’s address is Galleria San Carlo
6, 20122 Milan, Italy. All information regarding Pioneer is based solely upon the Schedule 13G filed
by it with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 10, 2005.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary of Executive Compensation

The following table presents information about the compensation for the 2005 fiscal year awarded to,
earned by or paid to (a) our Chief Executive Officer; (b) our four other most highly compensated executive
officers serving in that capacity as of March 31, 2005; and (c) two executive officers who left the Company
prior to the end of the 2005 fiscal year. We provide benefits to our executive officers that are generally
available to all of our employees.

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Other Annual Restricted Securities All Other
Fiscal Compensation  Stock Underlying Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus($) (€318 Award($) Options(#) $)(2)
Robert N. Stephens . ... ... 2005 650,000 68,250 24,626 — 325,000 4,609
Former President and 2004 650,000 1,200 23,319 — 625,000 4,322
Chief Executive Officer 2003 650,000 — 23,318 — 800,000 4,322
Marshall L. Mohr(3) ...... 2005 325,000 29,938 18,399 — 70,000 —
Chief Financial Officer 2004 225,000 75,000 12,520 — 350,000 —
2003 — — — — — -—
EricKelly(4) .. .......... 2005 170,000 1,852,500 11,586 —_ 75,000 —
Vice President and General - 2004 — — — — —_ —
Manager of Worldwide Sales 2003 — — — — — —
and Services
Kok Yong Lim(5) ........ 2005 195,007 24,602 2,094 — 50,000 3,710
Vice President of 2004 188,215 1,019 2,018 — 40,000 3,769
Manufacturing 2003 176,293 — 2,035 -— 65,000 4,485
Ahmet D. Houssein . . .. ... 2005 304,508(6) 57,538 19,479 25.117(7) 100,000 2,893
Former Vice President and 2004 267,692 34,272 18,051 — 100,000 2,810
General Manager 2003 213,173 112,994 15,839 — 85,000 23,800
Ramkumar Jayam(8) . ... .. 2005  232,672(6) 22,000 6,833 — — 188
Former Vice President and 2004 240,000 : 1,200 16,671 — 55,000 4,465
General Manager 2003 240,000 29,577 16,309 — 75,000 465
Kenneth B. Arola(8) ...... 2005 266,036(6) 5,000 1'1,685 — —_ 413
Former Vice President, 2004 207,692 11,200 17,622 —_ 24,000 2,632
Corporate Controller 2003 200,000 —_ 17,556 — 60,000 2,632

(1) The compensation in this column includes the value of health benefits and automobile allowances provided to the
named executive officers. For the 2005 fiscal year, this compensation consisted of: (a) the value of health benefits
as follows: $15,026 for Mr. Stephens; $10,599 for Mr. Mohr; $6,486 for Mr. Kelly; $305 for Mr. Lim; $11,199 for
Mr. Houssein; $3,683 for Mr. Jayam; and $6,585 for Mr. Arola; and (b) automobile allowances as follows: $9,600
for Mr. Stephens; $7,800 for Mr. Mohr; $5,100 for Mr. Kelly; $1,789 for Mr. Lim; $8,280 for Mr. Houssein; $3,150
for Mr. Jayam; and $5,100 for Mr. Arola.

(2) The compensation in this column includes the Company’s contributions to the accounts of the named executive
officers under our Savings and Retirement Plan and payments for life insurance on behalf of the named executive
officers. For the 2005 fiscal year, this compensation consisted of: (a) the Company’s contributions under our
Savings and Retirement Plan as follows: $2,000 for Mr. Stephens; $0 for Mr. Mohr; 30 for Mr. Kelly; $3,296 for
Mr. Lim; $2,000 for Mr. Houssein, $0 for Mr. Jayam, and $0 for Mr. Arola; and (b) payments made by the
Company for the premiums on life insurance policies as follows: $2,609 for Mr. Stephens; $0 for Mr. Mohr; $0 for
Mr. Kelly; $414 for Mr. Lim; $893 for Mr. Houssein; $188 for Mr. Jayam; and $413 for Mr. Arola.

(3) Mr. Mohr joined us in July 2003. Amounts shown for the 2004 fiscal year reflect compensation paid to Mr. Mohr
for less than the full fiscal year.
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Mr. Kelly joined us in August 2004. Amounts shown for the 2005 fiscal year reflect compensation paid to
Mr. Kelly for less than the full fiscal year. The bonus reported for Mr. Kelly was paid in connection with his
commencement of employment following our acquisition of Snap Appliance, Inc. This retention bonus is further
described below in the section entitled “Executive Compensatlon——Employment Change in Control and Other
Separation Agreements—Eric Kelly’s Employment.”

All payments to Mr. Lim were made in Smgapore dollars For purposes of this table, all amounts have been
converted to United States dollars at a rate of SG$1.67701 to US$1.00 for the 2005 fiscal year; a rate of
SG$1.73752 to US$1.00 for the 2004 fiscal year; and a rate of SG$1.7225 to US$1.00 for the 2003 fiscal year.

The salary reported for the 2005 fiscal year included: (a) severance payments of'$122,638 to Mr. Jayam and
$150,770 to Mr. Arola; and (b) vacatlon payouts of $12,585 to Mr. Houssein; $13,111 to Mr. Jayam; and $15,266 to
Mr. Arola.

The value of restricted stock reported in this column is calculated using the closing market price of our common
stock as quoted on The Nasdaq National Market on the date of grant, which was $7.85. Other than this one-time
grant of restricted stock to Mr. Houssein, no other named executive officer holds any shares of restricted stock.
The value of this award of restricted stock at the end of our fiscal year (as represented by the $4.79 closing price of
our common stock on March 31, 2005), without giving effect to the reduction in value attributable to the
restrictions on the stock, was $15,328. In accordance with the terms of this grant, none of the restricted shares had
vested as of the date of Mr. Houssein’s termination. of employment, and we repurchased all of these restrrcted
shares in June 2005.

Messrs. Jayam’s and Arola’s 2005 compensation represents what each individual earned from April 1, 2004
through their termination dates of August 6, 2004 and November 5, 2004, respectively.

Option Grants in the 2005 Fiscal Year

The following table contains information concerning the stock option grants made to each of the

named executive officers in the 2005 fiscal year. Messrs. Jayam and Arola were not granted options prior
to their termination of employment.

Optien Grants in the 2005 Fiscal Year

. Individual Grants

Potential Realizable *

Number of Te)};;fcg:)ttiﬁrs Exercise Value at Assumed |
Securities Granted to Price f;n_nuai Rates ‘;f St‘;Ck
Underlying Employees in Per lger pp]r“ecm '$°n2 0F
Options Fiscal 2005 Share  Expiration ption Term(8)(2)
Name Granted (%) (1) 63 Date 5% 10%
Robert N. Stephens .. ........... 162,500(3) 3.79 7.66  12/17/2009(5) 343,901 759,932
162,500(4) 3.79 7.66  12/17/2009(5) 343,901 759,932
Marshall L. Mohr . . ............. 35,000(3) 0.82 7.66  12/17/2009 74,071 163,678
‘ ‘ 35,000(4) 0.82 7.66  12/17/2009 74,071 163,678
EricKelly .................... 25,162(6) 0.59 7.03 7/26/2011 72,012 167,817
49,838(6) 1.16 , 7.03 7/26/2011 142,632 332,394
Kok Yong Lim .. ............... 25,000(3) 0.58 7.66  12/17/2009 52,908 116,913
25,000(4) 0.58 7.66  12/17/2009 52,908 116,913
Ahmet D. Houssein . ............ 50,000(3) 1.18 7.66  12/17/2009(5) 105,816(7) 233,825(7)
‘ 50,000(4) 1.18 7.66  12/17/2009(5) 105,816(7) 233,825(7)

)

@)

We granted options to purchase 4,282,254 shares of common stock to all of our employees during the 2005 fiscal
year. '

Potential gains are reported as-of March 31, 2005 and are net of exercise price, but before taxes associated with
exercise. There is no assurance that the actual stock price appreciation over the option term will be at the assumed
5% and 10% levels of assumed annual rates of compounded stock price appreciation or at any other defined level.
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Unless the market price for our common stock appreciates over the option term, no value will be realized from
the option grants made to our executive officers.

{(3) These options become vested at the rate of 25% of the shares on March 31, 2005, with the balance becoming
vested in equal installments at the end of each quarter after the grant date, such that the options become fully
vested as of March 31, 2008.

(4) These options become fully vested on March 31, 2007, unless certain performance criteria are achieved before
March 31, 2007, in which case the options will then become immediately vested.

(5) Denotes initial term of stock option grant. As a result of the termination of employment of Messrs. Stephens and
Houssein, the expiration dates for the listed options have changed as follows: (a) the vesting of Mr. Stephens’
options ceased as of May 25, 2005 (Mr. Stephens’ retirement date), and the expiration date extends through the
earlier of the end of the term of a particular option or November 25, 2006; and (b) Mr. Houssein’s options expired
on July 4, 2005.

(6) These options become vested at the rate of 25% of the shares on July 26, 2005, with the balance becoming vested
in equal installments at the end of each quarter after the grant date, such that the options become fully vested as
of July 26, 2008.

(7) The options reported for Mr. Houssein expired on July 4, 2005; accordingly, the potential gain is $0.

The options shown in the table above were granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, except for
options granted to Mr. Kelly which were granted under our 1999 Stock Plan. All options were granted at
fair market value and are not transferable by the optionee (other than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution). With respect to the options granted to all of the named executive officers other than
Mr. Stephens, to the extent exercisable at the time of employment termination, options may be exercised
for an additional three months unless termination is the result of total and permanent disability, in which
case the options may be exercised within six months following termination, or unless termination is the
result of death, in which case all unvested options become vested and all of the individual’s outstanding
options may be exercisable by the individual’s estate or other successor for a period of 12 months following
the date of death. Options are subject to earlier termination upon termination of the option holder’s
employment. With respect to the options granted to Mr. Stephens, all vesting ceased as of May 25, 2005
(Mr. Stephens’ retirement date), and all vested options may be exercised through the earlier of the end of
the term of a particular option or November 25, 2006.

Aggregated Option Exercises in the 2005 Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

The following table presents information concerning option exercises during the 2005 fiscal year and
unexercised in-the-money options held as of March 31, 2005 by the named executive officers. The amounts
shown in the column entitled “Value Realized” are based on the closing price of our common stock as
quoted on The Nasdaq National Market on the exercise date minus the exercise price of the option,
multiplied by the number of shares subject to the option. The amounts shown in the column entitled
“Value of Unexercised In-the-Money Options at Fiscal Year-End” are based on the closing price of our
common stock on The Nasdaq National Market on March 31, 2005 ($4.79) minus the exercise price of the
option (if less than $4.79), multiplied by the number of shares subject to the option. These values have not
been, and may never be, realized. ‘
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Aggregate Option Exercises in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal Year-End Values

UNgm:)er ofUSecuritiesd : HVal}l:e K’E Unex(e)rcised
nderlying Unexercise n-the-Mone tions
A cglllli‘:[;is on | RZ:}iuzi d Optionsy athear-End (#)  at Fiscal Y{ar-%nd
Name Exercise $) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Robert N. Stephens . . ............ — — 2,103,275 1,024,376 $17,250 $ 10,350
Marshall L. Mohr . ........... L — — 104,749 315,251 — —
EricKelly.......... ... ... ... 371,907 2,323,833 16,959 256,948 53,590 574,956
Kok Yong Lim ................. — — 340,607 96,000 1,725 1,035 -
Ahmet D. Houssein . ............. -— — - 98,000 © 187,000 2,156 1,294
Ramkumar Jayam(1) ............. 25,625 69,974 — — — —
Kenneth B. Arola(1) ........ R 20,000 - 26,791 — — — —

(1) All outstanding options previously granted to Messrs. Jayam and Arola expired by their terms on or before the
fiscal year-end as a result of their termination of employment

Employment, Change in Control and Other Separation Arrangements

Other than as described below, we have no written employment agreements governing the length of
service of our executive officers, or any severance or change of control agreements with our executive
officers. Each of our executive officers (including each officer who serves under an employment agreement
or offer letter) serves on an at-will basis.

D. Scott Mercer’s Employment.  On June 1, 2005, we executed an offer letter (effective as of May 26,
2005) with Mr. Mercer providing for his service as our Interim Chief Executive Officer at a monthly base
salary of $41,667. Mr. Mercer is eligible to participate in the Adaptec Incentive Plan with a target bonus of
75% of his base salary. Mr. Mercer also is eligible to participate in our quarterly Variable Incentive Plan
with a target bonus of 4% of his quarterly base salary. Mr. Mercer is entitled to the same benefits provided
to our similarly situated executives. We also granted Mr. Mercer an option to purchase 50,000 shares of
our common stock, of which, subject to his continued employment, options to purchase 25,000 shares will
vest on September 1, 2005 and the remaining options to purchase 25,000 shares will vest on December 1,
2005. :

Subramanian Sundaresh’s Employment. On May 6, 2005, we executed an offer letter with
Mr. Sundaresh, which we amended on June 1, 2005 (effective as of May 26, 2005) providing for his service
as our President at an initial base salary of $375 000. Mr. Sundaresh is eligible to participate in the Adaptec,
Incentive Plan with a target bonus of 75% of his base salary. Mr. Sundaresh also is eligible to participate in
our quarterly Variable Incentive Plan with a target bonus of 4% of his quarterly base salary. Mr. Sundaresh
is entitled to the same benefits provided to our similarly situated executives, except that he was given a
service credit of 63 months in recognition of his prior service to us and received an additional three weeks
of paid time off during August 2005. We also granted Mr. Sundaresh an option to purchase 300,000 shares
of our common stock which will, subject to his continued employment, vest at the rate of 20% on the
one-year anniversary of his commencement of employment and thereafter at the rate of 5% per quarter so
that the option will be fully vested at the end of five years from his commencement of employment.

Eric Kelly’s Employment. On July 13, 2004, we entered into an Employment and Non-Competition
Agreement with Eric Kelly (the “Kelly Agreement”) providing for his service as our Vice President,
General Manager at a base salary of no less than $260,000 per year. Mr. Kelly is eligible to participate in
the Adaptec Incentive Plan with a target bonus of 50% of his base salary, and he will receive a guaranteed
bonus payment of $40,000 payable in calendar 2005 and 2006. Beginning on October 1, 2004, Mr. Kelly
also became eligible to participate in our quarterly Variable Incentive Plan with a target bonus of 4% of his
quarterly base salary. Mr. Kelly is entitled to the same benefits provided to our similarly situated
executives. We granted Mr. Kelly an option to purchase 75,000 shares of our common stock which will, .
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subject to his continued employment, vest at the rate of 6.25% per fiscal quarter so that the option will be
fully vested at the end of four years from his commencement of employment. Mr. Kelly also is eligible to
receive a retention bonus of up to $3,900,000 under our retention program that we established for former
employees of Snap Appliance, Inc. who remain employed by us through scheduled dates (the “Snap
retention bonus™). The Snap retention bonus is payable to Mr. Kelly as follows: 30% of the bonus was paid
to Mr. Kelly in January 2005 with the remaining 70% payable over eight quarterly installments (measured
from his commencement of employment date), which we began paying in January 2005. The Snap
retention bonus is not based on performance objectives, and will be payable to Mr. Kelly if he remains
employed by us through the various scheduled payment dates. If Mr. Kelly’s employment is terminated due
to his death or Disability or if we terminate without Cause or if he terminates for Good Reason (each as
defined in the Kelly Agreement), Mr. Kelly is entitled to receive: (a) after one year of employment with us,
a severance payment equal to nine months of his base salary; (b) Company-paid COBRA benefits and
outplacement services; (¢) acceleration of all of his stock options that we assumed in the acquisition of
Snap Appliance, Inc.; and (d) the Snap retention bonus described above.

Bob Stephens’ Separation. On June 30, 2005, we entered into a Separation Agreement and General
Release with Mr. Stephens following his retirement as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a
director. Subject to Mr. Stephens’ agreement not to compete with us, we will pay Mr. Stephens 12 monthly
installments of $81,250 beginning December 30, 2005, Mr. Stephens also will receive continuation of his
health, vision, dental and employee assistance program benefits through November 30, 2006. The vesting
for all outstanding options held by Mr. Stephens ceased as of May 25, 2005 (Mr. Stephens’ retirement
date), and all vested options may be exercised by him through the earlier of the end of the term of a
particular option or November 25, 2006. If Mr. Stephens relocates to Southern California by May 25, 2006,
we will pay the brokerage commission and other costs associated with the sale of Mr. Stephens’ home (up
to a maximum of 6% of the selling price of the home) and the relocation costs associated with such move.

Kenneth B. Arola’s Separation. On July 30, 2004, we entered into a Separation Agreement and
General Release with Mr. Arola following a reorganization of our business. Mr. Arola received an
aggregate severance payment equal to six months of his base pay, plus $20,000. We also paid Mr. Arola’s
COBRA benefit premiums through May 31, 2005.

Rambkumar Jayam’s Separation. On July 29, 2004, we entered into a Separation Agreement and
General Release with Mr. Jayam following a reorganization of our business. Mr. Jayam received an
aggregate severance payment of $143,077. We also paid Mr. Jayam’s COBRA benefit premiums through
April 30, 2005.

Stock Plan Provisions. Under our 1990 Stock Plan, 1999 Stock Plan, 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option
Plan and 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, in the event of a Change in Control, any Options, Rights or Awards
(as such terms are defined in these plans) outstanding upon the date of such Change in Control will have
their vesting accelerated as of the date of such Change in Control as to an additional 25% of the shares
subject to (or then unvested depending upon the plan) such Options, Rights or Awards (as the case may
be), and in the case of the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, if the employee is still employed on the
first anniversary of such Change in Control, then 25% of the then-unvested shares also will vest under
Options held by such employee. If within 12 months following a Change in Control, an employee is
terminated by the successor employer for any reason (with respect to the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan) or
involuntarily terminated without Cause (with respect to and as defined in the 1990, 1999 and 2000 plans
listed above) such employee’s Options, Rights or Awards (as the case may be) outstanding upon such
Change in Control that are not yet exercisable and vested on such date shall become 100% vested and
exercisable.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information as of March 31, 2005 regarding equity awards under our
2004 Equity Incentive Plan; Snap Appliance, Inc. 2002 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan;
Broadband Storage, Inc. 2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan; 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan; 1999 Stock Plan; 1990 Stock Plan; Distributed Processing Technology Corp. Omnibus Stock
Option Plan; Stargate Solutions, Inc. 1999 Incentive Stock Plan; Eurologic Systems Group Limited 1998
Share Option Plan; 2000 Director Option Plan; 1990 Directors’ Optlon Plan and 1986 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, and any amendments to such plans:

Equity Compensation Plan Information Table

(a) ‘ (b) (©
Number of Weighted

securities to be average exercise Number of securities
issued upon price of available for future '
exercise of outstanding issuance under equity
outstanding options, compensation plans
options, warrants warrants and (excluding securities
_ _ and rights rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security : :
holders . . .. ... oo i i 16,083,421 $10.0179 20,164,230(1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by ’
security holders(2) . . . ..o ivveeit e, 5,086,476 $12.0005 —
Total . ................... e 21,169,897 $10.4943 20,164,230

(1) Of these shares, 5,694,287 shares remain available for purchase under our 1986 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. These shares also include 3,833,935 shares that were previously available under our
2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and reported under the title “Equity Compensation plans not
approved by security holders” in our Proxy Statement for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. These
3,833,935 shares became available under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan upon the plan’s approval by
our stockholders at the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Of these shares, 14,091,193 shares are
available for issuance under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, which permits the grant of stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, stock awards and restricted stock units.

(2) Includes options to purchase 1,232,491 shares of our common stock issued under the Snap Appliance
and Broadband Storage stock option plans that we assumed in connection with the acquisition of Snap
Appliance in July 2004, after giving effect to the exchange ratio for such acquisition. Of these options
to purchase 1,232,491 shares, options to purchase 551,537 shares of our common stock were
outstanding at March 31, 2005, having a weighted average exercise price of $1.5126. Also includes
options to purchase 1,130,525 shares of our common stock issued under the Distributed Processing
Technology stock option plan that we assumed in connection with the acquisition of that company in
December 1999, after giving effect to the exchange ratio for such acquisition. Of these options to
purchase 1,130,525 shares, options to purchase 39,024 shares of our common stock were outstanding
at March 31, 2005, having a weighted average exercise price of $5.2764 per share. Also includes
options to purchase 2,336,037 shares of our common stock issued under the Stargate Solutions stock
option plan that we assumed in connection with the acquisition of Platys Communications in
August 2001, after giving effect to the exchange ratio for such acquisition. Of these options to
purchase 2,336,037 shares, options to purchase 236,328 shares of our common stock were outstanding
at March 31, 2005, having a weighted average exercise price of $4.1650 per share. Also includes
options to purchase 498,789 shares of our common stock issued under the Eurologic stock option plan
that we assumed in April 2003 in connection with the acquisition of Eurologic Systems Group Ltd.,
after giving effect to the exchange ratio for such acquisition. Of these options to purchase 498,789
shares, options to purchase 247,314 shares of our common stock were outstanding at March 31, 2005,
having a weighted average exercise price of $6.6513 per share. No further awards will be made under
any of the assumed stock option plans described above.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation Committee currently consists of Lucie J. Fjeldstad and Robert J. Loarie, neither of
whom has any interlocking relationships, as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained in this report shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed”
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference in any
of the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or subject to the liabilities of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically
incorporates it by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Overview and Philosophy

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Company’s
compensation policies and determines the compensation payable to the Company’s executive officers,
including their participation in certain of the Company’s employee benefit and stock option plans. The
Compensation Committee currently consists of two directors, none of whom is a current or former
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries and all of whom are independent under the standards
adopted by the Board of Directors and applicable standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market and the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

It is the Compensation Committee’s objective that the Company’s executive compensation programs
be designed to:

* Attract, reward and retain highly qualified and productive executive officers;

* Motivate executive officers to improve the Company’s overall profitability and performance and
reward executive officers when specific, measurable results have been achieved,

* Tie incentive awards to the performance of the Company’s common stock through grants of stock
options, restricted stock, and stock purchase rights to further strengthen the mutuality of interests
between the Company’s stockholders and executive officers; and

* Ensure compensation levels are externally competitive with peer companies and internally
equitable.

Factors. 'The principal factors which the Compensation Committee considered in establishing the
components of each executive officer’s compensation package for the 2005 fiscal year are summarized
below. The Compensation Committee does not follow any particular compensation principle in a
mechanical or rigid fashion; rather, the members use their experience and judgment in determining the
appropriate compensation for each executive officer. The Compensation Committee retains an
independent compensation consultant to provide advice in the review of the Company’s executive
compensation plans and programs. The Compensation Committee may, at its discretion, apply entirely
different factors, particularly different measures of financial performance, in setting executive
compensation for future fiscal years.

Base Salary. For comparative compensation purposes, the Compensation Committee reviewed
published industry pay survey data, including compensation reports for high technology companies and
other data supplied or reviewed by the Compensation Committee’s consultant. The peer group companies
chosen were approximately the Company’s size in terms of employees, revenue and capitalization, and in
some cases, the Compensation Committee considered companies with similar growth rates and financial
performance and companies with which the Company may compete for executive talent.
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In selecting companies to survey for such compensation purposes, the Compensation Committee
considered many factors not directly associated with the stock price performance of those companies. For
this reason, there is not a meaningful correlation between the companies included within the peer group
identified for comparative compensation purposes and the companies included within the Nasdaq
Computer and Data Processing Index which the Company has selected as the industry index for purposes
of the stock performance graph appearing later in this Proxy Statement.

Base salaries for executive officers are established considering a number of factors, including the
executive officer’s experience level, individual performance, future potential and measurable contribution
to the Company’s success as well as pay levels of similar positions with other comparable high-technology
companies. The Compensation Committee did not use a specific formula when considering the varjous
factors, and the particular weight given to each of these factors differed from individual to individual.
Generally, base salaries are maintained at approximately the level of the median salaries of comparable’
high-technology companies.

Incentive Compensation. Under the Adaptec Incentive Plan (the “AIP”), an executive officer’s
incentive performance award generally depends on three performance factors: the Company’s overall
financial performance; the performance of the business unit or corporate unit/functions for which the
executive officer is accountable; and the executive officer’s individual performance. The Company’s
performance objectives and those of the business unit or corporate function derive from the Board-
approved annual or semi-annual business plan that includes specific financial performance targets relating
to revenue and operating results for the fiscal year. The AIP does not permit payment of an incentive
award until threshold revenue and operating results targets are met. Long-term strategic goals also may be
incorporated for certain executives. Individual executive performance is measured against an annual
incentive target that represents a percentage of base salary that the executive can earn as incentive
compensation if Company thresholds are met, and if the executive officer’s performance warrants. The
incentive target is set so that executive officers have a large percentage of their potential total cash
compensation at risk. If business plans are exceeded, executive officers can earn additional amounts above
the established target levels. The Compensation Committee annually reviews and approves specific targets,
maximums and performance criteria for each executive officer.

In the 2005 fiscal year, no AIP award attrlbutable to performance during the 2005 fiscal year was paid
to any executive officer.

In the 2004 fiscal year, the Company established a quarterly incentive program for all exempt
employees, other than commissioned sales employees. This maximum quarterly incentive award that could
be earned by an employee was set at 5% of an employee’s quarterly base pay. Managers awarded the
incentive amount at the end of each quarter based on each employee’s achievement of specific, measurable
goals established at the beginning of each quarter. Because the program was considered successful in
motivating employees to achieve their quarterly objectives and to align the interests of employees and
executive officers, the Compensation Committee extended this program to executive officers at the
beginning of the 2005 fiscal year. During the 2005 fiscal year, executive officers received a range of
quarterly incentive awards in the first and second quarters; no executive officer (including the Chief
Executive Officer) received any award under this quarterly incentive program for the third and fourth
fiscal quarters of 2005.

In the 2005 fiscal year, the Compensation Committee approved the award of a one-time, discretionary
cash bonus of $25,000 and the grant of 3,200 shares of restricted stock to Mr. Houssein in recognition of
his contributions on a major OEM product during the 2005 fiscal year. Also in the 2005 fiscal year and as
provided in the Kelly Agreement, the Compensation Committee approved the award of a retention bonus
of $1,852,500 to Mr. Kelly in connection with his commencement of employment following the Company’s
acquisition of Snap Appliance, Inc. Both of these bonuses are included in the Summary Compensatlon
Table appearing in this Proxy Statement.
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Long-Term Incentive Compensation. Long-term incentives are provided through the grant of stock
options under the Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. The grants are designed to align the interests of
each executive officer with those of the Company’s stockholders and provide each individual with a
significant incentive to manage the Company from the perspective of an owner with an equity stake in the
business. Each grant allows the individual to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock at a fixed
price per share (the closing market price on the grant date) over a specified period of time (up to 10 years).
Each option generally vests and becomes exercisable in installments over the executive officer’s continued
employment with the Company. Accordingly, the option will provide a return to the executive officer only
if the executive officer remains employed by the Company during the applicable vesting period, and then
only if the market price of the underlying shares appreciates over the option term. Although the 2004
Equity Incentive Plan permits the Company to grant restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, stock
awards and restricted stock units, the Company has not granted any of these types of awards under this
plan, other than the 3,200 shares of restricted stock granted to Mr. Houssein in the 2005 fiscal year as
discussed above. ‘

The number of shares subject to each option grant is set at a level intended to create a meaningful
opportunity for stock ownership based on the executive officer’s current position with the Company, the
executive officer’s total compensation package, the number of stock options previously granted to the
individual, the size of comparable awards made to individuals in similar positions within the industry, the
individual’s potential for increased responsibility and promotion over the option term, the individual’s
personal performance in recent periods and the overall dilutive impact to the Company of a particular
award. The Compensation Committee also takes into account the number of unvested options held by an
executive officer in order to maintain an appropriate level of equity incentive for that individual. However,
the Compensation Committee does not adhere to any specific guidelines as to the relative option holdings
of the Company’s executive officers.

Chief Executive Officer Performance and Compensation

Mr. Stephens received a base salary of $650,000, which did not change from the base salary he
received in the prior fiscal year. The last increase to Mr. Stephens’ base salary occurred in April 2000.
Mr. Stephens’ compensation level was consistent with the Company’s compensation policy described above
and the Compensation Committee’s evaluation of his overall leadership skills and experience.

Mr. Stephens received a cash bonus of $68,250 during the 2005 fiscal year for his performance during
the 2004 fiscal year and the first two quarters of the 2005 fiscal year. This cash bonus included an amount
earned under the AIP (for performance during the 2004 fiscal year) and an amount determined
appropriate by the Compensation Committee under the quarterly bonus program discussed above.

During the 2005 fiscal year, the Corpensation Committee awarded Mr. Stephens stock options to
purchase 325,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. In considering the appropriate number of
options to award Mr. Stephens, the Compensation Committee analyzed stock option grants made to chief
executive officers of comparable companies, the effectiveness of the grant as a retention tool and the
number of unvested stock options held by Mr. Stephens. Of the 325,000 stock options granted, 50%
(162,500) were “performance accelerated” stock options such that 50% (81,250} of these stock options
would be accelerated if the Company’s operating profit before taxes met or exceeded 10% of the
Company’s revenue for a fiscal quarter. The remaining 50% would be vested when the Company’s
operating profit before taxes met or exceeded 12% of its revenue for a fiscal quarter. Based on the
Company’s performance during the 2005 fiscal year, none of the stock options received accelerated vesting,

Compliance with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code disallows a tax deduction to publicly-held companies for
compensation paid to certain executive officers, to the extent that the compensation exceeds $1 million per
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officer in any one year. The limitation applies only: to compensation which is not considered to be
“performance-based,” either because it is not tied to the attainment of performance milestones or because
it is not paid pursuant to a stockholder-approved plan. The Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan
complies with Section 162(m) by limiting stock awards to named executive officers and/or by making
restricted stock, stock bonus and restricted stock unit awards performance-based. The compensation
treated as nmon-performance based under Section 162(m) did not exceed the $1 million limit for the
Company’s executive officers for the-2005 fiscal year, other than for Mr. Kelly. The total cash
compensation paid to Mr. Kelly in the 2005- fiscal year did-exceed the $1 million limit due to the retention
bonus paid to him under the Snap retention bonus program, which was not considered performance-based.
The Snap retention bonus award to Mr. Kelly was a one-time award negotiated in connection with the
Company’s acquisition of Snap Appliance, Inc. During the 2006 fiscal year, Mr. Kelly is entitled to receive
additional retention bonuses under the Snap retention bonus program as provided in the Kelly Agreement
which may result in total cash compensation paid to Mr. Kelly in excess of the $1 million limit, which would
not be considered performance-based. Other than the Snap retention bonus payable to Mr. Kelly, the cash
compensatlon to be paid to the Company’s other executive officers in the 2006 fiscal year is not expected to
reach the '$1 million level. After full payment of thé Snap retention bonus to Mr. Kelly, it is not expected
that the cash compensation payable to any of the Company’s executive officers in the foreseeable future
will approach the $1 million limitation. Accordmgly, the Compensation Committee has decided not to take
any action at this time to limit or restructure the elements of cash compensatlon payable to the Company’s
executive officers. The Compensation Committee will reconsider this decision should the 1nd1v1dua1
compensation of any other executive offlcer approach the $1 million 11m1tat10n
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Lucie J. Fjeldstad, Chair

Robert J. Loarie

REPQORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The following is the Report of the Audit Commlttee W1th respect to our audlted financial statements
for our ﬁscal year ended March 31, 2005. ' :

The Aud1t Commlttees purpose is, among other things, -to as31st the Board of Directors in 1ts
oversight of our financial accounting, reporting and controls. The Board of Directors has determined that
each member of the Audit Committee meets the independence criteria prescribed by applicable law and
the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for audit committee membership and each is an

“independent” director within the meaning of the hstmg standards of The Nasdag Stock Market. The
Audit Committee operates under a written charter, which was formally adopted by the Board of Directors
in June 2000 and most recently updated in. March 2004. This charter is available on our website at
www.adaptec.com. :

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our audited consolidated financial statements with
management and PricewaterhouseCoopers 'LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm
(“PWC?”). The Audit Committee met with PWC, with and without management present, to discuss the
results of its examinations, its evaluation of our mternal control over financial reporting and the overall
quality of our financial reportmg

The Audlt Committee also has dlscussed with IPWC the matters requlred to be discussed by Statement
on Auditing Standards No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees. The Audit Committee has received
the written disclosures and the letter from PWC required by Independence Standards Board Standard
No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees. The Audit Committee also has discussed with
PWC that firm’s independence and whether the provision of non-audit services by PWC is compatible with
maintaining independence. Based on the review and discussions described in this report, and subject to the
limitations on the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee referred to in its charter, the Audit
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Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements be
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

The preceding report is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the
date of this proxy statement and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any of our filings.

Respectfully submitted,
Robert J. Loarie

Joseph S. Kennedy
Ilene H. Lang
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COMPANY STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return of our common stock to the
Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S.) Index and the Nasdaq Computer and Data Processing Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on March 31, 2000 in our common stock and in each index, and that all
dividends were reinvested. These indices, which reflect formulas for dividend reinvestment and weighting
of individual stocks, do not necessarily reflect returns that could be achieved by an individual investor.

Five-Year Cumulative Total Return Summary
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* $100 invested on 3/31/00 in stock or index,
including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal years ending March 31.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of our previous or future filings under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might
incorporate this Proxy Statement or future filings made by us under those statutes, the Company Stock
Price Performance is not considered proxy “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and is not deemed to be incorporated by reference into any of those prior
filings or into any future filings made by us under those statutes.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Any related party transactions, excluding compensation (whether cash, equity or otherwise) which is
delegated to the Compensation Committee, involving one of our directors or executive officers, must be
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee or another independent body of the Board of Directors.

Other than the compensation arrangements set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation,”
since April 1, 2004, there has not been, nor is there currently proposed, any transaction or series of similar
transactions to which we were or will be a party in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed
$60,000 and in which any director, executive officer, holder of more than 5% of our common stock or any
member of his or her immediate family had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS
FOR 2006 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Stockholders are entitled to present proposals for consideration at forthcoming stockholder meetings
provided that they comply with the proxy rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
and our Bylaws. Stockholders wishing to present a proposal at our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
must submit such proposal to us by March 18, 2006 if they wish for it to be eligible for inclusion in the
proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting. In addition, under our Bylaws, a stockholder
wishing to nominate a person to our Board of Directors at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (but
not include such nomination in the proxy statement) must submit the required information to us no later
than June 1, 2006. A stockholder wishing to make a proposal with respect to any other matter (but not
include such proposal in the proxy statement) at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must submit the
required information to us by June 1, 2006.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act requires our directors and officers, and persons who own
more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities, to file initial reports of ownership and reports
of changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Securities and Exchange
Commission regulations also require these persons to furnish us with a copy of all Section 16(a) forms they
file. Based solely on our review of the copies of the forms furnished to us and written representations from
our executive officers and directors, we believe that all Section 16(a) filing requirements were met during
the 2005 fiscal year.

OTHER BUSINESS

The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will be presented for consideration at the
Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention
of the persons named in the accomparnying proxy to vote the shares they represent as the Board of
Directors may recommend.

Whether or not you plan te attend the Annual Meeting in person, please either cast your vote online, via
telephone, or complete, date, sign and promptly return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid
envelope before the Annual Meeting so that your shares will be represented at the Meeting.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. The statements contained in this document that are not purely historical are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including without limitation statements regarding our expectations,
beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding our business. This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes
forward-looking statements about our business including, but not limited to, the level of our expenditures
and savings for various expense items and our liquidity in future periods. We may identify these statements
by the use of words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,”
“may,” “might,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” -“should,” “will,” “would” and other similar
expressions. All forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available
to us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements,
except as may otherwise be required by law.

RS 3 <

I AT ¥ ¢ 3 &

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements
as a result of certain factors, including those set forth in the “Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this
document. In evaluating our business, current and prospective investors should consider carefully these
factors in addition to the other information set forth in this document.

PART I
Item 1. Business

References made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “Adaptec,” the “Company,” the “Registrant,” “we,”
“our” or “us” refer to Adaptec, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

For your convenience, we have included, in Note 20 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, a Glossary that contains (1) a brief description of a few key acronyms commonly used in our
industry that are used in this Annual Report and (2) a list of accounting rules and regulations that are also
referred to herein. These acronyms and accounting rules and regulations are listed in alphabetical order.

Overview

We design, manufacture and market storage products and software that are easy to manage and
enable organizations to move, manage and protect critical data and digital content. Our software and
hardware products range from ASIC and RAID components to external storage arrays, and span SCSI,
SAS, SATA, Fibre Channel, and iSCSI technologies. Our broad range of chips, add-in cards and network
storage arrays gives businesses a migration path from internal to external storage. Our products use a
common management tool designed to simplify storage administration and reduce related costs. Our
products are sold through OEMs and distribution channel customers to enterprises, small and midsize
businesses, government agencies, VARs, direct marketers, and retail users across geographically diverse
markets. :

In fiscal 2005, we focused on strengthening our market position through innovation and acquisition.
We compete in the markets we serve on the basis of key technologles ease-of-use, cost effectiveness and
brand as follows: :

* PCI, PCI-X RAID Controllers. We provide PCI and PCI-X RAID controllers based on SCSI and
SATA technologies that enable ¢nd users to connect the various components of their storage
networks. We are also developing SAS RAID controllers for increased storage performance. We
have an established proprietary RAID code that we leverage across our hardware, providing
customers with continuous data protection and enabling migration between technology interfaces.
Our PCI and PCI-X RAID controllers are primarily used in servers (“Host-based”) for DAS, but
storage array applications represent a growing market for these products.




s External Storage Arrays. We provide a broad range of external storage options based on Fibre
Channel and iSCSI interfaces and ATA, SATA, SCSI and SAS disk drive interface technologies at a
variety of prices. Our storage arrays enable customers to access storage that is cost-effective and
easy to manage for many applications. Our external storage products leverage our host based
components and RAID software. During fiscal 2005, we acquired Snap Appliance, Inc., a leading
volume supplier of network attached storage products, which is significantly expanding our storage
systems product line. 'We also completed development of our Flexible Storage Architecture
technology and began shipment of products 1ncorporat1ng that technology to International Business
Machines, Corp., or IBM.

Storage Management Software. Our storage products include -storage management software that
enables customers and IT managers to éasily manage storage across DAS and SAN environments.

Storage Software. We offer software that includes storage virtualization, snapshot technology, data
synchronization, and data replication, which, when combined with our hardware, helps to further
simplify storage management.

s ASICs. We develop and deliver ASIC products containing /O and RAID functionality to many of
our OEM customers and to a lesser extent, our Channel customers. Our board-level solutions also
contain our ASICs. Our ASICs are highly complex and run on the most current ASIC technologies,
resulting in high cost to design and produce. During the year, we entered into separate strategic
alliances with Vitesse Semiconductor Corporation, or Vitesse, and ServerEngines LLP, or
ServerEngines whereby Vitesse and ServerEngines took over the design of certain ASICs. We
believe that these alliances allow us to better focus on our core competencies of delivering an
end-to-end product line of internal and external storage products and software based on
next-generation technologies, while saving research and development costs and providing our
customers with faster time to market. :

» Solid Brand Equity. We have been providing reliable storage access products for more than 24 years
.and have built a reputation for making complex storage technologies easy to use. We believe that
these factors have provided us with strong brand recognition and customer loyalty.

In fiscal 2005, we refined our internal. organizational structure to operate in three reportable
segments: OEM, Channel and DSG. Where historically our former SSG and SNG segment each offered
distinct products across our entire customer base, the new OEM and Channel segments offer an integrated
set of products to customers that are specific to the segment. We believe that reorganizing our business in a
customer-focused manner enables us to efficiently coricentrate on addressing the specific business needs of
our customers and better coordinate product planning. Our business segments are:

°* OEM: Our OEM group provides storage. products directly to OEMs or to ODMs that supply
OEMSs, enabling them to resell next-generation storage products built on Adaptec intellectual
property. OEM customers are characterized by long sales and design cycles involving close
collaboration between ours and OEMS’ engineering teams. We currently sell all of our storage
technologies, except DSG products, in various form factors, such as storage arrays, board-level
products, ASICs and stand-alone software, to our OEM customers.

° Channel: Our Channel group provides storage products to VARs and end users through our
network of distribution and reseller customers. Channel customers are characterized by shorter
sales cycles than OEM customers and channel customers purchase standard products. We currently
sell many of the technologies we provide to our OEM customers to our Channel customers
generally in storage array or board-level form factors.

¢ DSG: Our DSG group provides high—peffor’mance 1/O connectivity and digital media products for
personal computing platforms, including notebook and desktop PCs. We sell these products to
retailers, OEMs and distributors.




We were incorporated in 1981 in California and completed our initial public offering on the Nasdaq
National Market in 1986. In March 1998, we reincorporated in Delaware. We are an S&P SmallCap 600
Index member. Our principal executive offices are located at 691 South Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas,
California 95035 and our telephone number at that location is (408) 945-8600. We also maintain our
website at www.adaptec.com. The contents of this website are not incorporated in or otherwise to be
regarded as part of this annual report.

Available Information

We make available free of charge through our website the following filings as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission:
our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. ‘

Business Segment and Products Overview

In fiscal 2005, our OEM segment accounted for $296.3 million of our net revenues, our Channel
segment accounted for $140.3 million of our net revenues and our DSG segment accounted for
$38.3 million of our net revenues (See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of our operating segments’ results).

Following are discussions of our key product offerings for our OEM and Channel businesses, as well
as our DSG business. As our OEM and Channel segments are based upon our customers, the segments
have similar key product offerings.

OEM and Channel
Software

Our products incorporate software that simplifies data management and protection for businesses of
all sizes. We distribute the software through various methods. Some of our software is licensed
independent of the hardware to run on a range of products, including ours.

A discussion of the software we license is as follows:

Snap EDR. Snap EDR is a high-performance product that scales to meet the business-critical data
management, protection and movement requirements of large distributed enterprises. It provides an
affordable solution for enterprise-class data mobility and management of remote data, allowing users to
easily move files between Snap Servers and Windows, Linux, and UNIX servers. With integrated
encryption for secure file transfer, companies can transmit sensitive data across inexpensive Internet
connections via a public WAN. Snap EDR is a flexible product whose functionality can be expanded with
the purchase of additional software modules. Snap EDR is a Channel segment product only.

Host RAID. Host RAID technology allows our customers to leverage the I/O components already
incorporated on their servers to connect them with RAID-provided low cost protection. To date, such
functionality has been considered important for mission critical data only. Host RAID enables customers
not only to protect their data drives but also to include protection for the boot drives.

The following software products are available in combination with hardware or can be purchased as
an upgrade.

RAID. Our RAID technology reduces a customer’s dependence on the reliability of a single disk
drive by duplicating data across multiple drives. We apply our RAID technology to disk drive interfaces,
including SCSI, ATA and SATA, in order to make our RAID software, firmware and hardware available




across low- to high-end servers. The new RAID 6 standard can sustain two simultaneous drive failures in
an array without downtime or data loss. In fiscal 2005, Adaptec became one of the first vendors to ship a
SAS RAID 6 solution. IBM has standardized on Adaptec RAID 6 software as well as our Zero Channel
SAS RAID controller for IBM’s new x366 xSeries servers. We are incorporating Adaptec RAID 6 software
into other Adaptec products to provide next-generation data protection.

Server-to-Server Synchronization. For small businesses, Server-to-Server Synchronization software
provides data replication between two Snap Servers, either between two SnapOS servers (Snap Server 1100
or 2200), between GuardianOS Snap Server 4500 and 4200, and/or Windows servers. This offers customers
data protection in a small backup window and, in case of disaster, access to the data without costly
downtime. Server-to-Server Synchronization is a Channel segment product only.

Storage-Virtualization. Our storage-virtualization ~software enables organizations to simplify
management of multiple homogenous external storage systems.

Adaptec Storage Manager. Adaptec Storage Manager is a single RAID storage management system
that enables customers and IT managers to easily manage storage across DAS and SAN environments. Tt
allows the user to configure, expand, manage and monitor local and remote RAID storage from a single
client workstation. : o

GuardianOS. GuardianOS provides data management for distributed enterprises. It offers
scalability, centralized storage management and a comprehensive suite of data protection tools for
consolidating data, simplifying management and reducing storage total cost of ownership.

Components.

Host I/O.  Driven by market needs for capacity and data protection, the host I/O interfaces support
various connectivity requirements between the central processor to internal and external perlpherals
including external storage devices. Adaptec host I/O products, which incorporate our proprietary ASIC
technologies, provide customers with high-speed PCI, PCI-X and SCSI or SATA technology. These
technologies can be applied to all digital applications. We have provided next-generation SAS products to
OEMs for testing and development.

In June 2004, we completed an acquisition and licensing agreement with IBM for RAID intellectual
property and the delivery of Adaptec RAID controllers for IBM’s eServer iSeries and pSeries servers or
IBM i/p Series. In December 2004, we expanded this relationship with IBM to deliver Adaptec-branded
RAID controllers and connectivity products, which were previously branded as IBM, for IBM’s i/p Series
directly through TBM’s sales channel. Host-I/O is an OEM segment product only.

iSCSI/TCP/IP Offload Engine. iSCSI is specifically designed to enable cost-effective SANs to be
deployed to a broad market, using existing Ethernet infrastructure and protocols, and provide lower total
cost of ownership by retaining the existing networking, interoperability, manageability, and compatibility
advantages of Ethernet. iSCSI also leverages the knowledge base among IT professionals and can be as
easy to manage as DAS, while at the same time being significantly more scalable. With this technology, our
customers will be able to use inexpensive,.readily available Ethernet switches, hubs and cables to
implement iSCSI-based SANs. iSCSI HBAs are a- Channel segment product only. Our networking focus
has been on the development of products that will provide iSCSI and TOE functionality, TOE NICs and
FC/IP ASICs. We have invested over five years of research and development efforts in iSCSI products. As
a result of the strategic alliance that we entered into with ServerEngines in March 2005, we believe we
have accelerated our ability to deliver next-generation iSCSI products that can provide higher performance
(10Gby/s).



Systems.

External Storage. External storage enables highly efficient storage management without affecting
server performance and allows for improved economics by consolidating shared storage across multiple
servers. Qur Snap Appliance products enable us to deliver end-to-end block- and file-based networked
storage and software products to our channel customers. In September 2004, we had our first large design
win with IBM to provide their external storage solution (DS300 and DS400) focused on the small to
medium businesses market.

Our external storage products are both serial direct attached and SAN based JBODs that provide
direct attached and networked data storage for small to medium business and mission-critical applications,
including data warehousing, transaction processing, email archiving, streaming video, and medical imaging.
Our external storage products are highly flexible RAID products that are simple to install, scale, manage
and maintain. :

Desktop Storage Group (DSG)

Our DSG segment develops, manufactures and markets high-performance I/O connectivity, digital
media products and flexible desktop storage for users and professionals in the desktop PC and notebook
aftermarket. Qur connectivity products enable connections between computers, peripherals and user
electronic devices. Our digital media products, including video and Media Center products, enable users to
capture, create, manage and share television, digital audio and video on their computers, CDs and DVDs.
In fiscal 2005, we introduced our USB 2.0 Hard Drive Enclosure Kit, which provides an easy, fast and
efficient storage solution for personal computer users.

HO Connectivity. Qur current /O products include connectivity products based on USB 2.0,
FireWire/1394, SCSI and SATA technologies. USB 2.0 and FireWire/1394 technologies handle
high-bandwidth data transfers at high specds; they are fast, configurable and easy-to-use interface products
that connect PCs to digital video camcorders, digital cameras, external storage devices and other
peripherals. The emergence of digital video and multimedia applications has created the need to move
large amounts of data between peripherals and PCs. USB 2.0 and FireWire/1394 technologies offer a
versatile, high-speed, low-cost method of interconnecting a variety of PC peripherals and user electronic
devices. Our USB 2.0 connectivity products maintain backward-compatibility with current USB 1.1 devices.
Our FireWire/1394 connectivity products can handle high-bandwidth data transfer rates and can connect a
large number of external devices. In addition, our USB 2.0 and FireWire/1394 combo cards allow users to
add USB 2.0 and FireWire/1394 connections to their computers with a single card. Our FireWire/1394
products also include software that allows users to capture, edit and share video content.

DSG products also include the family of SCSI HBAs for desktops and laptops that bring high-speed
connectivity to the desktop, enabling users to quickly move and manage high volumes of data to and from
internal and external storage devices. We recently announced the availability of controllers based on SATA
technology that provide a cost-effective, easy-to-install connection to hard drives to enhance access to data-
and bandwidth-intensive applications, such as video, audio, games and other multimedia. Our USB 2.0 hub
products connect to an existing USB port to provide up to seven USB 2.0 connections, enabling users to
easily connect multiple devices to a single computer.

Video. Our analog video products enable users to capture and digitize audio and video from analog
sources such as camcorders and VHS tapes, then edit and transfer those images to CDs and DVDs.
VideOh! DVD enables users to convert home movies into a digital format and personalize content with
special effects, sounds, titles and interactive DVD menus. The VideOh! hardware video encoder
compresses video into a fully DVD compliant MPEG-2 or MPEG-1 video stream and may be connected to
the computer’s USB 2.0 or 1.1 port. VideOh! PCI provides the same functionality as our VideOh! DVD
product for installation in a computer card slot. VideOh! CD provides an easy way to transfer analog home
movies to Video-CD using a CD-RW drive with a USB 1.1 port.




Desktop Storage. Our USB 2.0 Hard Drive Enclosure Kit for both PC and MAC users provides a
portable solution for adding a new hard drive or extending the life of an old one, allowing the conversion
of an internal hard disk drive to an external high-speed mobile drive. The easy-to-use enclosure kit
supports a high-capacity IDE/ATA hard disk drive of up to one terabyte and supports data transfer rates
up to 480 megabits per second. ’

Sales, Marketing and Customers

We supply a broad range of storage products and maintain a sales, distribution, service, and support
infrastructure to help customers implement these products.

We sell our products through our sales force to OEMs worldwide, who market our products under
their brands. We work closely with-our OEM customers to design and integrate current and next
generation products to meet the specific Tequirements of end users. The OEM sales force focuses on

developing relationships with OEM customers. The sales process involved in gaining major design wins can

be complex, lengthy, and expensive, Sales to these OEM customers accounted for approximately 62% of
our total gross revenues in fiscal 2005.

We also sell through our sales force to. distribution customers worldwide, who market our products -

under the Adaptec brand; they, in turn, sell to VARSs, systems integrators and retail customers. We also sell
directly to direct marketers, VARs and retail customers who market our products under the Adaptec
brand. We provide training and support-for our distribution customers and to VARs and systems
integrators. We also sell board-based products and provide technical support to end users worldwide
through major computer-product retailers. Sales to distribution customers accounted for approximately
38% of our total gross revenues in fiscal 2005.

We émphasize customer support as a key element of our marketing strategy and maintain technical,

applications groups at our corporate headquarters and in the field. Such support includes assisting current,
and prospective customers in the use of our products, writing application notes and conducting semmars
for system designers. The systems-level expertise and software experience of our engineering staff are also
available to customers with particularly difficult design problems A high level of customer support is also
maintained through technical support hotlines, email and dial-in-fax capabilities.

Our top revenue-based OEM customers in fiscal 2005, in alphabetical order, were Dell, Fujitsu-
Siemens, Hewlett-Packard, IBM, and Intel. Our top revenue-based distributors in fiscal 2005, in
alphabetical order, were CPI Computer Partner Handels GmbH, Ideal Hardware, Ingram Micro, Synnex,
and Tech Data. We also sell direct to a number of manufacturing facilities, including Hon Hai Precision,
Inventec, Kingston, Sanmina-SCI, and Solectron, which generally act as third-party marufacturers for our
OEM customers. Our top revenue-based retail customers in the DSG segment in fiscal 2005,
alphabencal order, were Best Buy, Circuit City, CompUSA, Fry’s Electronics, and Micro Center. .

In fiscal 2005, IBM and Dell accounted for 24% and 11% of out net revenues, respectively. In fiscal
2004, IBM and Dell accounted for 18% and 10% of our total net revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2003,
Dell, IBM, Hewlett-Packard and Ingram Micro accounted for 14%, 13%, 11% and 10% of our total net
revenues, respectively. Our sales to Ingram Micro are currently made under two separate master purchase
agreements, covering sales to the United States, Canada, Latin America, Asia, and Europe. These master
purchase agreements, similar to agreements we may have in place with other customers, are intended to
facilitate purchase transactions between Ingram Micro and Adaptec and do not require Ingram Micro to
make purchases from us in any prescribed amount.

We have entered into several arrangements with IBM over the past several years. In May 2000, we
entered into a patent cross-license agreement with IBM, which was subsequently amended in March 2002,
and obtained a release of past infringement claims made prior to January 1, 2000 and received the right to
use certain IBM patents from January 1, 2000 through June 30, 2007. Additionally, we granted IBM a




license to use all of our patents for the same period. In March 2002, we entered into a non-exclusive,
perpetual technology licensing agreement and an exclusive three-year product supply agreement with IBM.
The technology licensing agreement grants us the right to use IBM’s ServeRAID technology for our
internal and external RAID products. Under the product supply agreement, we deliver RAID software,
firmware and hardware to IBM for use in IBM’s xSeries servers. In June 2004, we completed an acquisition
and licensing agreement with IBM for RAID intellectual property and the delivery of Adaptec RAID
controllers for IBM’s eServer iSeries and pSeries servers or IBM i/p Series. In December 2004, we
expanded the i/p Series relationship with IBM to deliver Adaptec-branded RAID controllers and
connectivity products, which were previously branded as IBM, for IBM’s i/p Series directly through IBM’s
sales channel. For further discussion on agreements between us and IBM, please refer to Notes 2 and 13 to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

International

We maintain operations in nine countries and sell our products in additional countries through various
representatives and distributors. We believe this geographic diversity allows us to draw on business and
technical expertise from an international workforce, provides stability to our operations and revenue
streams to offset geographic economic trends and offers us an opportunity to penetrate new markets,

A summary of our net revenue and net property, plant and equipment by geographic area is set forth
in Note 17 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. We generated approximately 65% of our
overall gross revenues in 2005 from outside of the United States. These sales include sales to foreign
subsidiaries of U.S. companies. A majority of our net revenues originating outside the United States was
from commercial customers rather than foreign governments.

Competition

The markets for all of our products within the OEM, Channel and DSG segments are highly
competitive and are characterized by rapid technological advances, frequent new product introductions,
evolving industry and customer standards, and competitive price pressures. Our competitive strategy is to
continue to leverage our technical expertise and concentrate on delivering a comprehensive set of storage
products that simplify storage management for organizations of all sizes. We design advanced features into
our products, with a particular emphasis on data transfer rates, software-defined features and compatibility
with major operating systems and most peripherals.

We believe the principal competitive factors in the markets for our OEM and Channel products are:
product price/performance, product features and functionality, reliability, technical service and support,
scalability and interoperability, and brand awareness. In the components portion of our OEM and Channel
businesses, we compete primarily with product offerings of Applied Micro Circuits Corporation (3Ware),
Broadcom, LSI Logic and Promise. In the systems portion of our OEM and Channel businesses, we
compete with product offerings of Dell, Dot Hill, EMC, HP, LSI Logic (Engenio), Network Appliance,
Xyratex and several other smaller companies.

We believe the principal competitive factors in the markets for our DSG products are: product price/
performance, brand awareness and distribution breadth, reliability, and technical service and support. In
the DSG segment, our SCSI products compete primarily against products using technology alternatives
such as USB and FireWire/1394, which are available from companies such as Belkin and SIIG, and our
digital media products compete with product offerings of Hauppauge Computer Works and Pinnacle
Systems. Our desktop storage solutions also compete against products using alternative technologies, such
as flash drives and removable media storage, which are available from a variety of companies.




Backlog

Due to industry practice that allows customers to change or cancel orders with limited advance notice
prior to shipment, we do not believe that backlog as of any particular date is indicative of future sales, Our
backlog at March 31, 2005 was approximately $25.3 million, consisting of $19.9 million related to our OEM
segment, $3.7 million related to our Channel segment and $1.7 million related to our DSG segment. Our
backlog at March 31, 2004 was approximately $25.5 million. We typically receive orders for our products
within two weeks or less of the desired delivery date and most orders are subject to rescheduling and/or
cancellation with little or no penalty. We maintain remote inventory locations at many of our major
OEM s sites. product ordering and dehvery occur when the OEM customer accepts our product into their
1nventory

Manufacturing

Our manufacturing operations are located in Singapore. Our products make extensive use of standard
logic, printed circuit boards and random access memory from several outside suppliers in addition to our
custom designed integrated circuits. We employ Surface Mount Technology Corporation, or SMTC, to
manufacture certain of our ServeRAID products that are sold to IBM. We employ Celestica, Inc. and Jabil
Circuit, Inc. to manufacture products related to the IBM i/p Series RAID business. We also employ
Quanta Computer, Inc. and Sanmina-SCI. Corporation to manufacture certain products related to the
acquisition of Snap Appliance, Inc. We believe that SMTC, Celestica, Jabil Circuit, Quanta Computer and
- Sanmina-SCI will be able to meet our antlclpated needs for both current and future technologies.

All semiconductor wafers used in manufacturmg our products are processed to our specifications by
outside suppliers. We purchase processed wafers from Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, or
TSMC and IBM. We believe that TSMC and IBM will be able to meet our anticipated needs for both
current and future technologies. Our final assembly and test operations are performed by Amkor
Technology and Advanced Semiconductor Engineering.

Our manufacturing facility in Singapore has earned ISO-9002 certification, reflecting compliance to a
high level of quality in product design, development and production.

Patents and Licenses

We seek to establish and maintain our proprietary rights in our technology and products through the
use of patents, copyrights and trade secret laws. We maintain a patent award program that eicourages our:
engineers to document patentable inventions, and we have applied for and continue to apply for patents in’
the United States and in foreign countries. As of March 31, 2005, we had 347 issued patents, expiring
between 2007 and 2023, covering various -aspects of our technologies. We believe our patents and other
intellectual property rights have value, but we do not consider any single patent to be essential to our
business. We also seek to maintain our trade secrets and confidential information by non-disclosure
policies and through the use of appropriate confidentiality agreements.

In May 2000, we entered into a patent cross-license agreement with IBM. Under the agreement, we
received a-release from infringement claims prior to January 1, 2000 and received the right to use certain -
of IBM’s patents through June 30, 2004. In consideration, we paid, in annual installments, an aggregate
patent fee of $13.3 million through June 30, 2004, and we granted IBM a license to use all of our patents '
for the same period. ITn March 2002, the patent cross-license agreement was amended to extend the term.to
June 30, 2007, ‘

Research and Deveﬂopmém

We continually enhance our existing products and develop new products to meet changing customer
demands. The high technology industry is characterized by rapid technological innovation, evolving '
industry standards, changes in customer requirements and new product introductions and enhancements.
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We believe that our future performance will depend in large part on our ability to maintain and enhance
our current product line, develop new products that achieve market acceptance, maintain competitiveness
and meet an expanding range of customer requirements. To achieve this objective, we intend to continue to
leverage our technical expertise and product innovation capabilities to address storage-access products
across a broad range of users and platforms. We also expect to continue to make acquisitions and
investments where appropriate.

Approximately one-third of our employees are engaged in research and development. In fiscal 2005,
2004 and 2003, our research and development expenses were $113.8 million, or 24% of total net revenues,
$102.8 million, or 23% of total net revenues and $118.4 million, or 29% of total net revenues, respectively.
Research and development expenses primarily consist of salaries and related costs of employees engaged
in ongoing research, design and development activities, amortization of purchased technology and
subcontracting costs. ‘

We entered into two strategic alliances in fiscal 2005 with ServerEngines and Vitesse related to a
portion of our ASIC development. These alliances are further discussed in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.”

We anticipate that we will continue to have significant research and development expenditures in the
future in order to continue to offer innovative, high-quality products and services to maintain and enhance
our competitive position. Our investment in research and development primarily focuses on developing
new products for external storage, storage software and server storage markets. We also invest in research
and development of new technologies, including iSCSI, SATA and SAS.

Environmental Laws

Certain of our operations involve the use of substances regulated. under various federal, state and
international environmental laws. It is our policy to apply strict standards for environmental protection to
sites inside and outside the United States, even if not subject to regulations imposed by local governments.

The European Parliament has enacted the Restriction on Use of Hazardous Substances Directive, or
RoHS Directive, which restricts the sale of new electrical and electronic equipment containing certain
hazardous substances, including lead, which is currently used in some of the products we manufacture. We
are working to modify our manufacturing processes to eliminate lead from products we put on the market
by July 1, 2006 as required by the RoHIS Directive. This may require additional capital expenditures. In
addition, the costs associated with compliance may negatively impact our results of operations and
competitive position. We are also working with our suppliers to redesign or reformulate their components
containing lead to reduce or eliminate lead in our products. Based upon current information available to
us, we believe that we will be able to comply with the RoHS Directive within the applicable time period.
However, if we do not comply with this Directive, we may suffer a loss of revenue, be unable to sell in
certain markets or countries and suffer competitive disadvantage.

The European Parliament has also recently finalized the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Directive, or WEEE Directive, which makes producers of electrical and electronic equipment financially
responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and future covered products.
We may incur financial responsibility for the collection, recycling, treatment or disposal of products
covered under the WEEE Directive. Because the EU member states have not fully implemented the
WEEE Directive, the nature and extent of the costs to comply and fees or penalties associated with
non-compliance are unknown at this time. Costs to comply with the WEEE Directive and similar future
legislation, if applicable, may also include legal and regulatory costs and insurance costs. We may also be
required to take reserves for costs associated with compliance with these regulations.

Employees

As of March 31, 2005, we had 1,525 employees. We believe that we currently have favorable employee
relations. None of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement, nor have we ever
experienced work stoppages.

11




RISK FACTORS

Our business faces significant risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face.
Additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may also impair our
business operations. If any of the events or circumstances described in the following risks actually occurs,
our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common
stock could decline. ;

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past, and are likely to continue to fluctuate, and if our future '
results are below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the market price of our common stock would
likely decline significantly. Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated in the past, and are likely to vary :
significantly in the future, based on a number of factors related to our industry and the markets for our
products. Factors that are likely to cause our operating results to fluctuate include those discussed in the
risk factors below. In addition, in fiscal 2005, our operating results were materially affected by unusual
charges, including the write-off of acqulred in-process technology from the acquisitions of the i/p Series’
RAID business from IBM and Snap Appliance, impairment of goodwill related to the Channel segment !
and the recording of a valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets.

Our operating expenses are largely based on ant1crpated revenues, . and a large portion of our
expenses, including those related to rent and salaries, are fixed in the short term. As a result, lower than .
anticipated revenues for any reason could cause significant variations in our operating results from quarter
to quarter. : “

Due to the factors summarized above, and the other risks described in this section, we believe that you
should not rely on period-to-period comparisons of our financial results as an indication of our future
performance. In the event that our operating results fall below the expectations of market analysts or
investors, the market price of our common stock 'could decline substantially.

Our operatmg results may be adversely affected by unfavorable economic and market conditions and the
uncertain geopolmcal environment. Adverse economlc conditions in some markets may impact our business,
“which could result in:

* Reduced demand for our products as a result of a decrease in capital spending by our customers;
° Increased prlce competition for_ our products,,

» Increased risk of excess and obsolete inventories;

° Excess facilities and manufacturing capacity; and

o Higher overhead costs as a percentage of revenues.

Demand for our products would likely be negatively affected if demand in the server and network |
storage markets declines. For example, demand in the server market declined slightly in fiscal 2002 and
fiscal 2003, which contributed to a decline in our net revenues. It is difficult to predict future server sales
growth, if any. In addition, other technologies may replace the technologies used in our existing products ;
and the acceptance of our products using new technologles in the market may not be widespread, which
could adversely affect our revenues.

Because our sales are made by means of standard purchase orders rather than long-term contracts, if demand
Jfor our customers’ products declines or if our customers do not control their inventories effectively, they may cancel
or reschedule shipments previously ordered from us or reduce their-levels of purchases from us. The volume and -
timing of orders received during a quarter are difficult to forecast. Our customers generally order based on ‘
their forecasts and they frequently encounter uncertain and changing demand for their products. If
demand falls below such forecasts or if our customers do not control their inventories effectively, they may
cancel or reschedule shipments previously ordered from us. Our customers have from time to time in the
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past canceled or rescheduled shipments previously ordered from us, and we cannot assure you that they
will not do so in the future. In addition, because our sales are made by means of standard purchase orders
rather than long-term contracts, we cannot assure you that these customers will continue to purchase
quantities of our products at current levels, or at all. Historically, we have set our operating budget based
on forecasts of future revenues because we do not have significant backlog. Because much of our operating
budget is relatively fixed in the short-term, if revenues do not meet our expectatlons then our financial
results will be adversely affected.

We depend on a few key customers and the loss of any of them could significantly reduce our revenues.
Historically, a small number of our customers has accounted for a significant portion of our revenues,
During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, sales to the ten customers from which we received the greatest
revenues accounted for approximately 73%, 70% and 73% of our total gross revenues, respectively. In
addition, IBM represented 24%, 18% and 13%, respectively, of our total net revenues in fiscal years 2003,
2004 and 2003, and Dell represented 11%, 10% and 14%, respectively, of our total net revenues in fiscal
years 2005, 2004 and 2003. We expect IBM to represent an even larger percentage of our total net revenues
in future periods as a result of our acquisition of the IBM i/p Series RAID business and our supply
agreement with IBM. We believe that our major customers continually evaluate whether or not to purchase
products from alternate or additional sources. Additionally, customers’ economic and market conditions
frequently change. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that a major customer will not reduce, delay or
eliminate its purchases from us, which would likely cause our revenues to decline. In addition, we do not
carry credit insurance on our accounts receivables and any difficulty in collecting outstanding amounts due
from our customers, particularly customers that place larger orders or experience financial difficulties,
could adversely affect our revenues and our net income. Because our sales are made by means of standard
purchase orders rather than long-term contracts, we cannot assure you that these customers will continue
to purchase quantities of our products at current levels, or at all.

We expect that the products we are developing for the network storage marketplace will be an important
component of our anticipated future growth, and these products may not be accepted by the market or reach the
market in a timely fashion. 'We believe that developing products for the network storage marketplace will be
an important component of our anticipated future growth, and we have attempted to accelerate such
product development efforts through acquisitions. For example, in July 2004, we acquired Snap
Appliance, Inc., a provider of NAS products, in February 2004, we acquired Elipsan, a provider of
networked storage infrastructure software, and in April 2003, we acquired Eurologic, a provider of external
and networked storage products. The ranarketplace for advanced storage products is highly competitive.
While we are focusing on products employing iSCSI technology for this market, other companies are also
focusing on network storage products based on identified technologies that include, but are not limited to,
iSCSI. As a result, our technology may never be broadly adopted. Even if iSCSI technology achieves broad
market acceptance, our early technological advantage in this field may not afford us the advantages we had
anticipated if such acceptance continues to be delayed. In addition, there are substantial risks that known
and unknown challenges to successful deployment of our products, and of products incorporating our
products, will cause delays in their reaching the market. If iSCSI technology and our network storage
products, and our customers’ products using our technology, do not achieve a broad level of market
acceptance, or if we encounter substantial delays in entering the market, our growth will likely be impaired.

Our dependence on new products may cause our net revenues to fluctuate or decline. Our future success
significantly -depends upon our completing and introducing enhanced and new products at competitive
prices and performance levels in a timely manner. The success of new product introductions depends on
several factors, including the following:

* Designing products to meet customer needs;

* Product costs;
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» Timely completion and introduction of new product designs;

e Quality of new products;

o Differentiation of new products from those of our competitors; and
° Market acceptance of our products.

Our product life cycles in each of our segments may be as brief as 12 months. As a result, we believe
that we will.continue to incur significant expenditures for research and development in the future. We may
fail to identify new product opportunities and may not develop and bring new products to market in a
timely manner. In addition, products.or technologies developed by others may render our products or
technologies obsolete or noncompetitive, or our targeted customers may not select our products for design
or integration into their products. The failure of any of our new product development efforts could have an
adverse effect on our business and financial results.

- 'We have introduced RAID-enabled products based on the next generation SATA technology and
delivered our products based on SAS technology to certain major OEMs for testing and integration. We
will not succeed in generating significant revenues from our new SATA and SAS technology products if the
market does not adapt to these new technologies, which would, over time, adversely affect our net
revenues and operating results.

Our reliance on industry standards and technological changes in the marketplace may cause our net revenues
to fluctuate or decline. The computer industry is characterized by various, evolving standards and protocols.
We design our products to conform to certain industry standards and protocols such as the following:

Technologies:

e ATA : B ° RAID

» Fibre channel ° SAS
 FireWire/1394 ' . ° SATA

» IPsec ’ e SCSI
e iSCSI o o SMI-S

° PCI > Ultra DMA
o PCI-Express
‘ > USB

o PCI-X

Operating Systems: :

e Linux > 0§72

e Macintosh ' ' " . ‘ ° UNIX

o Netware ° Windows

If useriacceptance of these standards declines, or if new standards emerge, and if we do not anticipate
these changes and develop new products, these changes could adversely affect our business and financial
results. ' : '

If we lose the cooperation of other hardware and software producers whose products are integral to ours, our
ability to sustain or grow our revenues could be adversely affected. We must design our products to operate
effectively with a variety of hardware and software products supplied by other manufacturers, including the
following: '

e Microprocessors;
e Peripherals; and

» Operating system software.
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We depend on significant cooperation from these manufacturers to achieve our design objectives and
develop products that operate successfully with their products. These companies could, from time to time,
elect to make it more difficult for us to design our products for successful operability with their products.
For example, if one or more of these companies were to determine that as a result of competition or other
factors our technology or products would not be broadly accepted by the markets we target, these
companies may no longer work with us to plan for new products and new generations of our products,
which would make it more difficult to introduce products on a timely basis or at all. Further, some of these
companies might decide not to continue to offer products that are compatible with our technology and our
markets could contract. If any of these events were to occur, our revenue could be adversely affected.

We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs upon us and
may adversely affect our business. The European Parliament has enacted the Restriction on Use of
Hazardous Substances Directive, or RoHS Directive, which restricts the sale of new electrical and
electronic equipment containing certain hazardous substances, including lead that is currently used in
some of the products we manufacture. We are working to modify our manufacturing processes to eliminate
lead from products we sell by July 1, 2006, as required by the RoHS Directive. This may require us to make
additional capital expenditures. In addition the costs associated with compliance may negatively impact our
operating results and competitive position. We are also working with our suppliers to redesign or
reformulate their components containing lead to reduce or eliminate lead in our products. If we are unable
to comply with this Directive, we may suffer a loss of revenue, be unable to sell affected products in certain
markets or countries and be at a competitive disadvantage.

The European Parliament has also recently finalized the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Directive, or WEEE Directive, which makes producers of electrical and electronic equipment financially
responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and future covered products.
We may incur financial responsibility for the collection, recycling, treatment or disposal of products
covered under the WEEE Directive. Because the EU member states have not fully implemented the
WEEE Directive, the nature and extent of the costs to comply and fees or penalties associated with
non-compliance are unknown at this time. Costs to comply with the WEEE Directive and similar future
legislation, if applicable, may also include legal and regulatory costs and insurance costs. We may also be
required to take reserves for costs associated with compliance with these regulations.

We entered into strategic alliances with Vitesse for the development of our SAS ROC product and with
ServerEngines to advance our development of iSCSI products, and if these companies fail to develop and bring new
products to market in a timely manner it could result in an adverse effect on our business and financial results. In
January 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with Vitesse for it to develop and market the next
generation of our SAS products. In March 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with ServerEngines to
develop and market the next generation of our IP storage products, such as 10Gb iSCSI. Accordingly, we
are at risk that Vitesse and ServerEngines may encounter challenges in fulfilling their responsibilities
under these alliances, such as timely completing and introducing new product designs, maintaining the
quality of new products, minimizing product costs, differentiating new products from those of our
competitors and achieving market acceptance of our products. The failure of this new product
development effort could have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

If we do not provide adequate support during our customers’ design and development stage, or if we are unable
to provide such support in a timely manner, we may lose revenues to our competitors. Certain of our products are
designed to meet our customers’ specifications and, to the extent we are not able to meet these
expectations in a timely manner or provide adequate support during our customers’ design and
development stage, our customers may choose to buy similar products from another company. If this were
to occur we may lose revenues and market share to our competitors.
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If we are unable to compete effectively, our net revenues could be adversely affected. The markets for all of
our products are intensely competitive -and are characterized by the following:

* Rapid technological advances;

* Frequent new product introductions;
o Evolving industry standards; and

° Pricé erbsion.

Consequently, we must continue to enhance our products on a timely basis to keep pace with market
demands. If we do not do so, or if our competition is more effective in developing products that meet the'
needs of our existing and potential customers, we may lose market share and not participate in the future
growth of our target markets. For example, intense competition in the transition from products employing
Ultra 160 technology to products employing Ultra 320 technology has adversely affected revenues from our
SCSI products. Our future success will depend on the level of acceptance of our external storage products
and products based on the next generation SATA and SAS technologies by new and existing customers. In
addition, we expect that our future success will depend significantly on our ability to participate in the
ongoing development of the network storage market in which we face intense competition from other
companies that are also focusing on networked storage products.

We cannot assure you that we will have sufficient resources to accomplish all of the following:
o Satisfy any growth in demand for our products;

» Make timely intr-odu.’ctionsb of new products;

 Compete successfully in the future against existing or potential competitors;

» Provide OEMs with design specifications in a timely manner; and

¢ Prevent price competition from eroding margins.

Costs associated with acquisitions or strategic alliances may adversely affect our results of operations, which
could be exacerbated if we are unable to integrate the acquired companies, products or technologies. In fiscal
2005, we acquired Snap Appliance, and the i/p Series RAID business from IBM In fiscal 2004, we acquired
Elipsan, ICP vortex, a provider of a broad range of hardware and software RAID data protection products,
and Eurologic, a provider of external and networked storage products. In addition, we enter into strategic
alliances from time to time with other companies. For example, we entered into a technology licensing
agreement with [BM in fiscal 2002. As part of our overall trategy, we may continue to acquire or invést in
complementary companies, products or technologies and enter into strategic alliances with other
companies. In order to be successful in these activities, we must:

~  Conduct acquisitions that are timely, relative to existing business opportunities;
¢ Successfully prevail over competing bidders for target acquisitions at an acceptable price;
e Invest in companies and technologies that contribute to the growth of our business;

» Incorporate acquired operations into our business and maintain uniform standards, controls and
procedures;

"» Retain the key employees of the acquired operations; and
¢ Develop the capabilities necessary to expldit newly acquired technologies.

The benefits of acquisitions or strategic alliances may prove to be less than anticipated and may not
outweigh the costs reported in our financial statements. Completing any potential future acquisitions or
strategic alliances could cause significant diversions of management time and resources. If we acquire new
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businesses, products or technologies in the future, we may be required to assume warranty claims or other
contingent liabilities, including liabilities unknown at the time of acquisition, and amortize significant
amounts of other intangible assets and, over time, recognize significant charges for impairment of goodwill,
other intangible assets or other losses. If we consummate any potential future acquisitions in which the
consideration consists of stock or other securities, our existing stockholders’ ownership may be significantly
dituted. If we proceed with any potential future acquisitions in which the consideration is cash, we may be
required to use a substantial portion of our available cash. In addition, we may be required to invest
significant resources in order to perform under a strategic alliance or to complete an acquisition, which
could adversely affect our results of operations, at least in the short-term, even if we believe the strategic
alliance or acquisition will benefit us in the long-term. We may not be successful in overcoming these risks
or any other problems encountered in connection with these or other business combinations, investments
or strategic alliances. These transactions may adversely affect our business, financial position and
operating results.

Product quality problems could lead to reduced revenues and gross margins. We produce highly complex
products that incorporate leading-edge technologies, including both hardware and software. Software
often contains “bugs” which can interfere with expected operations. We cannot assure you that our
pre-shipment testing programs will be adequate to detect all defects which might interfere with customer
satisfaction, reduce sales opportunities, or affect our gross margins if the costs of remedying the problems
exceed reserves established for that purpose. An inability to cure a product defect could result in the
failure of a product line, and withdrawal, at least temporarily, from a product or market segment, damage
to our reputation, inventory costs, product reengineering expenses, and a material impact on revenues and
gross margins.

If there is a shortage of components used in our customers’ products, our sales may decline, which could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial position. If our customers are unable to purchase
certain components which are embedded into their products, their demand for our products may decline.
For example, beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we experienced the impact of other companies’
enterprise drive shortages, which reduced the demand for our SCSl-related products from our OEM and
channel customers. This negatively affected our revenues in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 and we expect
that it will impact the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Similar shortages of components used in our customers’
products could adversely affect our net revenues and financial results in future periods.

The manufacture and introduction of our products is highly complex. We confront challenges in the
manufacturing process that require us to:

* Maintain a competitive manufacturing cost structure;

* Implement the latest process technologies required to manufacture new products;
» Exercise stringent quality control measures to ensure high yields;

» Effectively manage inventory levels;

» Effectively manage the subcontractors engaged in the wafer fabrication, test and assembly of
products; and

» Update equipment and facilities as required for leading-edge production capabilities.

We cannot assure you that problems with our manufacturing process may not occur in the future. If
any such problems with our manufacturing process were to occur, we might not be able to meet the
demands of our customers, which could harm our reputation, result in the loss of customers and adversely
affect our net revenues and financial results in future periods.

We currently purchase all of the finished production silicon wafers used in our products from wafer suppliers,
and if they fail to meet our manufacturing needs, it would delay our production and our product shipments to

17

bi'*rj




customers and negatively affect our operations. Independent foundries manufacture to our specifications all
of the finished silicon wafers used for our products. We currently purchase finished production silicon
wafers used in our products from' Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, or TSMC, and IBM.
The manufacture of semiconductor devices is sensitive to a wide variety of factors, including the following:

_° The availability of raw materials;
o The availability of manufacturing capacity;
° Transitidn‘to smalier gebmetries of semicoﬁductdr deVices; ‘
o The level of contaminants in the manufacturlng env1ronmer1t
o Impurities in the materials used; and t
o The performance of personnel and equipment.

We cannot assure you that manufacturing problems may not occur in the future. A shortage of raw
materials or production capacity could lead our wafer suppliers to allocate available capacity to other
customers. Any-prolonged inability to obtain wafers with competitive performance and cost attributes,
adequate yields or timely deliveries would delay our production and our product shipments, and could
have an adverse effect on our business and financial results. We expect that our wafer suppliers will
continually seek to convert their processes for manufacturing wafers to more advanced process
technologies. Such conversions entail inherent technological risks that can affect yields and delivery times.
If for any reason the wafer suppliers we use are unable or unwilling to satisfy our wafer needs, we will be
required to identify and qualify additional suppliers. Additional wafer suppliers may be unavailable, may
take significant amounts of time to qualify or may be unable to satisfy our requirements on a timely basis.

We have entered into an expanded relationship with IBM and if the revenue streams are less than anticipated
we may incur an impairment of our asset. In December 2004, we entered into an expanded relationship with
IBM that enables us to sell certain Adaptec-branded RAID controllers and connectivity products, which
were previously branded as IBM, for IBM’s i/p Series directly through IBM’s sales channel. As part of this
agreement, we committed to payments totaling up to $52.1 million. If, in the future, the revenue we expect
to generate from this agreement is less than we currently anticipate, we could incur an impairment of this
asset which could adversely affect our financial results. For further discussion on the expanded relationship
with IBM, please refer to Note 13 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have entered into an expanded relationship with IBM and if we do not fulfill our responsibilities under this
agreement, it could result in a loss of revenues or reduced gross margins. In June 2004, we entered into an
expanded relationship with IBM to supply external storage products and further expanded this relationship
in December 2004. We may encounter challenges in fulfilling our responsibilities under this expanded
relationship such as, timely completion and introduction of product designs to meet the specifications of
IBM, quality of new products introduced, product costs, sales forecasting, material planning and inventory
management to meet its demand forecast. If we do not fulfill our responsibilities under this agreement,
product shipments could be affected, which could result in delayed or lost revenues and customer
dissatisfaction. In addition, if we are not successful in achieving our targeted costs and pricing assumptions,
we could centinue to incur losses from the sale of our products or reduced gross margins. For example, in
fiscal 2005, gross margins were adversely impacted due to negative margins obtained from our new
external storage products sold to IBM. Costs associated with our new external storage products sold to
IBM were higher as a result of increased costs for initial components purchases from suppliers, start-up
production costs, high overhead costs associated with lower volumes and the cost of expediting
components from suppliers and products to IBM. For further discussion on the expanded relationship with
IBM, please refer to Notes 2 and 13 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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We depend on subcontractors, and if they fail to meet our manufacturing needs, it could delay shipments of our
products and result in the loss of customers. 'We rely on subcontractors for the assembly and packaging of the
integrated circuits included in our products and for the assembly and manufacturing of a portion of our
systems products. We have no long-term agreements with our assembly and packaging subcontractors. We
have, from time to time, used board subcontractors to better balance production runs and capacity. For
example, we employ Quanta Computer, Inc. and Sanmina-SCI Corporation to manufacture certain
products related to the acquisition of Snap Appliance. We also employ Celestica, Inc. and Jabil
Circuit, Inc. to manufacture products related to the IBM i/p Series RAID business. We cannot assure you
these subcontractors will continue to be able and willing to meet our requirements for these components
or services. For example, in the third quarter of fiscal 2005, Quanta Computer, Inc. could not meet our
manufacturing needs and as a result initial product delivery dates committed to customers were not met,
Any significant disruption in supplies from or degradation in the quality of components or services
supplied by, these subcontractors could delay shipments and result in the loss of customers or revenues,
which could have an adverse effect on our financial results.

We depend on the efforts of our distributors, which if reduced, could result in a loss of sales of our products in
favor of competitive offerings. 'We derived approximately 38% of our gross revenues for fiscal 2005 from
independent distributor and reseller channels. Our financial results could be adversely affected if our
relationships with these distributors or resellers were to deteriorate or if the financial condition of these
distributors or resellers were to declina.

Our distributors generally offer & diverse array of products from several different manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are at risk that these distributors may give higher priority to selling products from other
suppliers. A reduction in sales efforts by our current distributors could adversely affect our business and
financial results. Our distributors build inventories in anticipation of future sales, and if such sales do not
occur as rapidly as they anticipate, our distributors will decrease the size of their product orders. If we
decrease our price protection or distributor-incentive programs, our distributors may also decrease their
orders from us. In addition, we have from time to time taken actions to reduce levels of products at
distributors and may do so in the future. These actions may affect our net revenues and negatively affect
our financial results.

We reorganized our business segments to be focused on customers and have planned significant system
enhancements and improvements, and these changes could adversely impact our business if not adequately
managed and controlled. In the second quarter of fiscal 2005 and in response to the Snap Appliance
acquisition in July 2004, we refined our internal organizational structure to operate in three reportable
segments: OEM, Channel and DSG. Whereas historically our former SSG and SNG segments each offered
distinct products across our entire customer base, the new OEM and Channel segments offer an integrated
set of products to customers that are specific to the segment. The reorganization has placed demands on
our management, operational and financial infrastructure. In addition, management is in the process of
enhancing certain systems and processes, such as in the supply chain area. These system enhancements and
improvements require expenditures and allocation of management resources. If these improvements are
not implemented successfully, our ability to manage our new organization could be impaired. In addition,
we may be required to incur additional expenditures to address these issues, which could harm our
financial position. :

If we do not meet our restructuring objectives, we may have to implement additional plans in order to reduce
our operating costs and may, as a result, incur additional material restructuring charges. We have implemented
several restructuring plans to reduce our operating costs in fiscal 2003, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, and
recorded related restructuring charges of $5.9 million, $4.3 million and $14.3 million, respectively. The
plans included primarily the reduction of our workforce and the consolidation of our manufacturing
operations in Singapore. The goals of these plans were to support future growth opportunities, focus on
investments that grow revenues and increase operating margins. If we do not meet our restructuring
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objectives, we may have to implement additional restructuring plans to reduce our operating costs, which
could cause us to incur material restructuring charges. Further, these restructuring plans may not achieve .
the goals we had in implementing them due to such factors as significant costs or restrictions that may be
imposed in some international locales on workforce reductions and a potential adverse effect on employee
morale that could harm our efficiency and our ability to act quickly and effectively in the rapidly changing
technology markets in which we sell our products.

Some of our products contam ‘open source” soﬁware, and any failure to comply with the terms of one or more
of these open source licenses could negatively affect our business. Some of our products are distributed with
software licensed by its authors or other third parties under so-called “open source” licenses, including, for
example, the GNU General Public License, or GPL, GNU Lesser General Public License, or LGPL, the
Mozilla Pubhc License, the BSD License, and the Apache License. Some of those licenses may requlre asa
condition of the license that we make available source code for modifications or derivative works we create
based upon, incorporating, or using the open sou;ce software, that we provide notices with our products,
and/or that we license such modifications or derivative works under the terms of a particular open source -
license or other license granting third parties certain rights of further use. If an author or other third party
that distributes such open source software were to allege that we had not complied with the conditions. of
one or more of those open source licenses, we could be required to incur legal expenses in defending
against such allegations, and if our defenses were not successful we could be enjoined from distribution of
the products that contained the open source software and required to either make the source code for the
open source software available, to grant third parties certain rights of further use of our software, or to’
remove the open source software from our products, which could dlsrupt our distribution and sale of some
of our products In addition, if we combine our proprietary software with open source software in a certain
manner, we could under some of the open source licenses be required to release the source code of our
proprietary software. If an author or other third party that distributes open source software were to obtain-
a judgment agamst us based on allegations that we had not complied with the terms of any such open,

“source licenses, we ‘could also be subject to 11ab111ty for copyright infringement damages and breach of-
contract for our past distribution of such open source software.

Our operations depend on key personnel, the loss of whom could affect the growth and success of our business.
In order to be successful, we must retain and motivate our executives, the general managers of our business;
segments, our principal engineer$ and other key employees, including those in managerial, technical,
‘marketing and information technology support positions. In particular, our product generation efforts
depend on h1r1ng and retaining qualified engineers. Competition for experienced management, technical,
“marketing ‘and support personnel remains intense. For example, we transitioned certain research and‘l
development’ efforts to India, where we have experienced significant competition in our efforts to attract
and retain qualified engineers. In addition, with the exception of a few employees with whom we entered
into employment agreements in connection with acquisition transactions, we do not have employment
contracts w1th our key employees, mcludmg any of our executlve officers. The loss of any of these key.
employees could have a significant impact on our ‘operations. We also must continie to motivate
employees and keep them focused on our strategles and goals, which may be particularly difficult due to
morale challenges posed by workforce' reductions and general uncertamty '

Qur international operations invelve risks, and may be subject to political or other non-economic barriers to
our being able to sell our products in certain countries, local economic condztwns that reduce demand for our
products among our target markets, and potential disruption in the supply of necessary components. Many of our
‘subcontractors are primarily located in Asia and we have sales offices and customers located throughout
Europe, Japan and other countries. Our international operations and sales are subject to political and
economic risks, mcludlng political instability, currency controls, changes in import/export regulations,
tariffs and freight rates. In addition, because our primary wafer suppher TSMC, is located in Taiwan, we
‘may be subject to certain risks resulting from political 1nstab111ty in Taiwan, including conflicts between
Taiwan and the People’s Republic of China. These and other international risks could result in the creation
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of political or other non-economic barriers to our being able to sell our products in certain countries,
create local economic conditions that reduce demand for our products among our target market or expose
us to potential disruption in the supply of necessary components or otherwise adversely affect our ability to
generate revenue and operate effectively.

We depend on third parties to transport our products. 'We rely on independent freight forwarders to move
our products between manufacturing plants and our customers. Any transport or delivery problems
because of their errors, or because of unforeseen interruptions in their activities due to factors such as
strikes, political instability, terrorism, natural disasters and accidents, could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations and ultimately impact our relationship with our customers.

If the carrying value of our long-lived assets is not recoverable, an impairment loss must be recognized which
would adversely affect our financial results. Certain events or changes in circumstances would require us to
assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of our long-lived assets. In fiscal 2005, we recorded a
goodwill impairment charge of $52.3 million related to our Channel segment. In fiscal 2004, we recorded
an impairment charge of $5.0 million related to certain properties classified as held-for sale and a charge
of $1.0 million relating to the decline in value of a minority investment. In fiscal 2003, we recorded an
impairment charge of $1.5 million relating to the decline in value of minority investments. In fiscal 2002,
we recorded impairment charges of $77.6 million relating to technology acquired in a prior acquisition and
the decline in value of minority investments. We will continue to evaluate the recoverability of the carrying
amount of our long-lived assets, and we may incur substantial impairment charges which could adversely
affect our financial results.

If actual results or events differ materially from those contemplated by us in making estimates and
assumptions, our reported financial condition and results of aperations for future periods could be materially
affected. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. For
example, we have identified key accounting estimates in our Critical Accounting Policies, which include
revenue, inventory, goodwill and income taxes. In addition, Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements describes the significant accounting policies essential to preparing our consolidated financial
statements. The preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts and disclosures. Although we believe that our judgments and estimates are
appropriate and correct, actual future results may differ materially from our estimates.

If we are unable to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to compete effectively.
Although we actively maintain and defend our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to adequately
protect our proprietary rights. In addition, the laws of certain territories in which our products are or may
be developed, manufactured or sold, including Asia and Europe, may not protect our products and
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. Because we conduct a
substantial portion of our operations in Singapore and other locations outside of the United States and sell
to a worldwide customer base, we are more dependent on our ability to protect our intellectual property in
international environments than would be the case if a larger portion of our operations were domestic.

Despite our efforts, we may be unable to prevent third parties from infringing upon or
misappropriating our intellectual property, which could harm our business and ability to compete
effectively. We have from time to time discovered counterfeit copies of our products being manufactured
or sold by others. Although we have programs to detect and deter the counterfeiting of our products,
significant availability of counterfeit products could reduce our revenues and damage our reputation and
goodwill with customers.

Third parties may assert infringement claims against us, which may be expensive to defend and could divert
our resources. From time to time, third parties assert exclusive patent, copyright and other intellectual
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property rights to our key technologies, and we expect to continue to receive such.claims in the future. For.
example, we entered into a patent cross-license agreement with IBM in May 2000. Under this agreement,
which was amended in March 2002, we received a release from infringement claims prior to January 1,
2000 and received the right to use certain of IBM’s patents through June 30, 2007. In consideration, we
paid, in annual installments, an aggregate patent fee of $13.3 million through June 30, 2004. The risks of
our receiving add1t10nal claims from third parties may be’ enhanced in periods such as the one that we are
currently entering where we are beglnmng to offer product lmes employmg new technologies relative to
our emstmg products.

We cannot assure you that third parties will not assert other lnfrmgement claims against us, directly or!
indirectly, in the future, that assertions by third parties will not result in costly litigation or that we would
prevail in such litigation or be-able to license any valid and infringed- inteliectual property from third
parties on commercially reasonable terms. These claims may be asserted in réspect of intellectual property
that we own or that we license from others. In addition to claims brought against us by third parties, we
may also bring litigation against others to protect our rights: Intellectual property litigation, regardless of
the outcome, could result in substantial costs to us and diversion of our resources, and could adversely
affect our business and financial results ‘

We may be subject to a hlgher ejfectzve tax rate that could negatzvely affect our results of operations and
financial position. . Our effective tax rate is benefited by a Singapore tax holiday relating to certain of our
products. The tax holiday package, which is effective until fiscal 2010, provides that profits derived from
certain products may be exempt from tax, subject to certain conditions. If we do not meet the conditions
and requirements of the tax holiday in Singapore, our effective tax rate may increase, which would
adversely affect our financial results. Additionally, we held approximately $50 million of cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities at our subsidiary in Singapotre at March 31, 2005. During the fourth
quarter offiscal 2005, we repatriated $360.6 million of cash ‘from Singapore to the United States in
connection with the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 which provides a one-time deduction of 85% for
certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations. If the amount repatriated does not qualify for the
one-time deductioh, we could incur additional income taxes at up-to the United States Federal statutory
rate of 35%, which would negatively'affect our results of operations and financial condition. Further, if our
subsidiary in Singapore incurs losses in excess of their liquidity we may need to loan our subsidiary ‘in
Singapore money that could result in unfavorable tax consequences T ‘
[

We may be requzred to pay additional fedeml income taxes which could negatively affect our results of
operations and financial position. On December 15, 2000, we received a statutory notice of deficiency from
the IRS with respect to our Federal income 'tax return for fiscal 1997. We filed a Petition with the United
States Tax Court on March 14, 2001 contesting the asserted deficiencies and settlement agreements have
been filed'with the United States Tax Court on all but ‘one issue. In addition, the IRS'is currently auditing
our Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2001. We have resolved all issues other than
the rollover impact of any potential resolution on the remaining fiscal 1997 issue and tax credits that were
generated but not used in subsequent years that may be carried back. While we believe we have
meritorious defenses against the asserted deficiencies and any proposed adjustments, and that sufficient
taxes have been provided, we cannot predict the final outcome of these matters, and the final resolution
could adversely affect our results of operations and financial position.

We may be engaged iri legal proceedings that could cause us to incur unforeseen expenses and could occupy a
significant amount of our maragement’s time and attention.  From time to time we are subject to litigation or
claims that could negatively affect our business operations and financial position. Such disputes could
cause us to incur unforeseen expenses, could occupy a significant amount of our management’s time and
attention, and could negatively affect our business operations and financial position.

We finance our capital expenditure needs from operating cash flows and capital market financing, and if we
need to seek additional financing, it may not be available on favorable terms. TIn order to finance strategic
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acquisitions, capital asset acquisitions and other general corporate needs, we rely, in part, on operating
cash flows and the capital markets. Historically, we have been able to access capital markets, but this does
not necessarily guarantee that we will be able to access these markets in the future or at terms that are
acceptable to us. The availability of capital in these markets is affected by several factors, including
geopolitical risk, the interest rate environment and the condition of the economy as a whole. In addition,
our own operating performance, capital structure and expected future performance impacts our ability to
raise capital. We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and future cash
provided by operations will be sufficient to fund our needs for at least the next twelve months. However, if
our operating performance falls below expectations, we may need additional funds, which may not be
available on favorable terms, if at all.

We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Because a significant portion of our
business is conducted outside the United States, we face exposure to adverse movements in non-United
States currency exchange rates. These exposures may change over time as business practices evolve and
could have an adverse impact on our financial results and cash flows. Historically, our exposures have
related to non-dollar-denominated operating expenses in Europe and Asia. We began Euro-denominated
sales to our distribution customers in the European Union in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.
Additionally, we purchase a substantial portion of our raw materials and manufacturing equipment from
foreign suppliers, and incur labor and other operating costs in foreign currencies, particularly in our
Singapore manufacturing facility. An increase in the value of the dollar could increase the real cost to our
customers of our products in markets outside the United States where we sell in dollars, and a weakened
dollar could increase the cost of local operating expenses and procurement of raw materials to the extent
we must purchase components in foreign currencies. '

We hold minority interests in privately held venture funds, and if these venture funds face financial difficulties
in their operations, our investments could be impaired. 'We continue to hold minority interests in privately
held venture funds. At March 31, 2005, the carrying value of such investments aggregated $3.3 million. We
have also committed to provide additional funding of up to $0.5 million. These investments are inherently
risky because these venture funds invest in companies that may still be in the development stage or depend
on third parties for financing to support their ongoing operations. In addition, the markets for the
technologies or products of these companies are typically in the early stages and may never develop. If
these companies do not have adequate cash funding to support their operations, or if they encounter
difficulties developing their technologies or products, the venture funds’ investment in these companies
may be impaired, which in turn, could result in impairment of our investment in these venture funds.

Our spin-off of Roxio Inc., which is now known as Napster Inc., may have potential subsequent tax liabilities
that could negatively affect our results of operations. Pursuant to our distribution of the Roxio, Inc. common
stock, we received an opinion from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC, regarding the tax-free nature of
the transaction to us and to our stockholders under Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code. The validity
of the PwC opinion relating to the qualification of the distribution as a tax-free transaction is subject to
factual representations and assumptions. We are not aware of any facts or circumstances that would cause
such representations and assumptions to be untrue. In addition, the opinion of PwC is not binding on the
IRS. If Napster or we fail to conform to the requirements set forth in the IRS regulations, it could cause
the distribution to be taxable to us and to our stockholders, and our financial results could be adversely
affected.

We may have potential business conflicts of interest with Roxio, which is now known as Napster, with respect to
our past and ongoing relationships, and we may not resolve these conflicts on terms favorable to us. Conflicts of
interest may arise between Napster and us in areas relating to our past and ongoing relationship, including
tax, indemnification and other matters arising from the separation. These and other business conflicts
could adversely affect the growth of our business in the future.
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Changes in securities laws and regulations have increased and may continue to increase our cosés. Changes
in the laws and regulations affecting public companies, including the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 and rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, have increased and may
continue to increase our expenses as we evaluate the implications of these rules and devote resources to
respond to their requirements. In particular, we incurred additional administrative expense to implement
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires management to report on, and our Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm to attest to, our internal control over financial reporting..

In addition, The Nasdaq National Market, on which our commcjn stock is listed, has also adopted
comprehensive rules and regulations relating to corporate governance. These laws, rules and regulations
have increased and will continue to increase the scope, complexity and cost of our corporate governance,

reporting and disclosure practices. We also expect these developments to make it more difficult and more |

expensive for us to obtain director and.-officer liability insurance in the future, and we may be required to
accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. Further, our board
members, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer could face an increased risk of

personal liability in connection.with the performance of their duties. As a result, we may have difficultly .

attracting and retaining qualified board members and executive officers, which would adversely affect our
business. :

Internal control deficiencies or weaknesses that are not yet identified could emerge. Over time we may
identify and correct deficiencies or weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and, where
and when appropriate, report on the identification and correction of these deficiencies or weaknesses.
However, the internal control procedures can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that
deficiencies or weaknesses are identified. Deficiencies or weaknesses that are not yet identified could
emerge and the identification and corrections of these deficiencies or weaknesses could have a material
impact on our results of operations.

Internal control issues that appear minor now may later become material weaknesses.  We are required to
publicly report on deficiencies or weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that meet a
materiality standard as required by law. Management may, at a point in time, accurately categorize a
deficiency or weakness as immaterial or minor and therefore not be required to publicly report such
deficiency or weakness. Such determmatlon however, does not preclude a change in circumstances such
that the deficiency or weakness could at a later time, become material weaknesses that could have a
material Jmpact on our results of operatjons.

We may encounter natural disasters, which could cause disruption to our employees or interrupt the
manufacturing process for our products. Our operations could be subject to natural disasters and other

business disruptions, which could seriously harm our revenues and financial condition and increase our
costs and expenses. Our corporate headquarters are located in California, near major earthquake faults. :

Additionally, our primary wafer supplier, TSMC, is located in Taiwan, which has experienced significant
earthquakes in the past. A severe earthquake could cause disruption to our employees or interrupt the

manufacturing process, which could affect TSMC’s ability to supply wafers to us, which would negatively

affect our business and financial results. The ultimate impact on us and our general infrastructure of being

located near major earthquake faults is unknown, but our net revenues and financial condition and our '

costs and expenses could be significantly 1mpacted in the event of a major earthquake.

Manmade problems such as computer viruses or terrorism may disrupt our operations and harm our
operating results. Desp1te our 1mplementat10n of network security measures, our servers are vulnerable to
computer viruses, break-ins, and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer
systems. Any such event could have an adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial
condition. In addition, the effects of war or acts of terrorism could have an adverse effect on our business,
operating results, and financial condition. In addition, as a company with headquarters and significant
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operations located in the United States, we may be impacted by actions against the United States. We are
predominantly uninsured for losses and interruptions caused by terrorist acts and acts of war.

We may experience significant fluctuations in our stock price, which may, in turn, significantly affect the
trading price of our convertible notes. Our stock has experienced substantial price volatility, particularly as a
result of quarterly variations in our operating results, the published expectations of analysts; and as a result
of announcements by our competitors and us. In addition, the stock market has experienced price and
volume fluctuations that have affected the market price of many technology companies, in particular, and
that have often been unrelated to the operating performance of such companies. In addition, the price of
our securities may also be affected by general global, economic and market conditions, and the cost of
operations in one or more of our product markets. While we cannot predict the individual effect that these
factors may have on the price or our securities, these factors, either individually or in the aggregate, could
result in significant variations in the price of our common stock during any given period of time. These
fluctuations in our stock price also impact the price of our outstanding convertible securities and the
likelihood of the convertible securities being converted into our common stock.
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Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located at 691 South Milpitas Boulevard, Milpitas, California. As of March 31,
2005, we owned and leased various properties in.the United States and in.8 foreign countries totaling
approximately 1,000,000 square feet, of which approximately 344,000 was leased/subleased or available to
lease/sublease to third parties. These building and land leases expire at varying dates between fiscal 2012
and fiscal 2028, respectively, and include renewals at our option.

The table below is a summafy of the facilities we owried and leased at March 31, 2005:

i

: : Building : : '
) # of Buildings Location Sq. Ft. . Use
Owned US } 5 California 319,0004 Corporate offices, research and development,
technical support, sales, marketing and
administrative and a portion of the buildings are
leased or available for lease to third parties.
International 1 Singapore 221,0008 Manufacturing, research and development, sales,
: warehousing and a portion leased to third parties.
Leased US’ 6 California 155,000¢ Warehouse, sales, technical support and a portion
of the buildings are leased or available for lease to
third parties.
2 Colorado 16,000 Research and development and techincal support.
1 Florida 100,0007 Engineering, technical support, sales, marketing and
administrative and a portion subleased to third
parties.
2 Minnesota 13,000 Research and development and techincal support.
1 New Hampshire 67,000F Subleased to third parties.
1 North Carolina 27,000 Research and development and techincal support.
2 Texas 4,000 Sales office.
2 Washington 400 Research and development and techincal support.
International 1 Australia 500 Sales office.
1 China 2,000 Sales office.
3 England 21,000F Research and development, sales and a portion is
. subleased or available for sublease to a third party.
1 France 4,000 Sales office.
1 Germany 19,000 Research and development, technical design,
technical support and sales.
India 35,000 Technical design.
1 Japan 8,000 Sales, marketing and technical support.

(A) Leases on a portion of these facilities of approximately 39,000 square feet and approximately 45,000 sqaure feet are available for
lease. '

(B) Leases on a portion of these facilities of approximately 4,000 square feet.

(C) Subleases on a portion of these facilities of approximately 90,000 square feet and approximately 44,000 sqaure feet are available
for lease.

(D) Subleases on a portion of these facilities of approximately 45,000 square feet.
(E) Subleases on these facilities of approximately 67,000 square feet.

(F) Subleases on a portion of these facilities of approximately 4,000 square feet and approximately 6,000 sqaure feet are available for
lease. ‘ : ‘

We do not separately track our major facilities by operating segments nor are the segments evaluated
under these criteria. Substantially all of the properties are used at least in part by more than one of our
segments and we retain the flexibility to use each of the properties in whole or in part for each of the
segments.

We believe our existing facilities and equipment are well maintained and in good operating condition,
and we believe our facilities are sufficient to meet our needs for the foreseeable future. Our future
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facilities requirements will depend upon our business, and we believe additional space, if required, can be
obtained on reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On June 27, 2000, we received a statutory notice of deficiency from the IRS with respect to our
Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1994 to 1996. We filed a Petition with the United States Tax Court on
September 25, 2000, contesting the asserted deficiencies. In December 2001, settlement agreements were
filed with the United States Tax Court reflecting a total of $9.0 million of adjustments and an allowance of
$0.5 million in additional tax credits. The outcome did not have a material adverse effect on our financial
position or results of operations, as sufficient tax provisions had been made. The final Tax Court stipulation
will be filed when the subsequent audit cycles are completed. Tax credits that were generated but not used
in subsequent years may be carried back to the fiscal 1994 to 1996 audit cycle.

On December 15, 2000, we received a statutory notice of deficiency from the IRS with respect to our
Federal income tax return for fiscal 1997. We filed a Petition with the United States Tax Court on
March 14, 2001 contesting the asserted deficiencies. Settlement agreements have been filed with the
United States Tax Court on all but one issue. We believe that the final outcome of all issues will not have a
material adverse impact on our financial position or results of operations, as we believe that we have
meritorious defense against the asserted deficiencies and any proposed adjustments and that we have
made sufficient tax provisions. However, we cannot predict with certainty how these matters will be
resolved and whether we will be required to make additional payments.

In addition, the IRS is currently auditing our Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1998 through fiscal
2001. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we resolved all issues other than the rollover impact of any
potential resolution on the remaining fiscal 1997 issue and tax credits that were generated but not used in
subsequent years that may be carried back. As a result of the resolutions, $31.9 million previously recorded
as a tax provision was reversed in fiscal 2005. We believe that we have provided sufficient tax provisions for
these years and the ultimate outcome of the IRS audits will not have a material adverse impact on our
financial position or results of operations in future periods. However, we cannot predict with certainty how
these matters will be resolved and whether we will be required to make additional tax payments.

We are a party to other litigation matters and claims, including those related to intellectual property,
which we regard as normal in the course of our operations, and while the results of such litigation matters
and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe that the final outcome of such matters will not
have a material adverse impact on our financial position or results of operations. However, because of the
nature and inherent uncertainties of litigation, our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows could be materially and adversely affected by the outcome of these actions.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers as of June 3, 2005:

Mr. D. Scott Mercer (age 54) has served as our Interim Chief Executive Officer since May 2005. He
has been a member of our Board of Directors since November 2003. He served as Senior Vice President
and Advisor to the CEO of Western Digital Corporation, a supplier of disk drives to the personal computer
and consumer electronics industries, from February 2004 to December 2004, and as Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of that corporation from October 2001 to January 2004. From June 2000 to
September 2001, Mr. Mercer served as Chief Financial Officer of Teralogic, Inc., a supplier of
semiconductors and software to the digital television industry. From June 1996 to May 2000, Mr. Mercer
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held various senior operating and financial positions with Dell, Inc., a provider of products and services
required for customers to build their information-technology and Internet infrastructures. Mr. Mercer is
also a director of Conexant Systems, Inc., NetRatings, Inc., and of a privately held company.

Mr. Subramanian Sundaresh (age 49) has served as our President since May 2005 and briefly served as
our Executive Vice President of marketing' and product’ development in May 2005. Prior to rejoining :
Adaptec, Mr. Sundaresh provided consulting services at various companies, including Adaptec, from
December 2004 to April 2005. Between July 2002 and December 2004, Mr. Sundaresh served as President
and Chief Executive Officer.of Candera, Inc., a supplier of storage SATA appliances. From July 1998 to
April 2002, Mr. Sundaresh served as President and Chief Executive Cfficer of Jetstream Communications,
a provider .in Voice over Broadband solutions. Mr. Sundaresh 'previously worked at Adaptec from .
March 1993 to June 1998 as Vice President-and General Manager for the Personal 1/O business and
Corporate Vice President of Worldwide Marketing. ‘

Mr. Marshall L. Mohr (age 49) has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since
July 2003. Prior to joining Adaptec, Mr: Mohr spent’ 22 years in various positions at
PricewaterhouseCoopers  including, most: -recently, 6 yearss -as Managing Partner of.
PrlcewaterhouseCoopers West Region Technology Industry Group

Mr. Eric Kelly (age 46) has served as our Vlce Pre51dent and General Manager of Worldwide Sales .
and Services since December. From August 2004 to December 2004 M. Kelly served as Vice President and
General Manager of Corporate Marketing, Snap product marketmg, Snap Engineering and Channel Sales. |
Prior to Snap Appliance, Inc. being acquired by Adaptec, Mr. Kelly served as the Chief Executive Officer
of Snap Appliance, Inc. from’ October 2002 to July 2004. From July 2001 to September 2002, Mr. Kelly"
served as President of Maxtor Corporation’s Network Systems Group, from July 2000 to July 2001,
Mr. Kelly served as COO at iSyndicate Corp. and from July 1998 to July 2000 served as Vice Premdent of
the Enterprise Group at Dell Computer Corporation.

Mr. Kok Yong Lim (age 5 8) has served as our Vice Preéidenf of Manufacturing since December 1999.
From 1993 to 1999, Mr. Lim served as Managing Director and Vice President of Adaptec Manufacturing
Singapore. '
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PART II

Item 5. Market for. Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities ‘ T

Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “ADPT.”” The
following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated as
reported by the Nasdaq National Market. The market price of our common stock has been volatile. See
“Risk Factors.”

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
High Low High Low
First quarter ..........c.c.ouuruirennunanenns $9.53 $7.15 $ 874 $5.95
Second quarter. . ............. [T 803  6.62 844  6.05
Third quarter . . . ........... e 850 728 950 7.40
Fourth quarter .. ............ e 7.64 452 1114 799

As of June 3, 2005, there were approximately 725 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock. It is presently our pblicy to reinvest earnings
for our business.
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" We have continued, in our efforts to grow and strengthen our business and expand our product
offerings by streamlining our corporate organization, entering into strategic alliances and making selective
acquisitions.

. On June 29 2004 we extended our strateglc relatlonshlp w1th IBM to encompass RAID technology
for IBM’s eServer product line, for a total purchase price of $49.5 million. We acquired IBM’s i/p
Series . RAID component business line consisting of certain purchased RAID data protection

.- intellectual property, semiconductor designs and assets, and licensed from IBM related RAID
intellectual property. This, acquisition enabled us to use IBM’s eServer RAID technology for our
internal and external RAID products. Additionally, it allowed.us to use IBM’s technology to extend
the features and performance of our RAID products to be delivered to both IBM and other
customers. In.conjunction with the acquisition, we also entered into a product supply agreement
under which we will supply RAID software, firmware and hardware to IBM for use in IBM’s iSeries
and pSeries servers. These agreements build upon our existing relationship with IBM that focuses
‘on data protection for IBM’s xSeries servers. We began recognizing revenue and expenses from this
acquisition in the second quarter of fiscal 2005.

> On July 23, 2004, we acquired Snap Appliance, a provider of NAS products, for a total purchase

* ~‘price of $84.4 million. The acqu1smon of Snap Appliance allowed us to expand our external-storage

" product portfolio by mcludmg network storage systems and to build upon our systems channel
business. Results for fiscal 2005 included the full operations of Snap Appliance subsequent to the
acquisition.

° On November 30 2004 we implemented a restructurlng plan to streamline our corporate
orgamzatlon and reduce operatmg costs. As a result, we recorded a restructuring charge of
$2.4 million for ‘payments associated with the mvoluntary termination of 46 employees and the
vacatlng of certain operatmg leases for a building.

s On December 30, 2004, we further expanded our relatxonshlp with IBM to deliver Adaptec-branded
RAID controllers and connectivity products, which were previously branded as IBM, for IBM’s i’/p
Series directly through IBM’s sales channel. This arrangement, which consists of royalty-based
payments and fixed consideration totaling up to $52.1 million, furthers our position of providing
IBM customers with scalable storage products for the IBM eServer family and will provide us with

_increased revenues and gross profit.

> On January 26 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with Vitesse to develop and market the
next generation SAS products. Under the terms of the alliance, Vitesse employed 44 of our former
engineering employees and licensed certain SAS technology and assets related to our development
of SAS ROC products. Working together with us, Vitesse will combine its 6Gb/s mixed signal and
expander technology and expertise with our RAID, RAID 6 and I/O technology and expertise to
jointly develop advanced SAS .products. We incurred a charge of $1.6 million for severance,

_ benefits, loss-on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees associated with this alliance. We
-expect this strategic alliance to reduce annual operating expenses by approximately $7.4 million.

~© On March 16, 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with ServerEngines to develop and market
next generatlon IP storage products Under the terms of the alliance, ServerEngines employed 33 of
our former engmeermg employees and licensed certam technology and acquired certain assets
related to our iSCSI and TCP/IP offload protocol engines. ServerEngines and we will seek to
accelerate time-to-market of advanced iSCSI technology, such as 10Gb iSCSI. We incurred a charge
of $0.9 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees
associated with this alliance. We expect this strategic alliance to reduce annual operating expenses
by approximately $5.0 million.
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PART I

Item S. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “ADPT.” The
following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated as
reported by the Nasdaq National Market. The market price of our common stock has been volatile. See

“Risk Factors.”

Fiscal 2005

Fiscal 2004

High Low
First QUAaTtET .. ..o v veitn e e enn $9.53 $7.15
Second quarter. .......... ... . . 803 6.62
Third quarter . . . ... 850 7.28
Fourth quarter . .......... .. ... ... ..., 7.64 452

As of June 3, 2005, there were approximately 725 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock. It is presently our policy to reinvest earnings

for our business.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information has been derived from the audited consolidated financial -
statements. The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations and
should be redd in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included
elsewhere'in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We successfully completed the spin-off of our software
segment, Roxio, which is now known as Napster, into a fully independent and separate company in
May 2001. The information below relates to our continuing operations.

Years Ended March 31,
- 2005° 20043 20033 20023 2001°
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Net revenues? . ....... AT R To... $474990 3452908  $408,113  $418,749  $578,312
Costofrevenues? . .. ..o v v 293,746 264,200 203,203 203,030 275,513
Patent settlement fee ............ e — — — — (3,626)
Gross profit. . . ... 181,244 188,708 204,910 215,719 306,425 "
Total operating expenses™ . ... ... ... ... 277,593 215,779 240,040 426,376 335385 .
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ........ (145,106) 62,907  (15426) (196,673) 42,557
Net income from discontinued operations . ........ — — — 495 2,893
Net loss on disposal of discontinued operations . .. .. — — — — (5,807)
Net income (1088) . . . . oot ©(145,106) 62,907  (15,426) (196,178) 39,643 ¢
Net Income (Loss) Per Share Data:
Basic: .
Continuing operations . . ................... $ (131) § 058 $ (0.14) § (1.92) $ 043
Discontinued operations. . .. ................ — 8 — — § 000 $ (0.03)
Net income (loss) . ...... R $ (131) § 038 $ (0.14) $ (1.91) $ 040
Diluted:
Continuing Operations . . ................... $ (131) § 053 $ (0.14) $ (192) $ 042
Discontinued operations. . . ................. $ — 3 — — $§ 000 $ (0.03)
Net income (I0SS) .+« v v v v e v eeneneeennnn. $ (131) § 053 § (0.14) $ (1.91) $ 039
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share: ‘
BasiC. . ... 110,798 108,656 106,772 102,573 90,403
Diluted .........c 110,798 128,807 106,772 102,573 101,364
March 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities . . .  $526,556 $663,854 $742302 $803,659 $651,329
Restricted cash and marketable securities . . ... ... 6,381 9,161 14,789 21,212 —
Net assets of discontinued operations. . ......... — — — — 44,153
Total assets? ... ... .o 963,506 1,051,104 1,102,979 1,208,422 1,208,241
Long-term liabilities . ..................... 275,539 263,852 252,596 457,625 235,350
Stockholders’ equity? . . ... ..o - 510,323 644,891 602,777 597,392 778,981
Working capital? . . . ....... . L. o 507,122 715,228 645,320 793,854 664,555

Notes:

(1) As of April 1, 2002, we ceased amortization of goodwill to conform with the provisions of SFAS
No. 142,
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(2) Prior period consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period
presentation.

(3) We completed a total of six acquisitions in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2002 and recorded write-offs of
acquired in-process technologies for certain acquisitions (Note 2). We recorded restructuring charges
in fiscal years 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (Note 9). In fiscal 2005, we recorded an impairment
charge of $52.3 million to reduce goodwill related to our Channel segment (Note 5), we recorded a
gain of $2.8 million on the sale of certain properties (Note 10), we recorded charges of $0.9 million
and $1.6 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees
associated with the strategic alliances entered into with ServerEngines and Vitesse, respectively
(Note 10), made a payment of $1.7 million to NSE in the form of a license fee (Note 8), received a tax
benefit from the settlement of disputes with the IRS, incurred $17.6 million in tax expense associated
with the repatriation of $360.6 million in cash from our Singapore subsidiary and recorded a valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets of $67.9 million (Note 14). In fiscal 2004, we recorded a gain of
$49.3 million related to the settlement with the former president of Distributed Processing Technology
Corporation, or DPT (Note 8), a reduction in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance of
$21.6 million (Note 14) and a reduction of previously accrued tax related liabilities of $6.3 million
(Note 14). In fiscal 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of $69.0 million to reduce goodwill
related to the DPT acquisition. In fiscal 2001, we spun off what was then our Software segment, Roxio,
which is now known as Napster. These transactions affect the comparability of this data.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
section should be read in conjunction with the other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including “Item 1: Business”; “Item 6: Selected Financial Data”; and “Item 8: Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.” This section contains a number of forward-looking statements, including statements
regarding our expectations of increased revenue and gross profit from our relationship with IBM, our
expectation of reduced operating expenses as a result of our strategic relationships with Vitesse and
ServerEngines and the impact industry shortages of SCSI disk drive that are expected to have on our
revenues in fiscal 2006. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and could
be affected by the uncertainties and risk factors described throughout this filing and particularly in the
“Risk Factors” set forth in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our actual results may
differ materially, and these forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any mergers,
acquisitions or other business combinations that had not been completed as of June 14, 2005.

Overview

In fiscal 2005, our revenues grew 5% as compared to fiscal 2004 primarily as a result of our fiscal 2005
acquisitions which increased revenue by $46.2 million. This increase in revenue was offset by the industry
shortage of SCSI disk drives, the transition from our Ultra 160 products to Ultra 320 products and
increased demand from OEM customers for our component products in which we have a lower market
share, and lower average selling prices of OEM customers as compared with Channel customers. The
decline in gross margin in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 was primarily due to changes in our product
mix, negative margins associated with our new external storage products sold to IBM and, to a lesser
extent, changes in our customer mix between OEM and channel customers. Operating expenses increased
in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004, primarily as a result of additional costs related to our acquisitions.
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We have continued in our efforts to grow and strengthen our business and expand our product .
offerings by streamlining our corporate organization, entering into strategic alliances and making selective -
acquisitions.

° On June 29, 2004, we extended our strateglc relatlonshxp with IBM to-encompass RAID technology
for IBM’s eServer product line, for a total purchase price of $49.5 million. We acquired IBM’s i/p
Series RAID component business line consisting of certain purchased RAID data protection
intellectual property, semiconductor designs and assets, and licensed from IBM related RAID
intellectual property. This acquisition enabled us to use IBM’s eServer RAID technology for our .
internal and external RAID products. Additionally, it allowed.us to use IBM’s technology to extend
the features and performance of our RAID products to be delivered to both 1BM -and other
customers. In conjunction with the acquisition, we also entered into a product supply agreement
under which we will supply RAID software, firmware and hardware to IBM for use in IBM’s iSeries -
and pSeries servers. These agreements build upon our existing relationship with IBM that focuses
on data protectlon for IBM’s xSeries servers. We began recognizing revenue and. expenses from this
acquisition in the second quarter of fiscal 2005. :

o On July 23, 2004, we acquired Snap Appliance, a provider of NAS products, for a total purchase
price of $84.4 million. The acquisition of Snap Appliance allowed us to expand our external-storage

~ product portfolio by including network storage systems and to build upon our systems channel
business. Results for fiscal 2005 included the full operations of Snap Appliance subsequent to the
acquisition.

° On November 30, 2004, we implemented a restructuring plan to streamline our corporate
organization and reduce operating costs. As a result, we recorded a restructuring charge of
$2.4 million for payments associated with the 1nvoluntary termination of 46 employees and the -
Vacatmg of certain operating leases for a bu1ld1ng

° On December 30, 2004, we further expanded our relatlonshlp with IBM to deliver ‘Adaptec-branded
RAID controllers and connectivity products, which were previously branded as IBM, for IBM’s i/p
Series directly through IBM’s sales channel. This arrangement, which consists of royalty-based
payments and fixed consideration totaling up to $52.1 million, furthers our position of providing
IBM customers with scalable storage products for the IBM eServer family and will provide us with
increased revenues and gross profit.

> On January 26, 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with Vitesse to develop and market the
next generation SAS products. Under the terms of the alliance, Vitesse employed 44 of our former
engineering employees and licensed certain SAS technology and assets related to our development
of SAS ROC products. Working together with us, Vitesse will combine its 6Gb/s mixed signal and
expander technology and expertise with our RAID, RAID 6 and I/O technology and expertise to
jointly develop advanced SAS .products. We incurred a charge of $1.6 million for severance,
benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees associated with this alliance. We
expect this strategic alliance to reduce annual operating expenses by approximately $7.4 million.

> On March 16, 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with ServerEngines to develop and market
next generation IP storage products. Under the terms of the alliance, ServerEngines employed 33 of
our former englneerlng employees and licensed certain technology and acquired certain assets
related to our iSCSI and TCP/IP offload protocol engines. ServerEngines and we will seek to
accelerate time-to-market of advanced iSCSI technology, such as 10Gb iSCSI. We incurred a charge
of $0.9 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees
associated with this alliance. We expect this strategic alliance to reduce annual operating expenses
by approximately $5.0 million.
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Our growth and future revenue largely depends on the success of our external and networked storage
products, new OEM design wins and, to a lesser extent, on our products addressing new technologies (i.e.,
SAS, SATA and iSCSI). We continue to invest in research and development in our efforts to secure key
customer design wins for both component level and external storage related products. OEM design wins,
channel acceptance of our products and overall profitability are key indicators management uses to
evalnate the status of our business.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the items in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a percentage
of net revenues:

Years Ended March 31,

2005° 20042 2003
NEL FEVEIUES . . . o o vt vttt e e et e e e 100% 100% 100%
Cost of revenues .. ... . ... 62 58 50
GIOSS MATZIN « « o0 vttt e e e e e 38 42 50
Operating expenses:
Research and development! . ... ... ... .. ... 24 23 29
Selling, marketing and administrative! .......... .. ... .. ... .... 17 17 22
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets . .............. 4 4 4
Write-off of acquired in-process technology. . .................... 1 2 —
Restructuring charges . ............ . i 1 1 4
Goodwill impairment. . . ... ... . 11 — —
Other charges (gains) ................ e _(0) 1 0
Total operating eXpenses. . ... .ot S8 48 39
Loss from Operations . ... .........ccuiuiiinneinennnnnn... (20) (6) 9)
Interest and other income' .. ... ... .. .. .. i 2 15 8
Interest eXpense . .. ... i e ﬂ) _Q) _(i)
Income (loss) before income taxes . .. ....... ... L. (19) 7 ®
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes. . ............. ... ... ..., 1 (N ()
Net income (I0SS) - . v v vt @BO% 14% D%
Notes:

(1) Prior period financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

(2) We completed a total of five acquisitions in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 (Note 2) and recorded write-
offs of acquired in-process technologies for certain acquisitions. We recorded restructuring charges in
fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 (Note 9). In fiscal 2005, we recorded an impairment charge of
$52.3 million to reduce goodwill related to our Channel segment (Note 5), we recorded a gain of
$2.8 miltion on the sale of certain properties (Note 10), we recorded charges of $0.9 million and
$1.6 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees
associated with the strategic alliances entered into with ServerEngines and Vitesse, respectively
(Note 10), made a payment of $1.7 million to NSE in the form of a license fee (Note 8), received a tax
benefit from the settlement of disputes with the IRS, incurred $17.6 million in tax expense associated
with the repatriation of $360.6 million in cash from our Singapore subsidiary and recorded a valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets of $67.9 million (Note 14). In fiscal 2004, we recorded a gain of
$49.3 million related to the settlement with the former president of DPT (Note 8), a reduction in the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $21.6 million (Note 14) and a reduction of previously
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- accrued tax related liabilities of $6.3 million (Note 14). These transactions affect the comparability of
this data. o ‘ .

Net Revenues.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

OEM ... e $296.3 3%  $286.4 33%  $215.2
Channel ......... ... .. .. 1403 14% 123.1 (11)%  138.8
DSG . o 38.3 (12)% 43.4 20)% 54.1
Total Net Revenues ... ............... $474.9 5%  $452.9 11%  $408.1

Fiscal 2005 compared to Fiscal 2004

Net revenues from our OEM segment increased by $9.9 million in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal
2004 reflecting increased sales of our component products, which included $26.3 million due to the
acquisition of the IBM i/p Series RAID business, as well as increased sales from products based on next
generation SATA technology and external storage systems. This was partially offset by a decline in sales
volumes of our SCSI products primarily attributable to the industry shortage of SCSI disk drives in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the transition from our Ultra 160 products to Ultra 320 products in which we
have a lower market share and change in sales mix of products incorporating our SCSI technology due to
customers purchasing more software and chip products which generally have lower average selling prices
compared to HBAs or other board level SCSI products. We expect revenues in the first quarter of fiscal
2006 to be impacted by the industry shortage of SCSI disk drives.

Net revenues from our Channel segment increased by $17.2 million in fiscal 2005 as compared to
fiscal 2004 reflecting $19.9 million due to the acquisition of Snap Appliance, partially offset by a decrease
in sales of our component products due lower demand from our Channel customers relative to our OEM
customers.

Net revenues from our DSG segment decreased by $5.1 million in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal
2004 as a result of the decline in sales volumes of our SCSI-based desktop computer products and our:
digital media products, offset partially by increased sales of non-SCSI based connectivity and TV tuner
products. We expect revenues from our SCSI-based desktop computer products to continue to decline as
OEMs are incorporating connectivity technologies directly into their products.

Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003

-Net revenues from our OEM segment increased by $71.2 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal.
2003 as a result of growth in sales of our systems products, which are composed primarily of the products
we acquired from Eurologic and an increase in sales of our component products. The increase in net
revenues from our component products.reflect an increase in sales of ServeRAID. products to IBM, which
began in the second quarter of fiscal 2003, and RAID revenues from ICP vortex, which we acquired in the
first quarter of fiscal 2004, partially offset by the continued decline in sales volumes of our SCSI products
due to a change in sales mix of products incorporating our SCSI technology due to customers purchasing.
more software and chip products which generally have lower average selling prices compared to host bus
adapters or other board level SCSI products. Additionally, we have faced intense competition in the
transition from our Ultra 160 products to our products employing Ultra 320 technology. Although this
transition has been slower than we originally anticipated, it still negatively affected our revenues in fiscal
2004. :
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Net revenues from our Channel segment decreased by $15.7 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to
fiscal 2003 as a result of a decline in sales volumes of our SCSI component products. The decline in the
volume of SCSI product sales was attributable to a decline in demand due to penetration of other
lower-cost products, such as ATA, and a shift in the server market share from smaller VARs to major
OEMs. However, this decline was partially offset by an increase in sales of our RAID enabled products
based on the next generation SATA technology launched in the first quarter of fiscal 2004.

Net revenues from the DSG segment decreased by $10.7 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal
2003 due to a decline in sales volumes of our SCSI-based desktop computer products, FireWire/1394
products and USB 2.0 host-bus adapters, offset partially by increased sales of digital media products
launched in the second quarter of fiscal 2003. The decline in sales volume of our SCSI-based desktop
computer products reflects a continued reduction in demand resulting from the penetration of other lower
cost products and alternative technologies for the desktop. The decline in sales volumes of our
FireWire/1394 products and USB 2.0 host-bus adapters was caused by the continued trend of
OEMs incorporating these technologies into their products rather than end users purchasing our products
as components at the retail level.

Geographical Revenues and Customer Concentration

Geographical Revenues: FY 2005 FY 2004 FY 2003
North America . ... oot e e e e e e 41% 41% 47%
BUIOPE . ot e 32% 31% 28%
Pacific RIM ... .ot _Ez% é% _2_5%
Total Gross ReVenues . .. ... oottt i e ie e 100% l()_O% 1(19%

QOur international revenues remained relatively flat as a percent of our total gross revenues in fiscal
2005 as compared to fiscal 2004. Our international revenues grew as a percent of our total gross revenues
in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 reflecting our acquisition of ICP vortex located in Germany,
favorable effects of the Euro relative to the dollar, generally strong demand in the European market and
increased sales to ODM:s in the Pacific Rim region.

A small number of our customers account for a substantial portion of our net revenues, and we expect
that a limited number of customers will continue to represent a substantial portion of our net revenues for
the foreseeable future. In fiscal 2005, IBM and Dell accounted for 24% and 11% of our total net revenues,
respectively, and we expect IBM to represent an even larger percentage of our total net revenues in future
periods as a result of our acquisition of the IBM i/p Series RAID business and our supply agreement with
IBM. In fiscal 2004, IBM and Deli accounted for 18% and 10% of our total net revenues, respectively. In
fiscal 2003, Dell, IBM, Hewlett-Packard and Ingram Micro accounted for 14%, 13%, 11% and 10% of our
total net revenues, respectively.

Gross Margin.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)
Gross Margin . . ....ooooennenennnnn, $181.2 (4% $188.7 (8)%  $204.9
As a Percentage of Net Revenues . ..... .. 38% 42% 50%

The decline in gross margin in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 was primarily due to changes in our
product mix, negative margins associated with our new external storage products sold to IBM and, to a
lesser extent, changes in our customer mix between OEM and channel customers. Although both sales of
our systems and components products increased from fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004, the overall
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increase in sales of our systems products was greater than the increase in sales of components products by
$18.9 million. In addition, gross margins were generally lower for our systems products as compared to our
components products. Costs associated with our new external storage products sold to IBM were higher as
a result of increased costs for initial components purchases from suppliers, start-up production costs, high
overhead costs associated with lower volumes and the cost of expediting components from suppliers and
products to IBM. These costs impacted our gross margin by $5.2 million compared to the margin we
expected to obtain on these products. In addition, the decrease in gross margins was attributable .to the |
shift of our revenue for component products from channel to OEM customers. Qur gross margins will be
significantly impacted in the future by the mix of OEM and channel revenue, the mix of component and
system revenue and our ability to manage OEM external storage product costs. Our external storage
products generally carry lower gross margin than our other products, and we expect revenues from these
external storage product lines to continue to incréase relative to revenues from our other products.

The decline in gross margin in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 was primarily due to changes in our
product mix reflecting the increase in sales of relatively lower margin products including ServeRAID
products to IBM and sales of external storage products resulting from our acquisition of Eurologic and, to .
a lesser extent, by the sales mix of our SCSI products where more lower margin products were sold as
compared to higher margin host bus adapters and board level SCSI products. '

Research and Development Expense.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Research and Development .. ...... ..., $1138 11%  $102.8 (13)% $1184

The increase in research and development expense in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 was
primarily a result of increased headcount from our acquisitions of Snap Appliance and the IBM i/p Series
RAID business, cost associated with the development of the IBM DS300 and DS400 products and
compensation of $1.7 million in fiscal 2005 related to a.management incentive program established for
former Snap Appliance employees pursuant to the Snap Appliance acquisition agreement. This was offset
by decreased infrastructure spending and reduced headcount as a result of restructuring programs
implemented in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, the reduced headcount as a result of the Vitesse strategic
alliance and decreased deferred compensation charges of $2.0 million in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal
2004. Deferred compensation charges represented the vesting of restricted stock, unvested cash and
assumed stock options in connection with our Platys Communications, Inc., or Platys, and Snap Appliance
acquisitions.

The decrease in research and development expense in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was
primarily a result of decreased spending and decreased deferred compensation charges associated with our
acquisition of Platys. The decrease in spending was primarily due to savings obtained through reductions in
infrastructure spending and reduced headcount resulting from the restructuring programs implemented in
fiscal 2003 and savings obtained by transitioning certain research and development efforts to India.
However, these savings were partially offset by additional development expenses as a result of our
acquisitions of Eurologic, ICP vortex and Elipsan. Deferred compensation charges, which represented the
vesting of restricted stock, unvested cash and assumed stack options, decreased by $6.4 million in fiscal
2004 as compared to fiscal 2003.

Our investment in research and development primarily focuses on developing new products for
external storage, storage software and server storage markets. We also invest in research and development
of new technologies, including iSCSI, SATA and SAS. A portion of our research and development expense
fluctuates depending on the timing of major project costs such as prototype costs. As a result of the
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decrease in headcount associated with the ServerEngines and Vitesse alliances, we expect to reduce annual
research and development expenses by approximately $12.4 million.

Selling, Marketing and Administrative Expense.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Selling, Marketing and Administrative . . . . . $82.4 5% $78.4 (14)%  $90.8

The increase in selling, marketing and administrative expense in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004
was primarily a result of increased headcount from our acquisition of Snap Appliance, compensation of
$3.6 million in fiscal 2005 related to a management incentive program established for former Snap
Appliance employees pursuant to the Snap Appliance acquisition agreement and increased deferred
compensation charges of $0.7 million representing the vesting of assumed stock options in connection with
our Platys and Snap Appliance acquisitions. This was partially offset by decreased spending due to
reductions of our workforce and infrastructure spending as a result of the restructuring plans implemented
in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, and the integration and consolidation of Eurologic’s operations, which was
completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

The decrease in selling, marketing and administrative expense in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal
2003 was primarily a result of decreased spending and decreased deferred compensation charges
associated with our acquisition of Platys. The decrease in spending was primarily due to reductions of our
workforce and infrastructure spending as a result of the restructuring plans implemented in fiscal 2003 and
the first half of fiscal 2004. However, these savings were partially offset by. the additional workforce
brought on through our acquisitions of Eurologic, ICP vortex and Elipsan. Deferred compensation
charges, which represented the vesting of restricted stock, unvested cash and assumed stock options,
decreased by $3.8 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003,

As our selling, marketing and administrative expense consists primarily of salaries, including
commissions, our expense may fluctuate based on changes to our revenue levels. We will focus on
controlling our selling, marketing and administrative spending in a way that allows our revenues to rise
faster than our expenses.

Amortization of Acquisition-Related Intangible Assets.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Amortization of Acquisition-Related
Intangible ASSEts ... ............... $183  10%  $16.7 11%  $15.0

Acquisition-related intangible assets include patents, core and existing technologies,
covenants-not-to-compete, supply agreement, foundry agreement, customer relationships, trade names,
backlog and royalties. We amortize the acquisition-related intangible assets over periods which reflect the
pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are expected to be realized, which is primarily using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, ranging from three months to seven years.

The increase in amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal
2004 was due to the amortization of $9.7 million of purchased intangible assets related to the acquisitions
of Snap Appliance in July 2004, the IBM i/p Series RAID business in June 2004 and Elipsan Limited in
February 2004. This was partially offset by acquisition-related intangible assets that became fully amortized
in December 2003 associated with our DPT acquisition and certain intangible assets associated with our
Platys acquisition.
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The increase in amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets in fiscal 2004 as compared to
fiscal 2003 related to the amortization of purchased intangible assets with the acquisitions of Eurologic,
ICP vortex and Elipsan of $4.3 million. This was partially offset by lower amortization related to our DPT
acquisition of $2.6 million as it became fully amortized in December 2003.

Write-Off of Acquired In-Process Technology.

FY 2005 FY 2004 FY 2003

‘ (in millions)
IBM i/p Series RAID business. .. .......... e $3.0 $— $—
Snap Appliance . .......... ... . P 22 — —
BEurologiC . . ... .o i e — 3.6 —
Elpsan . ... ...t — 4.0 —
Platys. . ............ e e e i e L= — —
Total Write-Off of Acquired In-Process Technology . . .. ........ $5.2 $7.6 $—

" Projects that qualify as acquired in-process technology represent those in which technological
feasibility had not been established and no alternative future uses existed. The amounts allocated to
acquired in-process technology were determined through established valuation techniques in the
high-technology computer industry. ‘ '

The net cash flows from the identified projects were based on estimates of revenues, cost of revenues,
research and development- expenses, including costs to complete the projects, selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, royalty expenses and income taxes from the projects. We believe the assumptions
used in the valuations were reasonable.at the time of the acquisitions. The estimated net revenues and -
gross margins were based on management’s projections of the projects and were in line with industry
averages. Estimated total net revenues from the projects of Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p Series RAID
business, Eurologic and Elipsan were expected to grow through fiscal 2009, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2008 and
fiscal 2007, respectively, and decline thereafter as other new products are expected to become available.
Estimated operating expenses included research and development expenses and selling, marketing and
administrative expenses based upon historical and expected direct expense levels and general industry
metrics. Estimated research and development expenses included costs to bring the projects to
technological feasibility and costs associated with activities undertaken to correct errors or keep products -
updated with current information (also referred to as “maintenance” research and development) after a
product is available for general release to customers. These activities range from 0% to 5% of net revenues
for the in-process technologies.- o ’

The effective tax rate used in the analysis of the in-process technologies reflects a combined historical .
industry specific average for the United States Federal and state statutory income tax rates. The cost of
capital reflects the estimated time to complete the projects and the level of risk involved. The following
discount rates were uséd in computing thie present value of net cash flows from the acquired companies:
approximately 24% for Snap Appliance, between 23% and 28% for the IBM i/p Series RAID business,
approximately 27% for Eurologic and approximatély 63% for Elipsan.

The percentage of completion was determined using costs incurred by Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p-
Series RAID business, Eurologic and Elipsan prior to their respective acquisition dates compared to the
estimated remaining research and development to be completed to bring the projects to technological
feasibility. We estimated, as of the respective acquisition dates for Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p Series:
RAID business, Eurologic and Elipsan, that the projects were approximately 25% complete, 50%
complete, 60% complete and 28% complete, respectively.  All projects outstanding as of the acquisition
dates for Eurologic and Elipsan were completed as of ‘March 31, 2004 and -December 31, 2004,
respectively, We expect remaining costs of approximately $0.3 million and $12.3 million related to Snap
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Appliance and the IBM i/p Series RAID business, respectively, to bring the planned in-process projects to
completion.

Restructuring Charges.

Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Restructuring Charges .. .............. $5.9 37% $4.3 (70)% $14.3

During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, we implemented several restructuring plans which included
reductions of our workforce and consolidation of operations. The goal of these plans was to bring our
operational expenses to appropriate levels relative to our net revenues, while simultaneously implementing
extensive new company-wide expense-control programs. All expenses, including adjustments, associated
with our restructuring plans are included in “Restructuring charges” in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and are not allocated to segments but rather managed at the corporate level. For further
discussion on our restructuring plans, please refer to Note 9 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plans

Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: 1In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we initiated
certain actions to consolidate primarily engineering resources in connection with the Vitesse strategic
alliance and recorded a restructuring charge of $0.5 million. We do not expect to incur any further charges
in connection with this restructuring plan.

Third Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we initiated
certain actions to simplify our structure by streamlining the corporate organization and reducing operating
costs. This resulted in a restructuring charge of $2.4 million, which related to the involuntary termination
of 46 employees in all functions of the organization and costs pertaining to estimated future obligations for
non-cancelable lease payments for an excess facility in Germany. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, a
provision adjustment of $0.1 million was made related to the third quarter of fiscal 2005 restructuring plan
as severance and benefits were lower than originally anticipated. We do not expect to incur any further
charges in connection with this restructuring plan.

Second Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, we initiated
actions to consolidate duplicative resources in connection with the acquisition of Snap Appliance,
primarily in selling, marketing and administrative functions and recorded a restructuring charge of
$0.7 million. We do not expect to incur any further charges in connection with this restructuring plan. For
the acquisition-related restructuring plan associated with the Snap Appliance acquisition, please see
Note 2 for further details.

First Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we initiated certain
actions to consolidate certain development and administrative functions in the United States and Europe,
which were completed in the first half of fiscal 2005. We recorded a restructuring charge of $0.8 million in
the first quarter of fiscal 2005 related to the involuntary termination of employees and the costs pertaining
to estimated future obligations for non-cancelable lease payments for an excess facility in the United
Kingdom. Additional charges of $1.4 million related to this plan associated with severance and benefits for
employees primarily in the area of research and development were taken in the second quarter of fiscal
2005. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, a provision adjustment of $0.1 million was made related to the first
quarter of fiscal 2005 restructuring plan as severance and benefits were lower than originally anticipated.
Restructuring charges related to the first quarter restructuring plan total $2.1 million. We do not expect to
incur any further charges in connection with this restructuring plan.




As a result of our fiscal 2005.restructuring plans, we expect to reduce our annual infrastructure
spending by approximately $15 million, of which approximately 7%, 50% and 43% will be reflected as a
reduction in cost of revenues, research and development and selling, marketing and administrative
expense, respectively. ;

Fiscal 2004 Restructuring Plans

In the fourth, third and second quarters of fiscal 2004, we implemented restructuring plans
(collectively called the fiscal 2004 restructuring provision) to consolidate primarily research and
development resources, the involuntary termination of certain  technical support, marketing and
administrative personnel, the shutdown of our Hudson, Wisconsin facility, and asset 1mpalrments
associated with the identification of duphcatlve assets and facilities. As a result, we recorded a
restructuring charge of $3.7 million, of which $3.3 million related to severance and benefits of 30
employees. We recorded an adjustment to the fiscal 2004 restructuring provision of $0.2 million in fiscal
2005 as a reduction to severance and benefits as actual results were lower than anticipated, offset by an
adjustment of $0.6 million in fiscal 2004 related to the additional lease costs. As of March 31, 2005, we
have utilized approximately all of these charges and the plan is materially complete.

Fiscal 2003 Restructuring Plans

In the fourth and second quarters of fiscal 2003, we announced restructuring programs (collectively
called the fiscal 2003 restructuring provision) to reduce expenses and streamline operations and recorded a
restructuring charge of $13.2 million. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, we recorded adjustments to the
fiscal 2003 restructuring provision of $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectlvely, related to the reduction to'
severance and benefits as actual results were lower than anticipated, offset by additional lease costs,:
primarily related to the estimated loss of a facility in Florida through April 2008, the end of the lease term.’

In addition, we recorded charges of $0.5 million related to additional lease costs related to the
estimated loss of a facility that we subleased in California through April 2008, the end of the lease term.’
This related to our fiscal 2001 restructunng plan in response to the economlc slowdown to reduce costs'
and improve operating efflCIGDCICS L |

Goodwill Impairment.

Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is reviewed annually and whenever events or circumstances,
occur which indicate that goodwill might be impaired. Impairment of goodwill is tested at our reporting.
unit level-which is at our segment level, by comparing each segment’s carrying amount, including goodwill,
to the fair value of that segment. To determine fair value, our review process uses the income, or:
discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach. In performing our analysis, we use the best
information available under the circumstances, including ‘reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its implied fair value, -goodwill is
considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.
Based on our annual review of goodwﬂl in the fourth quarter’ of fiscal 2005, we recorded an impairment
charge of $52.3 million related to our Channel segment. Factors that led to this conclusion included, but
were not limited to, the negative impact of estimates of expected future income associated with increased '
costs related to recent acquisitions and business alliances that occurred in fiscal 2005. These additional
costs, along with industry technology transitions, place significant risk on our ability to achieve and
maintain profitability, and, therefore have adversely impacted our profltablhty forecasts. Our annual
review of goodwill in the fourth quarter, of fiscal 2004 and 2003 determined that there was no impairment
related to our goodw111
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Other Charges (Gains).

Percentage Percentage
‘'FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Other Charges (Gains). . . . . e $(0.3) (105)% $6.0 291%  $1.5

Other charges consisted of asset impairment charges related to certain properties classified as assets
held for sale in fiscal 2004 and subsequently sold in fiscal 2005 and our minority investments. Other
charges also included charges associated with our strategic alliances with ServerEngines and Vitesse.

On March 16, 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with ServerEngines to develop and market
next-generation IP storage products. Under the terms of the alliance, ServerEngines employed 33 of our
former engineering employees and licensed certain technology and acquired certain assets related to our
iSCSI and TCP/IP offload protocol engines. On January 26, 2005, we entered into a strategic alliance with
Vitesse to develop and market next-generation SAS products. Under the terms of the alliance, Vitesse
employed 44 of our former engineering employees and licensed certain SAS technology and assets related
to our development of SAS ROC products. As a result, we incurred charges in fiscal 2005 of $0.9 million
and $1.6 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal fees
associated with the ServerEngines and Vitesse alliances, respectively.

In fiscal 2004, we recorded an impairment charge of $5.0 million to reduce the carrying value of
certain properties classified as assets held for sale to fair value less cost to sell. We decided to consolidate
our properties in Milpitas, California to better align our business needs with existing operations and to
provide more efficient use of our facilities. As a result, two owned buildings, including associated building
improvements and property, plant and equipment, were classified as assets held for sale and were included
in “Other current assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2004 at their expected fair value
less expected cost to sell. In October 2004, we completed the sale of these properties that were previously
classified as held for sale. Net proceeds from the sale of the properties aggregated $9.6 million, which
exceeded our estimated fair value of $6.8 million. As a result, a gain on the sale of the properties of
$2.8 million was recorded in fiscal 2005 as a credit to “Other charges (gains)” in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

We hold minority investments in non-public companies. We regularly monitor these minority
investments for impairment and record reductions in the carrying values when necessary. Circumstances
that indicate an other-than-temporary decline include valuation ascribed to the issuing company in
subsequent financing rounds, decreases in quoted market price and declines in operations of the issuer. We
recorded impairment charges of $1.0 million and $1.5 million in fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively,
related to a decline in the value of minority investments deemed to be other-than-temporary.

Interest and Other Income.

C Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003

(in millions, except percentages)

Interest iNCOME . « o . vt v v $11.8 (39)% $19.2 36)% $29.9
Gain on settlement with former president of DPT .. —_ (100)% 493 100% —
Payment of license fee with NSE . .............. 1.7 100% — — —
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt ......... . — (100)%  (6.5) (296)% 3.3
Realized loss on repatriation . . ................ (45)  100% — — —
Other. ... ... 28 (3N% 4.4 549% 0.7
Total Interest and Other Income . .. ............ §_8_4 8N% $66.4 96%  $33.9

41




Interest and other income is primarily attributable to interest income earned on our cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities, gains or losses from the repurchase of our 3% Notes and 4%%
Notes, fluctuations in foreign currency gains or losses, realized gams and losses on marketable securities

and sublease income received from third parties.

The decrease in interest and other income in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 was primarily due
to: (1) a gain recorded in fiscal 2004 of $49.3 million in relation to a settlement with the former president
of DPT; (2) lower interest income earned on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities related
to lower average cash balances; (3) realized losses.on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities,
of which $4.5 million primarily resulted from the liquidation of investments held by our Singapore
subsidiary in connection with the repatriation of undistributed earnings to the U.S.; and (4) a one-time
fully paid-up license fee of $1.7 million to NSE, which was recorded in fiscal 2005, primarily for historical
products that incorporated certain technology. This was partially offset by losses of $6.5 million on the
repurchase of our 3% Notes and the redemption of our 4%% Notes in fiscal 2004 and a refund from the
State Board of Equalization for prior qualifying sales and use tax payments of $0.7 million in fiscal 2005.
For further discussion on the settlement with the former president of DPT and NSE, please refer to Note 8

to the Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements

The increase in interest and other i income in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was primarily due
to a gain of $49.3 million in relation to a settlement with the former president of DPT and net realized
gains of $2.0 million on foreign currency transactions. These gains were partially offset by lower interest
income earned on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities related to lower average cash
balances and lower yields received on our investments and losses on the repurchase of our 3% Notes and
the redemption of our 4¥%% Notes. In fiscal 2004, we recorded a loss of $5.7 million related to the
repurchase of $214.8 million in principal amount of our 3% Notes and a loss of $0.8 million related to the
redemption of $82.4 million in principal amount of our 4%% Notes. In fiscal 2003, we recorded a gain of
$3.3 million related to the repurchase of $120.4 million in principal amount of our 4%% Notes.

Interest Expense,
Percentage Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003
(in millions, except percentages)

~ Interesf EXPENSe ... oivevinnnin.. $(4.4) 53)% $(9.4) (43)Y% $(16.9)

Interest expense is prlmanly associated w1th our %% Notes, 3% Notes and 4% Notes, issued in
December 2003, March 2002 and February 1997, respectively. The decrease in interest expense for fiscal -
2005 compared to fiscal 2004 was primarily due to the reduction in the outstanding balances of the 3%
Notes and 4%% Notes, partially offset by interest éxpense related to our %% Notes. The decrease in
interest expense for fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was primarily due to the reduction in the
outstanding balances of the 3% Notes, 4%% Notes and the General Holdback due to Platys shareholders,
partially offset by interest expense related to our %% Notes. We expect future interest expense to decrease
as we repurchased $18.8 million in principal amount of our 3% Notes subsequent to March 31, 2005.

Income Taxes.

Percentage : Percentage
FY 2005 Change FY 2004 Change FY 2003
(in millions, except percentages)

Provision For (Benefit From) Income Taxes.  $52.7 260)% $(33.0) 1354%  $(2.3)

For fiscal 2005, we recorded an income tax provision of $52.7 million on a pre-tax loss of $92.4 million.
Our fiscal 2005 effective income tax rate included an increase in the valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets of $67.9 million and tax on repatriation of $17.6 million offset by a net tax benefit of $26.4 million
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from discrete events relating to the method and amount of settled tax controversies. Our effective tax rate
for fiscal 2005 also differs from the combined United States federal and state statutory income tax rate of
40% primarily due to acquisition related charges for which no tax benefit is derived.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $67.9 million was recorded at March 31, 2005 as we
determined that it was more likely than not that our U.S. deferred tax assets would not be realized. We
continuously monitor the circumstances impacting the expected realization of our deferred tax assets on a
jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. At March 31, 2005, our analysis of our deferred tax assets demonstrated
that it was more likely than not that all of our U.S. deferred tax assets would not be realized. Factors that
led to this conclusion included, but were not limited to, our past operating results, cumulative tax losses in
the U.S., and uncertain future income on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. The estimates of expected
future income were negatively impacted by increased costs related to recent acquisitions and business
alliances that occurred in fiscal 2005. These additional costs, along with industry technology transitions,
place significant risk on our ability to achieve and maintain profitability and therefore have adversely
impacted the profitability forecasts initially used to release the valuation allowance in fiscal 2004.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, also referred to as the Act, was signed
into law. The Act creates a temporary incentive for U.S. companies to repatriate accumulated foreign
earnings subject to certain limitations by providing a one-time deduction of 85% for certain dividends from
controlled foreign corporations. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we repatriated $360.6 million of
undistributed earnings from Singapore to the United States, resulting in a tax liability of $17.6 million. The
one-time deduction is allowed to the extent that the repatriated amounts are used to fund a qualified
Domestic Reinvestment Plan, as required by the Act. If we do not spend the repatriated funds in
accordance with our reinvestment plan, we may incur additional tax liabilities. We have not provided for
U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on the remaining undistributed earnings of
$255.6 million since these earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely. Although we do not have any
current plans to repatriate the remaining undistributed earnings from our Singapore subsidiary to our
United States parent company, if we were to do so, additional income taxes at the combined United States
Federal and state statutory rate of approximately 40% could be incurred from the repatriation.

The net tax benefit of $26.4 million for fiscal 2005 related to settled tax controversies, which includes
discrete items totaling $31.9 million related to the amount and methodology of resolving issues related to
the IRS’s audit of our federal income tax audits from fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2001, offset by changes in
current pending IRS audits.

For fiscal 2004, we recorded an income tax benefit of $33.0 million on a pre-tax income of
$29.9 million. Our fiscal 2004 effective income tax rate included a tax benefit for the reduction in the
valuation allowance of $21.6 million and the reduction of previously accrued tax related liabilities of
$6.3 million. The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was established in fiscal 2002 as we
determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be realized. We
continuously monitor the circumstances impacting the expected realization of our deferred tax assets and
the tax provisions established for fiscal years under IRS audit. At March 31, 2004, our analysis of our
deferred tax assets demonstrated that it was more likely than not that all of our deferred tax assets would
be realized. Factors that led to this conclusion included, but were not limited to, expected future income,
which included the completion of key products based on serial technologies, and increased revenue
opportunities, particularly for our systems products, and our historical success in managing our deferred
tax assets. In addition, our acquisitions and business alliances, together with our streamlined operations
and revised product roadmaps, were expected to be accretive in future periods. Accordingly, we released
the valuation.allowance and additional tax provision in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, based on our
conclusion that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets existing at March 31, 2004 would be
realized. Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2004 also differs from the combined United States federal and
state statutory income tax rate of 40% primarily due to the tax benefits from our Singapore tax holiday,
research and development credits, and the tax benefit applicable to the DPT purchase price adjustment.
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For fiscal 2003, we recorded an income tax benefit of $2.3 million on a pre-tax loss of $17.7 mitlion.
Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2003 generally differs from the combined United States federal and state'
statutory income tax rate of 40% primarily due to the amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets
that are not fully deductible for tax purposes, changes in our valuation allowance, foreign earnings taxed at
different rates and research and development credits. '

Our subsidiary in Singapore is currently operating under a tax holiday. We have agreed to terms for a
new tax holiday package effective for fiscal years 2005 through 2010. The new tax holiday will provide that
profits derived from certain products will be exempt from tax, subject to certain conditions. -

Our tax-related liabilities were $57.5 million and $65.8 million at March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Fluctuations in the tax related liability account were a function of the current tax provisions, '
utilization of deferred tax assets and the timing of tax payments. Tax related liabilities are primarily
composed of income, withholding and transfer taxes accrued by us in the taxing jurisdictions in which we
operate around the world, including, but not limited to, the United States, Singapore, Ireland, United
Kingdom, Japan, and Germany. The amount of the liability was based on management’s evaluation of our’
tax exposures in light of the complicated nature of the business transactions we have entered into in a
global business environment. '

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Key Components of Cash Flow

Cash used for operations was $10.3 million in fiscal 2005.compared to cash generated from operations
of $95.4 million in fiscal 2004 and $59.7 million in fiscal 2003. Cash used for operations for fiscal 2005
resulted primarily from our net loss. This was offset by the benefit of non-cash items inciuded in operating
results which primarily consisted of our goodwill impairment of $52.3 million, decrease in our deferred tax
assets of $50.7 million, depreciation and amortization of intangible assets and property.and equipment of
$50.6 million, write-off of acquired in procéss technology of $5.2 million and amortization of deferred
stock-based compensation of $3.2 million. Additional factors included the non-cash effect on tax
settlcment of $26.0 million, gain on the sale of long-lived assets of $1.4 million and changes to working
capital assets’ and liabilities, excluding the impact of balances acquired from Snap Appliance and the IBM
i/p Series RAID business, that decreased cash provided by operating activities by $0.9 million.

Operating cash for fiscal 2004 resulted primarily from our net income of $62.9 million, adjusted for
non-cash items including depreciation and amortization of intangible assets of $51.8 million, amortization
of deferred stock-based compensation of $4.1 million, write-off of acquired in process technology of
$7.6 million, impairment loss recognized on assets held for sale of $5.0 million, write-off of minority
investment of $1.0 million and loss of $6.5 million related to the repurchase of our 3% Notes and 4%%
Notes offset by the non-cash portion of the gain on settlement with the former president of DPT of
$18.3 million. These factors were partially offset by changes to working capital assets and liabilities,
excluding the impact of balances acquired from Eurologic, ICP vortex and Elipsan, that decreased cash
provided by operating act1v1t1es by $1.9 million. ’ '

Days sales outstandlng increased to 57 at March 31, 2005 as compared to 41 at March 31, 2004,
reflecting .an increase in OEM revenue in which customers generally have longer payment terms. The
increase was not due to changes.in the credit quality of our' customers. Annualized inventory turns
decreased to 5.2 at March 31, 2005 from 5.7 at March 31, 2004. Overall inventory levels were higher at the
end of fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 as we began manufacturing certain products that were previously
outsourced to subcontractors and increased inventory levels related to new systems products. Inventory
management will continue to be an area of focus as we balance the need to maintain strategic inventory
levels to ensure adequate supply and competitive lead tlmes w1th the risk of inventory obsolescence -and
customer requlrements
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Cash provided by investing activities was $340.8 million in fiscal 2005 compared to cash used in
investing activities of $22.9 million in fiscal 2004 and $120.4 million in fiscal 2003. The cash provided by
investing activities in fiscal 2005 was primarily related to sales and maturities of restricted marketable
securities and marketable securities, net of purchases, of $470.6 million. This was offset by our use of cash
for the acquisitions of Snap Appliance and the IBM i/p Series RAID business of $124.0 million. The cash
used in investing activities in fiscal 2004 was primarily due to our acquisitions of Eurologic, ICP vortex and
Elipsan, payment of holdback in connection with our acquisition of Platys, offset by net sales and
maturities of marketable securities. '

Cash provided by financing activities was $8.5 million in fiscal 2005 compared to cash used for
financing activities of $110.2 million in fiscal 2004 and $111.4 million in fiscal 2003. The cash provided by
financing activities in fiscal 2005 was related to net proceeds received from our issuance of common stock
in connection with purchases made under our employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of stock
options. The cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2004 was primarily driven by repurchases of our 4%%
and 3% Notes offset by net proceeds from the issuance of new convertible debt as further described below.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Financial Condition

At March 31, 2005, we had $526.6 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, of which
approximately $50 million was held by our Singapore subsidiary. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we
repatriated $360.6 million of undistributed earnings from Singapore to the United States and incurred a
tax liability of $17.6 million. We have not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign withholding
taxes on the remaining undistributed earnings since these earnings totaling approximately $255.6 million
are intended to be reinvested indefinitely. Although we do not have any current plans to repatriate the
remaining undistributed earnings from our Singapore subsidiary to our United States parent company, if
we were to do so, additional income taxes at the combined United States Federal and state statutory rate
of approximately 40% could be incurred from the repatriation.

In December 2003, we issued $225.0 million of %% Notes due December 22, 2023. The issuance costs
associated with the %% Notes totaled $6.8 million and the net proceeds from the offering were
$218.2 million. In conjunction with the issuance of the %% Notes, we spent $64.1 million to enter into a
convertible bond hedge transaction. We also received $30.4 million from the issuance of warrants to
purchase up to 19.2 million shares of our common stock. Please refer to Note 6 for a detailed discussion of
our debt and equity transactions. We utilized the proceeds from the issuance of %% Notes to repurchase
$214.8 million in aggregate principal amount of the 3% Notes. Additionally, through the end of fiscal 2004,
we redeemed the outstanding principal balance of $82.4 million of our 4%% Notes. At March 31, 2005, we
had $260.2 million of aggregate principal amount in convertible notes that are due in March 2007 and
December 2023 in the amount of $35.2 million and $225.0 million, respectively. Subsequent to fiscal
year-end, we repurchased $18.8 million of the 3% Notes on the open market for $18.6 million, resulting in
a loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $0.1 million (including unamortized debt issuance costs of
$0.3 million). The loss on extinguishment of debt will be included in “Interest and other income” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

We are required to maintain restricted cash or investments to serve as collateral for the first six
scheduled interest payments and the first ten scheduled interest payments on our 3% Notes and %%
Notes, respectively. As of March 31, 2005, we had $6.4 million of restricted cash and restricted marketable
securities, consisting of United States government securities, of which $1.8 million was classified as
short-term and $4.6 million was long-term.

- We expect capital expenditures to amount to between $8.0 million and $15.0 million during fiscal
2006, without taking into account any acquisitions.

The IRS is currently auditing our income tax returns for fiscal 1997 and final settlement agreements
have been filed with the United States Tax Court on all but one issue. In addition, the IRS is auditing our
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Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2001. We have resolved all issues for fiscal 1998
through fiscal 2001 other than the rollover impact of any potential resolution on the remaining fiscal 1997
issue and tax credits that were generated but not used in subsequent years that may be carried back. The
fiscal 2000 and 2001 audit is ongoing. We believe that we have sufficient tax provisions for these years. We
believe the final outcome of the IRS audits will not have a material adverse impact on our liquidity.

We believe that our cash balances and the cash flows generated by operations will be sufficient to
satisfy our anticipated cash needs for working capital and capital expenditures for at least the next
12 months. However, we may require additional cash to fund acquisitions or investment opportunities. In

these instances, we may seck to raise such additional funds through public or private equity or debt

financings or from other sources. We may not be able to' obtain adequate or favorable financing at that
time. Any equity financing we obtain may dilute your ownership interests and any -debt financing could

contain covenants that impose limitations on the conduct of our business.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at March 31, 2005.

Payments Due By Period

Less than 1 More than 5 -
Contractual Obligations (in thousands) Total ~ Year 1-3 years  3-5 years years
Long-Term Debt and Associated Interest .. ... $294,364 § 2,743  $39,621 §$ 3,375 $248,625
Operating Leases ... ............... e 37,533 8,554 12,161 4,883 11,935
Purchase Obligations® . . . ........... ce 8,866 8,866 — — —
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on _ o
_ Balance Sheet Under GAAP ............ 24,518 11,846 8,396v . 3,750 526
Total ... .ooiii i P . $365,281  $32,009 360,178 . $12,008  $261,086 '

(1) For the purposes of this table, contractual obligations for the purchase of goods or services are
defined as agreements that are enforceable, non-cancelable and legally binding and that specify all
significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable
price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Our purchase orders are based on our
current needs and are fulfilled by our vendors within short time horizons. The expected timing of
payment of the obligations discussed above was estimated based on information available to us as of
March 31, 2005. Timing of payments and actual amounts paid may be different depending on the time
of receipt of goods or services or changes to agreed-upon amounts for some obligations.

We invest in technology companies through two venture capital funds, Pacven Walden Venture V ‘
Funds and APV Technology Partners II, L.P. At March 31, 2005, the carrying value of such investments

aggregated $3.3 million. We have also committed to provide additional funding of up to $0.5 million.

Off Balance-Sheet Arrangements

In conjunction with the %% Notes offering in December 2003, we entered into a convertible bond
hedge transaction with an affiliate of one of the original purchasers of the %% Notes. The convertible
bond hedge is designed to mitigate stock dilution from conversion of the %% Notes. The convertible bond
hedge has value if the average market price per share of our common stock upon exercise or expiration of
the bond hedge is greater than $11.704 per share. Under the convertible bond hedge arrangement, the
counterparty agreed to sell to us up to 19.2 million shares of our common stock, which is the number of
shares issuable upon conversion of the %% Notes in full, at a price of $11.704 per share. The convertible
bonid hedge transaction may be settled at our option either in cash or net shares and expires in
December 2008. Settlement of the convertible bond hedge in net shares on the expiration date would
result in us receiving a number of shares of our common stock with a value equal to the amount otherwise
receivable on cash settlement. Should there be an early unwind of the convertible bond hedge transaction,
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the amount of cash or net shares potentially received by us will depend upon then-existing overall market
conditions, and on our stock price, the volatility of our stock and the amount of time remaining on the
convertible bond hedge.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on the
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
describes the significant accounting policies essential to the consolidated financial statements. The
preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts and disclosures. Although we believe that our judgments and estimates are appropriate and
correct, actual future results may differ materially from our estimates.

. We believe the following to be our critical accounting policies because they are both important to the
portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and they require critical management
judgments and estimates about matters that are uncertain. If actual results or events differ materially from
those contemplated by us in making these estimates, our reported financial condition and results of
operation for future periods could be materially affected. See “Risk Factors” for certain risks relating to
our future operating results.

Revenue Recognition: We recognize revenue from the majority of our product sales, including sales to
OEMSs, distributors and retailers, upon shipment from us, provided that persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue
from sales of our external storage products, where software is essential to the functionality, is recognized
when passage of title and risk of ownership is transferred to customers, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, which is typically upon sale of product by our customer, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Our distributor arrangements provide distributors with certain product rotation rights. Additionally,
we permit our distributors to return products subject to certain conditions. We establish allowances for
expected product returns in accordance with SFAS No. 48. We also establish allowances for rebate
payments under certain marketing programs entered into with distributors. These allowances comprise our
revenue reserves and are recorded as direct reductions of revenue and accounts receivable. We make
estimates of future returns and rebates based primarily on our past experience as well as the volume of
products in the distributor channel, trends in distributor inventory, economic trends that might impact
customer demand for our products (including the competitive environment), the economic value of the
rebates being offered and other factors. In the past, actual returns and rebates have not been significantly
different from our estimates. However, actual returns and rebates in any future period could differ from
our estimates, which could impact the net revenue we report.

Inventory: The valuation of inventory requires us to estimate obsolete or excess inventory as well as
inventory that are not of saleable quality. The determination of obsolete or excess inventory requires us to
estimate the future demand for our products within specific time horizons, generally six to twelve months.
To the extent our demand forecast for specific products is less than our product on hand and our
non-cancelable orders, we could be required to record additional inventory reserves, which would have a
negative impact on our gross margin. Additionally, if actual demand is higher than our demand forecast for
specific products that have been fully reserved, our future margins may be higher.
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Goodwill: Goodwill is initially recorded when the purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the .
estimated fair value of the net identified-tangible and intangible assets acquired. We perform an annual
review on the last day of February of each year, or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment
exist, to determine if the recorded goodwill is impaired. Our impairment review process compares the fair
value of our segments (which we have determined to be our reporting units) to their carrying value,
including the goodwill related to the segments. To determine the fair value, our review process uses the
income, or discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach, which utilizes comparable -
companies’ data. The discounted future cash flow approach uses estimates including the following for each
segment: revenue, based on assumed market growth rates and our assumed market share; estimated costs;
and appropriate discount rates based on the particular business’s welghted average cost of capital. Our
estimates of market segment growth, our market segment share and costs are based on historical data, .
various internal estimates and certain external sources, and are based on assumptions that are consistent
with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying businesses. Our business consists of
both established and emerging technologies and our forecasts for emerging technologies are based upon
internal estimates and external sources rather than historical information. If future forecasts are revised, -
they may indicate or require future impairment charges. We also considered our market capitalization on
the dates of our impairment tests under SFAS 142, in determining the fair value of the respective
businesses. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds ‘its implied fair value, goodwill is"
considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.
We performed our annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 and determined .
that goodwill was impaired. As a result, we recorded an impairment ‘charge of $52.3 million in fiscal 2005
related to our Channel segment. ‘

The discounted cash flow approach for estimating the fair value is dependent on a number of factors’
including estimates of future market growth, forecasted revenue and costs, expected periods the assets will
be utilized and appropriate discount rates used to calculate the discounted.cash flow. Cur fair value:
estimates, as well as the allocation of net assets to reporting units, are based on assumptions we believe to
be reasonable but which are unpredlctable and mherently uncertam and as a result, actual results may
differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes: We must make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for:
financial statement purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets:
and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and,
financial statement purposes. ;

We miust assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets.. We consider
historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. If
recovery is not likely, we must increase our provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against
the deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. As a result of our analysis of
expected future income at March 31, 2005, it was considered more likely than not that a valuation
allowance for all U.S. deferred tax assets was required, resulting in a $67.9 million tax provision. Should
positive evidence cause the likelihood of the recoverability of the deferred tax. assets to change in future
periods, reversals of the valuation allowance could have a significant impact on future results of
operations. As a result of our analysis of expected future income at March 31, 2004, it was considered more
likely than not that a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was not required, resultmg in the release
of previously recorded allowance generating a $21.6 million tax benefit.

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application
of complex global tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and
other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and
related interest will be due. If we ultimately determine that payment of these amounts is unnecessary, we
reverse the liability and recognize a tax benefit during the period in which we determine that the liability is
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no longer necessary. We record an additional charge in our provision for taxes in the period in which we
determine that the recorded tax liability is less than we expect the ultimate assessment to be. Tax related
liabilities were released generating a net tax benefit of $26.4 million and $6.3 million in fiscal 2005 and
fiscal 2004, respectively. For a discussion of current tax matters, see Note 14 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. S

Acquisitions and Other Major Transactions

We are continually exploring strategic acquisitions to build upon our existing library of intellectual
property and enhance our technological leadership in the markets where we operate.

Fiscal 2005
Acquisitions

During the second quarter of fiscal 2005, we purchased Snap Appliance. During the first quarter of
fiscal 2005, we purchased the IBM i/p Series RAID business. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisitions and the results of operations of the acquired entities
were included in our consolidated financial statements as of the respective effective dates of the
acquisitions. There were no significant differences between our accounting policies and those of the
IBM i/p Series RAID business and Snap Appliance.

Snap Appliance: On July 23, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Snap Appliance, a provider of
NAS products, to expand our product offerings in the external storage market and to deliver cost-effective,
scalable and easy-to-use DAS, NAS, Fibre Channel and IP-based SAN products from the workgroup to the
data center. The total purchase price was $84.4 million, consisting of $77.4 million in cash and transaction
fees and $7.0 million related to the fair value of assumed stock options to purchase 1.2 million shares of
our common stock. The assumed stock options were valued using the Black-Scholes valuation model with
the following assumptions: volatility rate of 58%; a risk-free interest rate of 2.6%; and an estimated life of
2.25 years. Snap Appliance is included in our Channel segment (Note 17).

Of the total assumed stock options, stock options to purchase approximately 0.7 million shares of our
common stock, with exercise prices ranging between $1.42 and $5.66 per share, were unvested, which we
refer to as the Snap Unvested Options. The Snap Unvested Options have a ten-year term and vest
primarily over four years from the date of grant. The intrinsic value of the Snap Unvested Options of -
$3.6 million was accounted for as deferred stock-based compensation and is being recognized as
compensation expense over the related vesting periods. In fiscal 2005, we recorded a reduction of
$0.2 million of deferred stock-based compensation related to cancellations of Snap Unvested Options. In
fiscal year 2005, the Consolidated Statement of Operations included stock-based compensation expense
with respect to Snap Unvested Options of $1.0 million.

In addition, a management incentive program was established to pay former employees of Snap
Appliance cash payments totaling $13.8 million, which is being paid, contingent upon their employment
with us, over a two-year period through the second quarter of fiscal 2007. Payments under the management
incentive program will be expensed as employees meet their employment obligations or are recorded as
part of the Snap Appliance acquisition-related restructuring for involuntarily terminations by us. In fiscal
2005, the Consolidated Statements of Operations included compénsation expense related to the
management incentive program of $5.7 million and an additional $1.4 million was originally accrued in the
Snap Appliance acquisition-related restructuring. -

A portion of the Snap Appliance acquisition: price totéling $5.4 million was held back, and in
connection with the management incentive program, $1.3 million will be held back for a total of
$6.7 million, also referred to as the Snap Appliance Holdback, for unknown liabilities that may have
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existed as of the acquisition-date. The Snap Appliance Holdback will be paid in the second quarter of frscal ‘
2006, except for funds necessary to provrde for any pending clarms

Acquzsztmn-Related Restructurmg In the thrrd and fourth quarter of frscal 2005, we refined our plan to
integrate the Snap Appliance operations related to integrating certain duphcatrve resources for both ;
severance and benefits in connection with the involuntary termination of approximately 24 employees, .
exiting duplicative facilities and the disposal of duplicative assets. The acqursrtlon -related restructuring
liabilities were accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included in the purchase price .
allocation of the cost to acquire Snap Appliance. We recorded a preliminary estimate of $6.0 million in the -
second quarter of fiscal 2005 for these activities. In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005, ‘we
recorded a $0.8 million increase to the accrued restructuring charges with a corresponding change to
goodwill as our plans were further refined. We expect to execute the integration plan as currently designed; -
however, actual results and costs may differ as the plan is executed. Any further changes to our estimate -
will result in an increase or decrease to the accrued restructuring charges and a corresponding increase or
decrease to goodwill. As of March 31, 20035, we utilized $3.7 million of these'charges. We anticipate that |
the remaining restructuring reserve balance of $3.1 million wrll be paid out by thlrd quarter of fiscal 2012,
primarily related to long-term facility leases. : -~

IBM i/p Senes RAID: On June 29, 2004, we completed the acquisition of IBM’s i/p Series RAID
component business line consisting of certain purchased RAID data protection intellectual property,
semiconductor designs and assets, and licensed from IBM related RAID intellectual property. The °
licensing agreement grants us the right to use IBM’s: RAID ‘technology and embedded Power PC
technology for our internal and external RAID products to be sold to IBM and other customers. In
conjunction with the acquisition, we also entered into a'three-year exclusive product supply agreement
under which:we will supply RAID software, firmware and hardware to IBM for use in IBM’s iSeries and
pSeries servers. We also entered into an agreement for IBM to provide silicon wafer manufacturing
processing setvices to us for the term of the supply agreement at agreed upon rates.

The total purchase price is estrmated at $49.5 million, which consists of a cash payment to IBM of
$47.5 million, warrants valued at $1.1 million, net of registration costs, and transaction costs of
$0.9 million. In connection with the acquisition, we issued to IBM a warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of
our common:stock at an exercise price of $8.13 per share. The warrant has a term of 5 years from the date
of issuance and is immediately exercisable. The warrant was valued using' the Black-Scholes valuation
model using a volatility rate of 62%, a risk-free interest rate of 3.9% and an estimated life of 5 years. The
transaction costs consist primarily of legal, valuation and other fees. The IBM i/p Series RAID business is
included in our OEM segment (Note 17) ,

We also entered into a service agreement whrch was subsequently amended for IBM to provide
certain research and development services and to provide access to IBM’s semiconductor design tools. The
semiconductor design tools license agreement is for two years at a total cost of $8.4 million and is payable
in quarterly installments; however, the agreement can be cancelled by us in any quarter, which termination
would reliéve any obhgatrons for us to make future quarterly 1nstallment payments to IBM.

IBM Distribution Agreement

In December 2004, we entered 1nto a dlstrrbutlon agreement with IBM for our RAID controllers and
connectivity products sold. for IBM’s iSeries and pSeries servers. The agreement was made through an
amendment to our existing i/p Series RAID supply and intellectual property agreement entered into in
June 2004 (See Note 2). The distribution agreement is accounted for as a standalone transaction as it was
not contemplated at the time we entered into the orrgmal IBM i/p Series RAID transaction.

Under the amended intellectual property agreement, we.are required to make fixed and royalty-based
payments to IBM. The fixed payments potentially due under the arrangement total $52.1 million, of which
$25.0 million was paid in December 2004, the date we entered into the agreement, and the remainder is
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due quarterly, in varied installments, through December 2008. A portion of the $52.1 million in total
payments is contingent upon IBM purchasing certain levels of our products. Upon entering into the
agreement, we recorded the full remaining amount payable to IBM as a liability in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as we consider payment of the full amount to be probable. At March 31, 2005, $11.6 million
was recorded in “Accrued Liabilities” and $11.9 million was recorded in “Other Long-Term Liabilities” in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The fixed consideration for the distribution agreement of $52.1 million was recorded as an asset to
“Prepaid -expenses” and “Other long-term assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the
amortization is included in “Net revenues” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations over a four-year
period, reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are expected to be realized. The
royalty-based fee per unit is calculated using the average net sales price for units sold within the quarter
and baseline royalty rates subject to certain adjustment factors. The amortization of the fixed consideration
and the royalty-based payments are recorded as a reduction to revenue in the period the units are sold.

Fiscal 2004

During the first quarter of fiscal 2004, we purchased Eurologic and ICP vortex. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004, we purchased Elipsan. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the acquisitions and the results of operations of the acquired entities were included in
our consolidated financial statements as of the respective effective dates of the acquisitions. There were no
significant differences between our accounting policies and those of Eurologic, ICP vortex or Elipsan.

Eurologic: On April 2, 2003, we completed the acquisition of Eurologic, a provider of external and
networked storage products. We acquired Eurologic to further enhance our direct-attached and fibre-
attached server storage capabilities by allowing us to provide end-to-end block- and file-based networked
storage products. As consideration for the acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of Eurologic,
we paid $25.6 million in cash, subject to a Holdback as described below, and assumed stock options to
purchase 0.5 million shares of our common stock, with a fair value of $1.6 million. We also incurred
$1.1 million in transaction fees, including legal, valuation and accounting fees. The assumed stock options
were valued using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions: volatility rate ranging
from 57% to 81%; a risk-free interest rate ranging from 1.1% to 2.5%; and an estimated life ranging from
0.08 to 4 years. Eurologic’s goodwill and amortizable intangible assets were allocated based on the relative
fair values of our OEM and Channel segments (Note 17).

Holdback: As part of the Eurologic purchase agreement, $3.8 million of the cash payment was held
back, also known as the Holdback, for unknown liabilities that may have existed as of the acquisition date.
The Holdback, which was included as part of the purchase price, was included in “Accrued liabilities” in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2005 and was to be paid to the former Eurologic
stockholders 18 months after the acquisition closing date, except for funds necessary to provide for any
pending claims. We paid $2.3 million of the Holdback as of March 31, 2005 and have asserted claims
against the remaining amount for liabilities of which we became aware following the consummation of the
transaction. The former Eurologic stockholders have disputed these claims and have requested release of
the remaining Holdback.

Earn-out Payments: We also agreed to pay the stockholders of Eurologic contingent consideration of
up to $10.0 million in cash if certain revenue levels were achieved by the acquired Eurologic business in the
period from July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004. The milestone to achieve the contingent consideration was
not attained as of June 30, 2004. As a result, no additional payments were made to former stockholders of
Eurologic.

Acquisition-Related Restructuring: During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we finalized our plans to
integrate the Eurologic operations. The integration plan included the involuntary termination or relocation
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of approximately 110 employees, exiting duplicative facilities and the transition of all manufacturing
operations from Dublin, Ireland to our manufacturing. facility in Singapore. The consolidation of the
manufacturing operations as well as involuntary employee terminations was completed in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004. The acquisition-related restructuring liabilities were accounted for. under EITF
No. 95-3 and therefore were included in the purchase price allocation of the ‘cost to acquire Eurologic. We
recorded a liability of $3.3 million in fiscal 2004 for these activities. As of Decémber 31, 2004, we utilized
approximately all of these charges and the plan is materially complete.

ICP vortex: On June 5, 2003, we completed the acquisition of ICP vortex. ICP vortex was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Intel Corporation and provided a broad range of hardware and software RAID data
protection products, including SCSI, SATA and fibre channel products. The final purchase price was
$14.5 million in cash, which included $0.3 million in transaction fees, consisting of legal, valuation and
accounting fees. This purchase price included a final adjustment of $0.1 million in the first quarter of fiscal
2005 to both goodwill and acquisitions costs. ICP vortex’s goodwill and amortizable intangible assets were
allocated based on the relative fair values of our OEM and Channel segments (Note 17).

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we finalized our plans to integrate the ICP vortex operations. .
The integration plan included the involuntary termination of 19 employees, the transfer of manufacturing
operations. to Singapore and the integration of certain duplicative resources. The acquisition-related
restructuring liabilities were accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included-in the purchase
price allocation of the cost to acquire ICP vortex. In fiscal 2004, we recorded a liability of $0.4 million _or
severance and benefits, of which $0.3 million of these charges were utilized and*$0.1 million was recorded
as a reduction to the restructuring liability with a correspondmg decrease to goodwill in the first quarter of
fiscal 2005.

Elipsan: - On February 13, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Elipsan, a provider of networked
storage infrastructure software. Elipsan’s storage virtualization technology will enable us to make storage
more cost-effective, easier to scale, and to increase performance actoss multiple RAID subsystems. The
final purchase price was $19.4 million in cash, which included $0.7 million in transaction fees, consisting of
legal, valuation and accounting fees. The purchase price included a final adjustment of $0.8 million in fiscal
2005, primarily related to the reversal of the acquisition-related restructuring reserves of approximately
$0.7 million. Elipsan’s goodwill and amortizable intangible assets were allocated based on the relatrve fair
values of our OEM and Channel segments (Note 17).

Holdback: As part of the Elipsan purchase agreement, $2.0 million of the cash payment was held
back, also known as the Elipsan Holdback; for unknown liabilities that may have existed as of the
acquisition date. The Elipsan Holdback, which was included-as part of the purchase price, is included in’
“Accrued liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2005 and will be paid to the former
Elipsan stockholders 18 months after the acquisition closing date, except for funds necessary to provide for
any unknown liabilities. o .

Acquisition-Related Restructuring: During the. fourth quarter of frscal 2005 we finalized our plans
related to the integration of the Elipsan operations. The . plan included the integration of certain
duplicative resources, related to both severance and benefits in connection with the involuntary
termination or relocation of employees and, accordingly, recorded a $0.8 million reserve as of March 31,
2004. In fiscal 2005, we recorded ‘an adjustment of $0.7 million as a reduction to the liability with a
corresponding decrease to goodwill as’ we intend to retain’ these employees. The -acquisition-related
restructuring liabilities were accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included in the purchase
price allocation of the cost to acquire Elipsan. As of March 31, 2005, we made payments of approximately
$25,000 under the plan. We anticipate that the remaining restructuring reserve balance of approximately
$45,000 will be paid out by the second quarter of fiscal 2006.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R). This statement replaces SFAS No. 123,
amends SFAS No. 95 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to apply
a fair-value based measurement method in accounting for share-based payment transactions with
employees and to record compensation expense for all stock awards granted and to awards modified,
repurchased or cancelled after the required effective date. In addition, we are required to record
compensation expense (as previous awards continue to vest) for the unvested portion of previously granted
awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption. In April 2005, the SEC approved that SFAS
No. 123(R) will be effective for annual periods, as opposed to interim periods as originally issued by the
FASB, beginning after June 15, 2005. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement;
however, we expect that it will have a significant impact on our consolidated balance sheet and statement
of operations. The impact on our consolidated financial statements will be dependent on the transition
method, the option-pricing model used to compute fair value and the inputs to that model such as volatility
and expected life. The pro forma disclosures of the impact of SFAS No. 123 provided in Note 1 may not be
representative of the impact of adopting this statement.

In March 2005, the SEC issued SAB 107, which offers guidance on SFAS No. 123(R). SAB 107 was
issued to assist preparers by simplifying some of the implementation challenges of SFAS No, 123(R) while
enhancing the information that investors receive. SAB 107 creates a framework that is premised on two
overarching themes: (a) considerable judgment will be required by preparers to successfully implement
FAS No. 123(R), specifically when valuing employee stock options; and (b) reasonable individuals, acting
in good faith, may conclude differently on the fair value of employee stock options. Key topics covered by
SAB 107 include valuation models, expected volatility and expected term. We will apply the principles of
SAB 107 in conjunction with our adoption of FAS No. 123(R).

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs-an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.” This statement clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of facility expense, freight,
handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) to require them to be recognized as current-period charges.
This statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.
Earlier application is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on
our consolidated balance sheet or statement of operations.

At its March 2004 meeting, the EITF reached a consensus on recognitioh and measurement guidance
previously discussed under EITF 03-01. The consensus clarified the meaning of other-than-temporary
impairment and its application to investments classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity
under SFAS No. 115 and investments accounted for under the cost method or the equity method. In
September 2004, the FASB delayed the recognition and measurement guidance to be applied to
other-than-temporary impairment evaluations. The FASB expects to issue additional implementation
guidance with respect to debt securities that are impaired solely due to interest rates and/or sector spreads.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for a change in interest rates relates primarily to our investment
portfolio. As of March 31, 2005, our available-for-sale debt investments, excluding those classified as cash
equivalents, totaled $91.3 million (see Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and
included corporate obligations, commercial paper, other debt securities, municipal bonds and United
States government securities, all of which are of high investment grade. They are subject to interest rate
risk and will decline in value if market interest rates increase. If market interest rates were to increase
immediately and uniformly by 10% from levels as of March 31, 2005, the decline in the fair value of the
portfolio would not be material to our financial position. Declines in interest rates will, over time, reduce
our interest income.




Equity Price Risk

We consider our direct exposure to equity price risk to be minimal. We invest in technology. companies
through two venture capital funds. As of March 31, 2005;.the carrying value-of such investments aggregated
$3.3 million. We monitor our equity investments on-a periodic basis. In the event that the carrying value of
our equity investments. exceeds their fair value, and. the decline in value is determined to be
other-than-temporary, the carrying value is reduced to its current-fair value. ‘

Foreign Currency Risk

We translate foreign currencies into U.S dollars for fepofting purposes; currency fluctuations can have
an impact on our results. For all-three years presented there was an immaterial currency exchange impact
from our intercompany transactions. In the past, we have entered into forward exchange contracts to
hedge certain firm commitments denommated into forelgn cuirencies. Forward exchange contracts are
denominated in the same currency as the underlymg transaction and the terms of the forward forengn
exchange contracts generally match the terms of the underlying transactioris. The amount of local currency
obligations settled in any period is not significant to our cash flows or results of operations, although we
continuously monitor the amount and timing of those obligations. As there were no forward exchange
contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, the effect of an immediate 10% change in exchange
rates on forward exchange contracts would not have affected.our financial position or results of operations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) on page 37 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
Consolidated Financial Statements at March 31, 2005 and 2004 and fof each of the three years in the
perlod ended March 31, 2005 and the Report of Independent Reglstered Pubhc Accountmg Firm.

Item 9. Changes in and Dzsagreements with Accountants on Accountmg and Financial Dzsclosure

" None.

Itenf 9A. Controls and Procedures ,
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under ‘the supervision and with the participation of our management,. mcludmg our Interim Chief

Executive Officer (CEO) and our Chief Financial Officer (CFO), we conducted an evaluation of our

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act), as of the end of the petiod covered by this Annual Report on .
Form 10-K. Based upon that evaluation, our Interim CEG and our CFO-have concluded that the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required -

to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,

summarized and reported within the time periods specified-in' Securities and Exchange Commission rules

and forms.

Management’s Report on Internal Centrel Over Financial Reporting '

" Our management is responsible for establishing and mamtammg adequate internal control over
f1nanc1a1 reporting. Our internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal ‘control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records
that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2005, the end of our fiscal year. Management based its assessment on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Management’s assessment included evaluation of such elements as the design and operating
effectiveness of financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies, and our overall
control environment. We reviewed the results of management’s assessment with the Audit Committee of
our Board of Directors.

Based on our assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of March 31, 2005.

Our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2005, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included herein.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the Interim CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls
and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative
to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls
can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any
system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there
can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future
conditions. Projections of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks.
Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the
degree of compliance with policies or procedures..

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant ’

Information with respect to our directors is incorporated by reference from the information under the
caption: “Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual |
Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 25, 2005, or the Proxy Statement. Information regarding the -
compliance by our directors, executive officers and 10% or greater stockholders with Section 16(a) of the -
Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption: “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” from our Proxy Statement. Information with respect to our
executive officers is included in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Executive
Officers.”

Adaptec maintains a Code of Business Conduct, Ethics, and Compliance, which incorporates our code
of ethics that is applicable to all employees, including all officers, and including our independent directors |
who are not employees of Adaptec, with regard to their Adaptec-related activities. The Code of Business
Conduct, Ethics, and Compliance incorporates our guidelines designed to deter wrongdoing and to
promote honest and ethical conduct and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It also .
incorporates our expectations of our employees that enable us to provide accurate and timely disclosure in
our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other public communications. In addition, it
incorporates Adaptec guidelines pertaining to topics such as health and safety compliance; d1ver51ty and
non-discrimination; supplier expectations; and privacy.

The full text of our Code of Business Conduict, Ethics, and Compliance is published on our Investor
Relations web site at www.adaptec.com. We will post any amendments to the Code of Business Conduct,
Ethics, and Compliance, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of either the
SEC or The Nasdaq Stock Market, on our website. '

Item 11. Executive Comp‘ensation

Information with respect to executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption “Executive Compensation,” “Compensatlon Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation” and “Report on Executive Compensatlon m our Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneﬁcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information with respect to the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation -
plans and the security. ownership of our common stock by our directors, executive officers and 5%
stockholders is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions: “Executive
Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Stock Ownership of Principal Stockholders
and Management” in our Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information with respect to certain relationships of our directors, executive officers and 5%
stockholders and related transactions is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption:
“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” in our Proxy Statement.

Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information with respect to principal independent registered public accounting firm fees and services
is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption “Proposal No. 3—Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” and “Fees Paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers” in our Proxy Statement. ‘
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PART IV
Item 185. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Index to Financial Statements:

The following Consolidated Financial Statements and Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm are contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Page
Consolidated Statements of Operations—Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 . . _F—l
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2005 and 2004 . .......... ... ... ... u.. F-2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2005 2004 and 2003. .. F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003 . . L e e e F-4
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. ... .. .. .. . .. F-5
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ........... ... ... ... ... F-38
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2. Financial Statement Schedule:

. SCHEDULE II |
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

Balance at Balance at .
Beginning ‘ End ;
of Period Additions Deductions of Period

{in thousands)

Year ended March 31, 2005

Allowance for doubtful accounts!. . .. ......... e $1209 $ 132§ 372§ 1,029
Salesreturns! . ... ... . e 3,960 . . 15,535 15,296 4,199
Allowances! .................. e e 4,727 23,362 17,999 - 10,090 -
Year ended March 31, 2004 R o -
Allowance for doubtful accounts!. .. ............... $ 1208 § 378 § 407 $ 1269 .
Salesreturns! . .. ..... .. ... ... ... .. T 3,904 13,112 13,056 3,960 ¢
Allowances! .. ... i e 3,930° ¢ 12,286 11,489 - 4,727
Year ended March 31, 2003 o : - ;
Allowance for doubtful accounts®. .. ............... $1114 $ 100 $ (84) $ 1,298
Sales returns! . ... e 5,174 14,788 16,058 3,904
Allowances! . .. ... .. e 2,216 12,180 10,466 3,930
Notes:

(1) Amounts are included in “Accounts receivable” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the amounts are immaterial or the
required information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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3. ' Exhibits:

Filed

Incorporated by Reference with

Exhibit . File this
Number Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit File Date  10-K

2.01 First Amended and Restated Master Separation
and Distribution Agreement between the
Registrant and Roxio, Inc., dated February 28,
" -2001. : ‘ 10-Q  000-15071 2.1 08/13/01

2.02 General Assignment and Assumption Agreement
between the Registrant and Roxio, Inc., dated

May 5, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 22 08/13/01
2.03 Indemnification and Insurance Matters
Agreement between the Registrant and Roxio,

Inc., dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 23 08/13/01

2.04 Master Patent Ownership and License
Agreement between the Registrant and Roxio,
Inc., dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 24 08/13/01

2.05 Master Technology Ownership and License
Agreement between Registrant and Roxio, Inc.,

dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 2.5 08/13/01
2.06 Master Confidential Disclosure Agreement

between the Registrant and Roxio, Inc., dated

May 5,-2001. 10-Q  000-15071. 2.6 08/13/01

207 Master Transitional Services Agreement between
the Registrant and Roxio, Inc., dated May 5,
2001. 10-Q  000-15071 2.7 08/13/01

2.08 Employee Matters Agreement between the
Registrant and Roxio, Inc., dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q 000-15071 2.8 08/13/01

2.09 Tax Sharing Agreement between the Registrant
and Roxio, Inc., dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 29 08/13/01

2.10 International Asset Transfer Agreement between
Adaptec Mfg (S) Pte Ltd and Roxio CI Ltd,,
dated May §, 2001. 10-Q  000-15071 212 08/13/01

2.11 Letter of Agreement between the Registrant and
Roxio, Inc., dated May 5, 2001. 10-Q 000-15071 2.13 08/13/01

212 Agreement and Plan of Merger and
Reorganization, dated July 2, 2001, by and
among the Registrant, Pinehurst Acquisition
Corporation and Platys Communications, Inc. 8-K  000-15071 2.1 09/07/01

301 Certificate of Incorporation of Registrént filed
with Delaware Secretary of State on’
November 19, 1997. 10-K  000-15071 31 06/26/98

3.02 Bylaws of Registrant, as amended on June 3,
2004. 10-K  000-15071 3.02 06/14/04

4,01 Indenture, dated as of March 5, 2002, by and
between the Registrant and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association. S-3 333-89666 4.04 06/03/02

4.02 Form of 3% Convertible Subordinated Note. S-3 333-89666 4.05 06/03/02

11
Q
=
=
—
N
~
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Filed

with
Exhibit File this
Number K . Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit File Date  18-K

Incorporated by Reference

4.03 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of
March 5, 2002, by and among the Registrant and
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Banc of America
Securities LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. . .
Incorporated. : S-3  333-89666 4.06 06/03/02

4.04 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement, dated -
as of March 5, 2002, by and among the
- Registrant, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as collateral agent. S-3 333-89666 4.07 06/03/02 !

4,05 Stock Purchase Warrant, dated March 24, 2002,
issued to International Business Machines )
Corporation. S-3- 333-86098 4.04 04/12/02

4.06 Indenture, dated as of December 22, 2003, by
and between the Registrant and Wells Fargo _ ,
Bank, National Association. .110-Q  000-15071 4.01 02/09/04

4.07 Form of 3% Convertible Senior Subordinated . :
Note. 10-Q 000-15071 4.02 02/09/04

4.08 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of
December 22, 2003, by and among the
Registrant, and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated and Banc of America
Securities LLC. 10-Q  000-15071 4.03 02/09/04

4.09 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement, dated
as of December 22, 2003, by and among the
Registrant, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee, and Wells Fargo Bank, o
National Association, as collateral agent. " 10-Q 000-15071 4.04 02/09/04

4.10 Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2004,
between the Registrant and International .
Business Machines Corporation S$-3  333-119266 4.03 09/02/04

4,11 Warrant Agreement, dated as of August 10,
2004, between the Registrant and International
Business Machines Corporation S-3  333-119266 4.04 09/02/04

4.12 Third Amended and Restated Rights Agreement
. dated February 1, 2001 between the Registrant
and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as Rights
Agent 8-A/A  000-15071 4.1 03/20/01

10.01f Registrant’s Savings and Retirement Plan. 10-K  000-15071 (A) (A)

10.02+ Second Amendment to the Registrant’s Savings
and Retirement Plan. 10-K- 000-15071 10.02 06/14/04

10.03% Third Amendment to the Registrant’s Savings
and Retirement Plan. : X

10.041 Registrant’s 1986 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(amended and restated June 1998, August 2000
and August 2003). : 10-Q  000-15071 10.01 11/03/03

10.05f 1990 Stock Plan, as amended. SCTO-I  005-38119 99.(d)(1) 05/22/01
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

Incorporated by Reference

File
Number

Exhibit

File Date

10.06

10.07%
10.08%

10.09%

10.10%

10.11*

10.12*

10.13

10.14*

10.15%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18%

10.19

Forms of Stock Option Agreement, Tandem
Stock Option/SAR Agreement, Restricted Stock
Purchase Agreement, Stock Appreciation Rights
Agreement, and Incentive Stock Rights
Agreement for use in connection with the 1990
Stock Plan, as amended.

1999 Stock Plan.

2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and Form
of Stock Option Agreement.

1990 Directors’ Option Plan and forms of Stock
Option Agreement, as amended.

2000 Director Option Plan and Form of
Agreement.

Option Agreement I between Adaptec
Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd. and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. dated
October 23, 1995.

Option Agreement II between Adaptec
Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd. and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. dated
October 23, 1995.

Modification to Amendment to Option
Agreement I & II between Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and
Adaptec Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd.

Amendment to Option Agreements I & II
between Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. and Adaptec Manufacturing (S) Pte.
Ltd.

Amendment No. 3 to Option Agreement I1
between Adaptec Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd.
and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd.

Amendment No. 4 to Option Agreement II
between Adaptec Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd.
and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. '

Amendment No. 5 to Option Agreement II
between Adaptec Manufacturing (S) Pte. Ltd.
and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd.

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered
into between Registrant and its officers and
directors.

Industrial Lease Agreement between the
Registrant, as Lessee, and Jurong Town
Corporation, as Lessor.

10-K405
SC TO-1

SC TO-1
10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

000-15071
005-38119

005-38119

000-15071

000-15071

. 000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

000-15071

(B)
99.(d)(2)

99.(d)(3)
10.6

10.1

10.1

10.2

10.17

10.16

10.15

10.15

10.01

10.14

10.16

(3B)
05/22/01

05/22/01
06/29/99

11/06/00

02/09/96

02/09/96

06/25/99

06/29/99

06/27/00

06/26/01

02/11/02

06/26/98

06/28/95

Filed
with
this
10-K




Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit File
Number - Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit File Date

1020  Amendment to the Industrial Lease Agreement

between the Registrant, as Lessee, and Jurong

Town Corporation, as Lessor. 10-K  000-15071 10.20 06/14/04
10.21  License Agreement between International

. Business Machines Corporation and the

Registrant. 10-K  000-15071 10.14 06/27/00
1022  Amendment to License Agreement between

International Business Machines Corporation

and the Registrant. 10-K  000-15071 10.21 06/24/02
10.23  Asset Purchase Agreément between

International Business Machines Corporation

and the Registrant. 10-K  000-15071 10.22 06/24/02
10.24*  Dell Supplier Master Purchase Agreement,

dated as of September 27, 2002, by and between

Dell Products L.P. and the Registrant. 8-K  000-15071 99.1 01/24/03
10.25%  Registrant’s Incentive Plan 10-Q  000-15071 10.01 08/09/04
10.261 Amended Registrant’s Incentive Plan ' 10-Q 000-15071 10.01 02/07/05
1027+ Ken Arola Termination Agreement 10-Q 000-15071 10.02 08/09/04
10.28 Base Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2002, by

and between the Registrant and International A

Business Machines Corporation 10-Q  000-15071 10.03 (08/09/04
10.29% 2004 Equity Incentive Plan S-8  333-119271 4.03 09/24/04
10.30t Form of Stock Option Agreement under the '

2004 Equity Incentive Plan 10-Q  000-15071 10.02 11/10/04
10.31¥ Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement

under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan 10-Q  000-15071 10.03 11/10/04
10.32+ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under

the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan 10-Q  000-15071 10.04 11/10/04
10.33% Registrant’s Variable Incentive Plan 10-Q 000-15071 ©  10.05 11/10/04
10.347  Registrant’s Deferred Compensation Plan

(amended and restated July 2004) 10-Q  000-15071 10.06 11/10/04
10.35%  Eurologic Systems Group Limited 1998 Share

Option Plan Rules (Amended as of 1 April

2003) S-8  333-104685 403 04/23/03
10.36% Broadband Storage, Inc. 2001 Stock Option and

Restricted Stock Purchase Plan S-8  333-118090 4.03 08/10/04
10.37+  Snap Appliance, Inc. 2002 Stock Option and

Restricted Stock Purchase Plan S-8  333-118090 4.04 08/10/04
10.38% Sundi Sundaresh offer letter, dated May 6, 2005 §-K  000-15071 10.01 05/26/05
10.39%  D. Scott Mercer offer letter 8-K  000-15071 10.01 06/06/05
10.401% Sundi Sundaresh offer letter, dated June 1, 2005 8-K  000-15071 10.02 06/06/05
1041% Chairman of the Board Compensation

Arrangement
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Incorporated by Reference Filed

with
Exhibit : File this
Number Exhibit Description Form Number ‘Exhibit File Date 10-K
10.42t  Eric Kelly Employment and Non-Competition
Agreement X
10.43f Marshall Mohr offer letter X
10447 Kok Yong Lim offer letter X
10.45%  Stargate Solutions, Inc. 1999 Incentive Stock
Plan S-8  333-69116 4.03 09/07/01
10.461 Distributed Processing Technology Corp.
Omnibus Stock Option Plan X
21.01  Subsidiaries of Registrant. ' X
23.01  Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. X
31.01  Certification of Interim Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 ' X

31.02  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. X

32.01  Certification of Interim Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. X

(A) Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
March 31, 1987. .

(B) Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
March 31, 1993.

t+  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Item 14(c) of said form.

*  Confidential treatment has been granted for portions of this agreement.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a)(3), above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(a)(2), above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the fequiremen_tsAof Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly,
authorized. '

ADAPTEC, INC.

Date: June 14, 2005 /s/ D. SCOTT MERCER

D. Scott Mercer
Interim Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature ' ‘ © " Title: " Date

/s/ D. SCOTT MERCER Interim Chief Executive Officer and
D. Scott Mercer Director (principal executive officer)

June 14, 2005

/s/ MARSHALL L. MOHR Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer (principal financial and June 14, 2005:
Marshall L. Mohr accounting offic_er) )
~ /s/ CARL J. CONTL SR . - : o
- Chairman June 14, 2005
Carl J. Conti
/s/ LUCIE J. FIELDSTAD i
— : Director ‘ ; June 14, 2005
Lucie J. Fjeldstad : - e
/s/ JOSEPH S. KENNEDY .
Director June 14, 2005
Joseph S. Kennedy
/s/ ILENE H. LANG . o e C .
Director June 14, 2005
Ilene H. Lang R ,
/s/ ROBERT J. LOARIE _ '
Director . June 14, 2005 .
Robert J. Loarie r
/s/ DR. DouGLAS E. VAN HOUWELING i ,
Director June 14, 2005

Dr. Douglas E. Van Houweling

64




SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Adaptec Mfg. (S) Pte. Ltd.
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3
(Nos. 333-34360, 333-86098, 333-89666, 333-113557 and 333-119266 and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-120316,
333-119271, 333-118090, 333-104685, 333-69116, 333-52512, 333-95673, 333-92173, 333-58183, 333-77321,
333-66151, 333-02889, 333-00779, 033-43591 and 333-14241) of Adaptec, Inc. of our report dated June 10,
2005, relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule, management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 10, 2005




CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, D. Scott Mercer, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Adaptec, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d—
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) designed such internal control.over financial reperting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely  to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2005 /s/ D. SCOTT MERCER

D. Scott Mercer
Interim Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-CXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Marshall L. Mohr, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Adaptec, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d—
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defmed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: :

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
- procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) . designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
‘regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) . evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
-and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal

- quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in.the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have

a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2005 /s/ MARSHALL L. MOHR

Marshall L. Mohr
Chief Financial Officer




CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, D. Scott Mercer, certify to the best of my knowledge based upon a review of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Adaptec, Inc. for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 (the “Form 10-K”), that the
Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and that information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of Adaptec, Inc. for the periods covered by the Form 10-K.

Date: June 14, 2005 By: /s/ D. SCOTT MERCER

D. Scott Mercer
Interim Chief Executive Officer

I, Marshall L. Mohr, certify to the best of my knowledge based upon a review of the Form 10-K, that
the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and that information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Adaptec, Inc. for the periods covered by the
Form 10-K.

Date: June 14, 2005 By: /s/ MARSHALL L. MOHR

Marshall L. Mohr
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Adaptec, Inc.
and will be retained by Adaptec, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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ADAPTEC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended March 31,
2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

NEt FEVEIUES &+ o v v v v v e e e r e e e e et e e e e e $ 474990 $452,908 $408,113
Cost Of TEVENUES . . . oot e e e 293,746 264,200 203,203

Gross Profit .. o e e e 181,244 188,708 204,910
Operating expenses:

Research and development .. ........ ... . ... .. ..., ... 113,771 102,775 118,429

Selling, marketing and administrative . . . . .................. 82,445 78,384 90,823

Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets . . ......... 18,299 16,681 14,971

Write-off of acquired in-process technology ................. 5,200 7,649 —

Restructuring charges . . ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... 5,896 4,313 14,289

Goodwill impairment .. ....... .. . 52,272 — —

Other charges (gains) . ................. ... (290) 5,977 1,528

Total operating eXpenses . .. .....v v, 277,593 - 215,779 240,040

Loss from operations . ........... ...t (96,349)  (27,071)  (35,130)
Interest and other income .. ............. ... ... ... .. ... 8,369 66,429 33,858
Interest eXpense . . . .. oo vt (4,439) (9,424) (16,422)
Income (loss) before income taxes ......................... (92,419) 29,934  (17,694)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes .................... 52,687  (32,973)  (2,268)
Netincome (loss) ....... .. . . i $(145,106) $ 62,907 $(15,426)
Net income (loss) per share:

BaSIC .« o vt e $ (131) $ 058 § (0.14)

Diluted .. ..o $ (131) $ 053 § (0.14)
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share:

BasiC . 110,798 108,656 106,772

Diluted . ... e 110,798 128,807 106,772

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ADAPTEC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,

2005

2004

(in thousands, except per
share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............... PP $441,588 $ 102,463
Marketable securities . . . ... ... 84,968 561,391
Restricted ‘cash and marketable securities ................ ... ... ... 1,766 2,815
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,029 in 2005
and $1,269 in 2004 . .. ... .. e P e 70,159 51,562
INVENIOTIES "o . ot e e 60,204 48,888
Deferred income taxes . . .. .o oot ittt e — 55,678
Prepaid eXpenses .. . . ... 21,822 14,761
Other current assetS . .. .. ...cv ittt 4,259 20,031
Total current assets. .. ........ PRSI e 684,766 857,589
Property and equipment, IEt .. . . .. ..o 56,180 58,435
Restricted marketable securities, less current portion. . .................. 4,615 6,346
Goodwill ............ S 91,486 68,492
Other intangible assets, net .............. e 79,457 48,902
Other 1ong-term assets .. .o .. v vttt e e 47,002 11,340
Total assets . . . ......... e P $963,506  $1,051,104
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . ... ... e $ 61,637 $ 35,969
Accrued liabilities . . ... ... .. 116,007 106,392
Total current liabilities .. ... ... 177,644 142,361
%% Convertible Senior- Subordinated Notes .. ........................ 225,000 225,000
3% Convertible Subordinated Notes . .. ....... P J 35,190 35,190
Other long-term liabilities . ........... e e 15,349 3,662
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) ’ ‘ '
Stockholders™ equity: '
Preferred stock; $0.001 par value
Authorized shares, 1,000; Series A shares, 250 designated; outstanding

shares, NONE . . .. .. i e — —

Common stock; $0.001 par value
Authorized shares, 400,000; outstanding shares, 112,339 as of March 31,

2005 and 109,810 as of March 31,2004. . ....................... 112 110
Additional paid-in capital . . . ... .. .o 165,707 153,174
Deferred stock-based compensation ............. ... ... .. ... ... .. (2,416) (2,713)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes . . .............. 706 3,000
Retained earnings . ... ... . 346,214 491,320 -

Total stockholders’ equity . ........ .o 510,323 644,891
$1,051,104

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........... ... ... ... ....... $963,506

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ADAPTEC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Netincome (1088) . . ..ottt e $(145,106) $ 62,907 § (15,426)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:
Write-off of acquired in-process technology . ..................... 5,200 7,649 —
Non-cash charges associated with restructuring and other charges . ... ... 109 6,082 5,470
Stock-based compensation . ... ... .. L. 3,191 4,078 10,600
Gain on the sale of long-lived assets ... ....... ... ... .. ......... (1,359) — —
Goodwill impairment . .. ..... ... .. ... 52,272 — —
Non-cash effect of tax settlement . ... ...... ... .. .. ... (26,009) — —
Loss (gain) on extinguishmentof debt . .. ....... ... ... ... ... .... — 6,466 (3,297)
Non-cash portion of DPT settlement gain .. ..................... — (18,256} —
Depreciation and amortization . . .. .......... ... 50,636 51,789 45,607
Deferred income taxes . ... ...... ... i 50,739 (24,602) 4,219
Income tax benefits (provision) of employees’ stock transactions . . ... ... (616) 580 1,142
Other non-cash items ......... S (239) 596 1,380
Changes in assets and liabilities (net of acquired businesses):
Accounts receivable . . .. ... L (12,343) 14,055 (5,447)
INVENtOries . . . . o vttt e e (7,963) (19,311) 6,676
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . ................... 2,405 18,439 (5,653)
Other asSELS . . v vt v oot e e e e e (40,475) 9,474 6,144
Accounts payable . ... ... 21,380 (3,077) 10,678
Other liabilities . . . . . ... .. . 37,921 (21,467) (2,349)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities. . . .. ............ (10,257) 95,402 59,744
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Payment of general holdback in connection with acquisition of Platys ... ... — (3,589) (10,720}
Payment of holdback in connection with acquisition of Eurologic . ........ (2,279) — —
Purchases of businesses, net of cash acquired. . ... .................. (123,978) (46,725) —
Purchases of restricted marketable securities .. ... ...... ... ... ..... — (7,915) =
Maturities of restricted marketable securities . . . ... .. ... . 2,736 6,378 7,500
Purchases of property and equipment . . . ..... ... . ... o (14,354) (8,283) (7,465)
Proceeds of sale of long-lived assets . . .. ........... ... .. ......... 10,877 — —
Purchases of other investments ... ............................. — — (1,000)
Purchases of marketable securities . . ... ... ... ... . .. (328,167) (807,889)  (969,174)
Sales of marketable securities . ... ... ... . ... .. 718,009 730,211 702,745
Maturities of marketable securities. . . ... .. .. . e 77,997 114,946 157,736
Net Cash Provided by {(Used for) Investing Activities ... .............. '340,841 (22,866)  (120,378)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes, net of issuance costs . . .. .. — 218,250 —
Repurchases and redemption of convertible notes. . . . ................ —  (298,554) (116,313)
Purchase of convertible bond hedge . .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... .. — (64,140) —
Proceeds from issuance of warrant . . . ... ... ... . . — 30,390 —
Proceeds from the issuance of commonstock . ............. .. ... ... 8,503 7,522 7,330
Installment payment on acquisition of software licenses. . ... ........... — (3,633) (2,422)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities . . . . ... S 8,503  (110,165) (111,405)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents . . . ... .. 38 919 588
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . .. ............ 339,125 (36,710)  (171,451)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year . ... ................ 102,463 139,173 310,624
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End'of Year .. .-......... ... ... . .... $ 441,588 $ 102,463 §$ 139,173

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance; March 31, 2002
Components of comprehenswe income:
Net loss
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investments, net of taxes
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of taxes

Total comprehensive loss, net of taxes .

Sale of common stock under employee
stock purchase and option- plans
Income tax benefits of employees’ stock
transactions
Amortization of deferred stock-based
compensation. . . ...............
Adjustment of deferred stock-based

compensation. . . ...............

Balance, March 31, 2003
Components of comprehensive loss:
Net income
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
investments, net of taxes

- Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of taxes

Total comprehensive income, net of
taxes

Sale of common stock under employee
stock purchase and option plans
Income tax benefits of employees stock
transactions
Issuance of common stock in connect1on
with acquisitions
Amortization of deferred stock-based
compensation. .. ...............
Adjustment of deferred stock-based
compensation.. . . .. .. ..., ...,
Net cash paid for convertible bond hedge,
warrant and related costs

Balance, March 31, 2004
Components of comprehenswe 1ncome
Net loss
Unrealized loss on avaxlable for-sale
investments, net of taxes
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of taxes

Total comprehensive loss, net of taxes .

Sale of common stock under employee
stock purchase and option plans
Income tax provision of employees’ stock
transactions
Issuance of restricted stock
Issuance of common stock in connection
with acquisition
Deferred stock-based compensation
Amortization of deferred stock-based
compensation. . .................
Adjustment of deferred stock-based
compensation. . . .. ... ... ...
Issuance of warrant in connection with
acquisition
Non-cash tax settlement

Balance, March 31, 2005

ADAPTEC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accumulated
Additional Deferred Other
M Paid-in Stock-based Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital Compensation Income Earnings  Total
(in thousands)

106,293 3106  $172,527 $(21,131) $ 2,051 $443,839 $ 597,392
R — — —_— — (15,426)  (15,426)
— — — — 1,151 — 1,151
- - — — 1588 — 588
(13,687)
1,639 2 7,328 — — — 7,330
—_ — 1,142 — — — 1,142
— — — 10,600 — — 10,600
(38 - (2,417) 2,417 — - =
107,894 108 178,580 (8,114) 3,790 428,413 602,777
— — — — — 62,907 62,907
— — — — (1,709) — 1 (1,709)
— — — — 919 — 919
62,117
1,926 2 7,520 — — — 7,522
R 580 - — — 580
— — 1,582 — — — 1,582
- — — 4,078 — — 4,078
(10) — (1,323) 1,323 — — —
— — (33,765) - — - —  (33,765)
109,810 110 153,174 (2,713) 3,000 491,320 644,891,
— — —_ — — (145,106) (145,106)
- — — — (2,732) — (2,732)
— — — — 438 — 438
(147,400)
2,514 1 8,502 — — — 8,503
- = (616) = - — . (616)
15 - 1 17 (118) —_ — —
— — 3,464 — — — 3,464
3,598 (3,598) — — =
— 75 3,450 — — 3525
— — (563) 563 . — — —
- - 2,024 — — — 2,024
- — (4,068) - — — _ (4068)
112,339 $112 '$165,707 $ (2,416) $ 706 $346,214 $ 510,323

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description

Adaptec, Inc. (“Adaptec” or the “Company”) designs, manufactures and markets storage products
and software that are easy to manage and enable organizations to move, manage and protect critical data
and digital content. Our software and hardware products range from ASIC and RAID components to
external storage arrays, and span SCSI, SAS, SATA, Fibre Channel, and iSCSI technologies. Adaptec’s
broad range of chips, add-in cards and network storage arrays gives businesses a migration path from
internal to external storage. Adaptec’s products use a common management tool to simplify storage
administration and reduce related costs. Adaptec products are sold through OEMs and distribution
channel customers to enterprises, small and midsize businesses, government agencies, VARs, direct
marketers, and retail users across geographically diverse markets.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Adaptec and all of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany transactions and balances.

The glossary of acronyms and accounting rules and regulations referred to within the Notes are listed
in alphabetical order in Note 20.

Acquisitions

In fiscal 2005, the Company purchased International Business Machines Corporation’s (“IBM”) i/p
Series RAID component business line (the “IBM i/p Series RAID” business) and Snap Appliance, Inc.
(“Snap Appliance”). In fiscal 2004, the Company purchased Eurologic Systems Group Limited
(“Eurologic™), ICP vortex Computersysteme GmbH (“ICP vortex”) and Elipsan Limited (“Elipsan™).
Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisitions and the
results of operations of the acquired entities were included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as of the respective effective dates of the acquisitions. There were no significant differences
between the Company’s accounting policies and those of the IBM i/p Series RAID business, Snap
Appliance, Eurologic, ICP vortex or Elipsan. See Note 2 for further discussion of the Company’s
acquisition activities.

Use of Estimates and Reclassifications

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company relies
on forward looking projections to estimate any potential valuation allowances required related to net
deferred tax assets, inventory reserves or impairments of long-lived assets. These estimates include, among
other things, the amount and timing of future revenues that are expected to come from products and
services that have either recently been introduced or that are to be introduced in the future. It is
reasonably possible that the actual results could differ from such estimates resulting in valuation
allowances of net deferred tax assets, inventory reserve charges, goodwill impairments or other charges.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period reported amounts to conform to the current
year presentation, including reclassification of auction rate securities from cash and cash equivalents to
marketable securities. Previously, such auction rate securities were classified as cash and cash equivalents,
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ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accountmg Policies (Continued) -

Accordingly, the Company has revised its presentation to exclude from cash and cash equivalents
$16.7 million and $10.2 million of auction rate securities at March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and to
include such amounts as marketable securities. In addltron the Company has made corresponding
adjustments to the accompanying statement of cash flows to reﬂect the gross purchases and sales of these |
auction rate securities as investing activities. This ad]ustment resulted in a net decrease in cash used for
investing activities by $6.5 million in fiscal 2004 and a net increase in cash used for investing activities by
$10.5 million in fiscal 2003. This reclassification had no impact on previously reported results of
operations, operating cash flows or workmg caprtal of the Company

F@reign Currency Transiation

For foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is the local currency, the Company translates assets .
and liabilities to United States dollars using period-end exchange rates, and translates revenues and :
expenses using average monthly exchange rates. The resulting cumulative translation adjustments are -
included in “Accumulated other” comprehensive  income, net of taxes,” a separate component of -
stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

‘For foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is the United States dollar, certain assets and 3
liabilities are remeasured at the period-end or historical rates as appropriate. Revenues and expenses are
remeasured at the average monthly rates. Currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in current
operations and have not been material to the Company’s operating results for the periods presented. |

Derivative Fipancial Instruments. -

The Company did not enter mto forward exchange or other derivative foreign currency contracts
during the fiscal years.ended March 31, 2005 and 2004. The Company does not hold or issue foreign
exchange contracts for trading or speculative purposes. In connection with the issuance of its %% .
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (“¥%% Notes”), the Company entered into a derivative financial
instrument to repurchase its common stock, at the Company s option, at specified prices in the future to
mitigate potentral drlutron as a result of the conversron of the %% Notes. See Note 6 for further details.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including ‘accounts receivable and accounts’
payable, the carrying amounts, approxrmate fair market value due to their short maturities. The following
table represents_the related cost basis and the estimated fair values, which are based on quoted market
prices, for the Company’s pubhcly traded debt:

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004 .
- Estimated Fair Estimated Fair
Cost Basis Value Cost Basis Value
A - ‘ : ) _(in thousands)
%% Notes e e e e e e e e $225,000  $184,954 $225,000 $233,057
3% Convertible Subordmated Notes (“3% Notes”) . 35,190 34,574 35,190 . 35,476

Total .. ... Cee e ERREET $260,190  $219,528 $260,190 $268,533




ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash equivalents consist of highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less at
the date of purchase. Marketable securities consist of corporate obligations, commercial paper, other debt
securities, municipal bonds and United States government securities with original maturities beyond three
months. The Company’s policy is to protect the value of its investment portfolio and minimize principal
risk by earning returns based on current interest rates. Marketable equity securities represent the
Company’s equity holding in a public company.

Marketable securities, including equity securities, are classified as available-for-sale and are reported
at fair market value and unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes are included in “Accumulated
other comprehensive income, net of taxes” as a separate component of stockholders’ equity in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The marketable securities are adjusted for amortization of premiums and
discounts and such amortization is included in “Interest and other income” in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. When the fair value of an investment declines below its original cost, the Company
considers all available evidence to evaluate whether the decline in value is other-than-temporary. Among
other things, the Company considers the duration and extent to which the market value has declined
relative to its cost basis and economic factors influencing the markets. Unrealized losses considered
other-than-temporary are charged to “Interest and other income” in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in the period in which the determination is made. Gains and losses on securities sold are
determined based on the average cost method and are included in “Interest and other income” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company does not hold its securities for trading or
speculative purposes.

Restricted marketable securities consist of United States government securities that are required as
security under both the 3% Notes Indenture and the %% Notes Indenture (Note 6).

Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade accounts receivable. The
Company invests in high-credit quality investments, maintained with major financial institutions. The
Company, by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure through diversification and management
regularly monitors the composition of its investment portfolio for compliance with the Company’s
investment policies.

The Company sells its products to OEMs, distributors and retailers throughout the world. Sales to
customers are predominantly denominated in United States dollars and, as a result, the Company believes
its foreign currency risk is minimal. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company began
Euro-denominated sales to its customers in the European Union and expects to continue such sales in the
future. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and
generally does not require collateral from its customers. The Company maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts based upon the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. Two customers
accounted for 14% and 11% of gross accounts receivable at March 31, 2005 and one customer accounted
for 12% of gross accounts receivable at March 31, 2004.

The Company currently purchases finished production silicon wafers used in its products from Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“TSMC”) and IBM and if TSMC or IBM fail to meet the
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ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Company’s manufacturing needs, it would delay production and product shipments to the Company’s
customers. ‘

The Company’s industry is characterized by rapid technological change, competitive pricing pressures
and cyclical market patterns. The Company’s financial results are affected by a wide variety of factors,
including general economiic conditions worldwide, economic conditions specific to its industry, the timely
implementation of new manufacturing technologies and the ability to safeguard patents and intellectual
property in a rapidly evolving market. In addition, the market for its products has historically been cyclical
and subject to significant economic downturns at various times. As a result, the Company may experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in future operating results due to the factors mentioned above or
other factors. The Company believes that its existing sources of liquidity, including its cash, cash

equivalents and investments, will be adequate to support its operating and capital investment activities for
the next twelve months.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the-lower of cost or market, with cost determined.on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and équipment are stated at cost and depreciated or amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Company capitalizes substantially all costs related
to the purchase and implementation of software projects used for internal business operations. Capitalized
internal-use software costs primarily include license fees, consulting fees and any associated direct labor
costs and are amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset, typically a three to five-year period.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of tangible and
identifiable intangible net assets acquired in business combinations. Other intangible assets, net, consist of
acquisition-related intangible assets, intellectual property and warrants. Other intangible assets, net, are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of goodwill was ceased effective April 1, 2002.
Goodwill is:reviewed annually and whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate that goodwill
might be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives ranging from
three months to seven years, reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are
expected to be realized.

Other Leng-Term Assets

The Company’s other long-term assets primarily include a distribution agreement (Note 13), debt
issuance costs (Note 6) and minority investments (Note 10).

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets .

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company regularly performs reviews to determine if facts or .
circumstances are present, either internal or external, which would indicate if the carrying values of its
long-lived assets are impaired. When the Company determines that the carrying value of its long-lived -
assets, other than goodwill, may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more indicators of
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ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

impairment, the Company measures any impairment based on a discounted estimated future cash flows
method and applying a discount rate commensurate with the risks inherent in its current business model.
The impairment of long-lived assets is included in “Other charges (gains)” in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. In fiscal 2004, the Company recorded a $5.0 million charge for impairment of properties
classified as assets held for sale as the carrying amount exceeded its estimated fair value less cost to sell
(Note 10). In fiscal 2005, the Company recorded a gain on the sale of these properties of $2.8 million and
was credited to “Other charges” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as these properties.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has employee and director stock compensation plans which are more fully described in
Note 12. The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in'accordance with APB Opinion No. 25 as
interpreted by FIN 44, and complies with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, an amendment of
SFAS No.: 123. Under APB Opinion No. 25, compensation expense is recognized on the measurement date
based on the excess, if any, of the fair value of the Company’s common stock over the amount an employee
must pay to acquire the common stock. ‘

The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123 and EITF No. 96-18, which requires that such equity instruments be recorded
at their. fair value on the measurement date, which is typically the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to employee and director
stock option plans, including shares issued under the Company’s ESPP, collectively called “options,” for all
periods presented: o

Years Ended March 31,

' 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share
: amounts)

Net income (loss), as reported .. © .. ... .. . i - $(145,106) $ 62,907  $(15,426)
Add: Deferred stock-based compensation expense included in -

reported net income (JOSS) . . . ... ..o 3,191 3,811 4,946
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under the

fair value-based method, netof tax. ........... ... ... ... ... (26,853) (25,555) (34,734)
Pro forma net income (l08S) . ...\ttt $(168,768) § 41,163 $(45,214)
Basic net income (loss) per share:
ASTEpOrted . ..o e e $ (131 $ 0358 § (014)
Proforma ................. e $§ (152) § 038 § (042
Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Asreported . ... e $ (131) $ 053 § (0.14)
Proforma .......... ... i $ (152) $§ 036 $§ (042)

See Note 12 for a discussion of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
estimated fair value of options.
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NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Ceontinued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the majorlty of its product sales, including sales to OEMs,
distributors and retailers, upon shipment. from the Company, provided that persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue
from sales of its.external storage products, Where software is essential to the functionality, is recognized
when passage of title and risk of ownership is transferred to customers, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, which is typically upon sale of product by the customer, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company’s distributor arrangements provide distributors with certain product rotation rights.
Additionally, the Company permits distributors to. return products subject to certain conditions. The
Company establishes allowances for expected product returns in accordance with SFAS No. 48. The
Company also establishes allowances for rebate payments under certain marketing programs entered into
with distributors. These allowances comprise the Company’s revenue reserves and are recorded as direct
reductions of ‘revenue and accounts receivable. The Company makes estimates of future returns and
rebates based primarily on its past experience as well as the volume of products in the distributor channel,
trends in distributor inventory, economic trends that might impact customer demand for its products
(including the competitive environment), the economic value of the rebates being offered and other
factors. In the past, actual returns and rebates have not been significantly different from the Company’s
estimates. However, actual returns and rebates in any future period could differ from the Company’s
estimates, which could impact the -net revenue it reports.

For products Wthh contain software, where software is essential to the functionality of the product, or
software product sales, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with SOP No. 97-2, as amended
and modified by SOP 98-9. For software sales that are considered multiple element transactions, the entire
fee from the arrangement is allocated to each respective element based on its vendor specific fair value or
upon the residual method and recognized when revenue recognition criteria for each element are met.
Vendor specific fair value for each element is established based on the sales price charged when the same
element is sold separately or based upon a renewal rate. For multiple element sales involving software to
distributors, revenue is recognized when the distributor sells the goods or services to the end-user or OEM.

Software Development Costs

The Company’s policy- is to capitalize software development costs incurred after technological
feasibility has been demonstrated, which is determined to be the time a working model has been
completed: Through March 31, 2005, costs incurred subsequent to the establishment of technological
feasibility have not been significant and all software development costs have been charged to “Research
and development” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes

The Company -accounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach, which requires
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that
have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements, but have not been reflected in
the Company’s taxable income. A valuation allowance is established to reduce deferred tax assets to their
estimated realizable value. Therefore, the Company provides a valuation allowance to the extent that the
Company does not believe it is more likely than not that it will generate sufficient taxable income in future
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘(Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

periods to realize the benefit of its deferred tax assets. Predicting future taxable income is difficult, and
requires the use of significant judgment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R). This statement replaces SFAS No. 123,
amends SFAS No. 95 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to apply
a fair-value based measurement method in accounting for share-based payment transactions with
employees and to record compensation expense for all stock awards granted and to awards modified,
repurchased or cancelled after the required effective date. In addition, the Company is required to record
compensation expense (as previous awards continue to vest) for the unvested portion of previously granted
awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption. In April 2005, the SEC approved that SFAS
No. 123(R) will be effective for annual periods, as opposed to interim periods as originally issued by the
FASB, beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
statement; however, the Company expects that it will have a significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations. The impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements will be dependent on the transition method, the option-pricing model used to compute
fair value and the inputs to that model such as volatility and expected life. The pro forma disclosures of the
impact of SFAS No. 123 provided in Note 1 may not be representative of the impact of adopting this
statement.

In March 2005, the SEC issued SAB 107, which offers guidance on SFAS No. 123(R). SAB 107 was
issued to assist preparers by simplifying some of the implementation challenges of SFAS No. 123(R) while
enhancing the information that investors receive. SAB 107 creates a framework that is premised on two
overarching themes: (a) considerable judgment will be required by preparers to successfully implement
FAS No. 123(R), specifically when valuing employee stock options; and (b) reasonable individuals, acting
in good faith, may conclude differently on the fair value of employee stock options. Key topics covered by
SAB 107 include valuation models, expected volatility and expected term. The Company will apply the
principles of SAB 107 in conjunction with its adoption of No. FAS 123(R).

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs-an Amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.” This statement clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of facility expense, freight,
handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) to require them to be recognized as current-period charges.
This statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.
Earlier application is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated balance sheet or statement of operations.

At its March 2004 meeting, the EITF reached a consensus on recognition and measurement guidance
previously discussed under EITF 03-01. The consensus clarified the meaning of other-than-temporary
impairment and its application to investments classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity
under SFAS No. 115 and investments accounted for under the cost method or the equity method. In
September 2004, the FASB delayed the recognition and measurement guidance to be applied to
other-than-temporary impairment evaluations. The FASB expects to issue additional implementation
guidance with respect to debt securities that are impaired solely due to interest rates and/or sector spreads.
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Note 2. Business Acquisitions

IBM i/p Series RAID: On June 29, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of the IBM i/p Series
RAID component business line consisting of certain purchased RAID data protection intellectual
property, semiconductor designs and assets, and licensed from IBM related RAID intellectual property.
The licensing agreement grants the Company the right to use IBM’s RAID technology and embedded
Power PC technology for the Company’s internal and external RAID products to be sold to IBM and other
customers. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company also entered into a three-year exclusive
product supply agreement under which the Company will supply RAID software, firmware and hardware
to IBM for use in IBM’s iSeries and pSeries servers. The Company also entered into an agreement for
IBM to provide silicon wafer manufacturing processing services to the Company for the term of the supply
agreement at agreed upon rates.

The total purchase priceé was $49.5 million, which consisted of a cash payment to IBM of $47.5 million,
warrants valued at $1.1 million, net of registration costs, and transaction costs of $0.9 million. In
connection with the acquisition, the Company issued a warrant to IBM to purchase 250,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $8.13 per share. The warrant has a term of 5 years from
the date of issuance and is immediately exercisable. The warrant was valued using the Black-Scholes
valuation model using a volatility rate of 62%, a risk-free interest rate of 3.9% and an estimated life of
5 years. The transaction costs consist primarily of legal, valuation and other fees. The IBM i/p Series RAID
business is included in the Company’s-OEM segment (Note 17).

The Company also entered into a service agreement, which was subsequently amended, for IBM to
provide certain research and development services and to provide access to IBM’s semiconductor design
tools. The semiconductor design tools license agreement is for two years at a total cost of $8.4 million and
is payable in quarterly installments; however, the agreement can be cancelled by the Company in any
quarter, which termination would relieve any obligations for the Company to make future quarterly
installment payments to IBM.

The IBM i/p Series RAID business was accounted for as a purchase business combination with the
allocation of the purchase price to the tangible and intangible assets acquired summarized below (in
thousands). The allocation was based on management’s estimates of fair value, which included an

independent appraisal.

- Net property and equipment . . ... .. e e e $ 635
Acquired in-process technology . ........ ... . 3,000
Goodwill . . . e 18,915
Other intangible assets:

SUpply agIeement . . . . oo e 7,600
Patents and core technology . ...... e e 18,700
Foundry agreement. . . . ... ... e 600

26,900
Net assets acquired (purchase price) . ......... ..., $49,450

The values allocated to the supply agreement, patents and core technology and foundry agreement are
being amortized over estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years, reflecting the pattern in which the economic
benefits of the assets are expected to be realized. The estimated weighted average useful life of other
intangible assets, created as a result of the acquisition of the IBM i/p Series RAID business, is
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Note 2. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

approximately 5 years. No residual value has been estimated for the intangible assets. A portion of
goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Snap Appliance: On July 23, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Snap Appliance, a
provider of NAS products, to expand its product offerings in the external storage market and to deliver
cost-effective, scalable and easy-to-use DAS, NAS, Fibre Channel and IP-based SAN products from the
workgroup to the data center. The total purchase price was $84.4 million, consisting of $77.4 million in
cash and transaction fees and $7.0 million related to the fair value of assumed stock options to purchase
1.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock. The assumed stock options were valued using the
Black-Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions: volatility rate of 58%; a risk-free interest
rate of 2.6%; and an estimated life of 2.25 years. Snap Appliance is included in the Company’s Channel
segment (Note 17).

Of the total assumed stock options, stock options to purchase approximately 0.7 million shares of the
Company’s common stock, with exercise prices ranging between $1.42 and $5.66 per share, were unvested
(the “Snap Unvested Options™). The Snap Unvested Options have a ten-year term and vest primarily over
four years from the date of grant. The intrinsic value of the Snap Unvested Options of $3.6 million was
accounted for as deferred stock-based compensation and is being recognized as compensation expense
over the related vesting periods. In fiscal 2005, the Company recorded a reduction of $0.2 million of
deferred stock-based compensation related to cancellations of Snap Unvested Options. In fiscal year 2005,
the Consolidated Statement of Operations included stock-based compensation expense with respect to
Snap Unvested Options of $1.0 million. ‘

The preliminary allocation of the Snap Appliance purchase price to the tangible and identifiable
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed is summarized below (in thousands). The preliminary
allocation was based on management’s estimates of fair value, which included an independent appraisal.
The allocation of the purchase price may be subject to change based on final estimates of fair value;
however, such changes are not expected to be material.

Cash. . ot $ 60
Accounts receivable . . . . . ... L e 5,825
Inventory . . ..o 3,316
Prepaid eXpenses . . .. ..o 14,345
Property and equipment . .. ... ... e 1,379
Other long-term assets. . . 1. . vttt it e 148
Total assets acquired . .. ... .o e 25,073
Accounts payable .......... e (4,264)
Current liabilities ............. T (14,348)
Other long-term liabilities .. ........... ... .. . (2,325)
Total liabilities assumed . ... ... ... . L (20,937)
Net tangible assets acquired . . ... ... ... . $ 4,136
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ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 2. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

The allocation- of the purchase price to the tangxble and 1ntang1ble -assets acqu1red and liabilities
assumed is as follows (in thousands): : : ,

Nettanglble assetsacqulred....4.. .‘..,‘.,................"....'.‘ .......... $ 4,136
-Acquired in- process technology ............... e e g 2,200
Deferred stock- based compensation . e e e e 3,610
Deferred income tax liabilities . ...........0..... e e e (11,640)
Goodwills .+ wove s T o e 57,043

~ Other 1ntang1ble assets ‘ o . I .
" Core and existing tech_nolqgies e e e 19,000
Trade MAME . . . oottt et e e e e e 10,100
- | 29,100
-Net assets acqulred (purchase prlce) ..... e I $ 84,449

The values allocated 10 the core: and emstmg technologles and trade name created as a result of the
acquisition of Snap Appliance are being amortized over an estimated weighted average useful life of
7 years, reflecting the pattern.in which the economic benefits of the assets are expected to be realized. No
residual value has been estimated for the intangible assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
will not amortize the goodwill,.but will evaluate it at least annually for impairment (Note 5). Goodwill is
not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. . .

In addition, a management incentive .program was established to pay former employees of Snap
Appliance cash payments totaling $13.8 million, which is being paid, contingent upon their employment
with the-Company, over a two-year period through the second quarter of fiscal 2007. Payments under the
management incentive program will be expensed as employees meet their. employment obligations or are
recorded as part of the Snap Appliance acquisition-related restructuring for involuntarily terminations by
the Company. In fiscal 2005, the Consolidated Statements of Operations included compensation expense
related to the management incentive program of $5.7 million and an additional $1.4 million was originally
accrued in the Snap Apphance acquisition-related restructurlng

A portion of the Snap Appliance acquisition -price totaling $5.4 million was held back, and in
connection with the management incentive program, $1.3 million will be held back for a total of
$6.7 million (the “Snap Appliance Holdback”) for unknown liabilities that may have existed as of the
acquisition date. The Snap Appliance Holdback will be paid in the second quarter of fiscal 2006, except for
funds necessary to provide for any pending claims.

Acguisition-Related Restructuring: In the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Comi;any refined
its plan to integrate the Snap Appliance operations reldted to integrating certain duplicative resources
including severance and benefits in connection with the involuntary termination of approximately 24
employees, exiting duplicative facilities and the disposal of duplicative assets. The acquisition-related
restructuring liabilities were accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included in the purchase
price allocation of the cost to acquire Snap Appliance. The Company recorded a preliminary estimate of
$6.0 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2005 for these activities. In the third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2005, the Company recorded a $0.8 million increase to the accrued restructuring charges with a
corresponding change to goodwill as its plans were further refined. The Company expects to execute the
integration plan as currently designed; however, actual results and costs may differ as the plan is executed.
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Note 2. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

Any further changes to the Company’s estimate will result in an increase or decrease to the accrued
restructuring charges and a corresponding increase or decrease to goodwill. As of March 31, 2005, the
Company utilized $3.7 million of these charges. The Company anticipates that the remaining restructuring
reserve balance of $3.1 million will be paid out by third quarter of fiscal 2012, primarily related to
long-term facility leases.

The activity in the accrued restructuring reserve related to the Snap Appliance acquisition-related
restructuring plan was as follows for fiscal 2005:

Severance And
Benefits Other Charges Total

(in thousands)

Snap Appliance Acquisition-Related Restructuring

Plan:
Restructuring provision . . . .......... ... ... .. $ 1,967 $3,999 $ 5,966
Adjustments . . ... ... 646 109 755
Cashpaid ......... ... .. .. (2,111) (369) (2,480)
Non-cash charges .. ...................... . (347) (838) (1,185)
Reserve balance at March 31,2005 ............... $ 155 $2,901 $ 3,056

Eurologic: On April 2, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of Eurologic, a provider of
external and networked storage products. The Company acquired Eurologic to further enhance its direct-
attached and fibre-attached server storage capabilities by allowing it to provide end-to-end block- and
file-based networked storage products. As consideration for the acquisition of all of the outstanding capital
stock of Eurologic, the Company paid $25.6 million in cash, subject to a Holdback as described below, and
assumed stock options to purchase 0.5 million shares of the Company’s common stock, with a fair value of
$1.6 million. The Company also incurred $1.1 million in transaction fees, including legal, valuation and
accounting fees. The assumed stock options were valued using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the
following assumptions: volatility rate ranging from 57% to 81%; a risk-free interest rate ranging from 1.1%
to 2.5%; and an estimated life ranging from 0.08 to 4 years. Eurologic’s goodwill and amortizable
intangible assets were allocated based on the relative fair values of the Company’s OEM and Channel
segments (Note 17).
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Note 2. Business Acguisitiens (Contihued)

Holdback: As part of the Eurologic purchase agreement, $3.8 million of the cash payment was held
back (the “Holdback”) for-unknown liabilities that may have existed as of the acquisition date. The
Holdback, which-was included as part of the purchase price, is included in “Accrued liabilities” in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2005 and was to be paid to the former Eurologic stockholders
18 months after the acquisition closing date, except for funds necessary to provide for any pending claims.
The Company paid $2.3 million, of the Holdback as of March 31, 2005 and has asserted claims against the
remaining amount for liabilities of which it became aware following the consummation of the transaction. |
The former Eurologic stockholders have disputed these claims and have requested release of the
remaining Holdback. ‘

Earn-out Payments: The Company also agreed to pay the stockholders of Eurologic contingent .
consideration of up to $10.0 million in cash if certain revenue levels were achieved by the acquired |
Eurologic business in the period from July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004. The milestone to achieve the :
contingent consideration was not attained as of June 30, 2004. As a result, no additional payments were
made to the former stockholders of Eurologic. :

The allocation of the Eurologic purchase price to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets .
acquired and liabilities assumed is summarized below (in thousands). The allocation was based on '
management s estimates of fair value, which included an independent appraisal.

Cash....... P S $ 3,305
Accounts receivable .. .. L Lo oL Lo F I 10,624
Inventory @ ........ T P 4,066
Other current assets ....... e L L e 2,107
Property and equipment .......... ERREEE R R 2,835
Total assets acquired .. ... ....... B P 22,937
Accounts payable ..... ... ...... e T IR (7,292)
Current liabilities ................. LT e P (8,365)
Total liabilities assumed . . ... .......... J . (15,657)
~'Net tangible assets acquired. ...... e et 87280
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Note 2. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

The allocation of the purchase price to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is as follows (in thousands):

Net tangible assets acquired . .. ... ... ... . $ 7,280
Acquired in-process technology ......... .. ... . o 3,649
Goodwill. . .. e 9,413
Other intangible assets:
Core technology . ... . it e 5,046
Covenants-not-tO-COMPELE . . o oo v vttt ittt it et e e e e 148
Customer relationships . ... .. .. 880
Trade DAIME . . . vt e e et e e e e e e e e 1,476
Current backlog . . ... .. e 395
7,945
Net assets acquired . ... ..ot $ 28,287

The other intangible assets are being amortized over periods which reflect the pattern in which the
economic benefits of the assets are expected to be realized. The core technology and customer
relationships are being amortized over an estimated useful life of four years, the trade name and
covenants-not-to-compete are being amortized over two years and the current backlog was fully amortized
in the first quarter of fiscal 2004. The estimated weighted average useful life of other intangible assets,
created as a result of the acquisition of Eurologic, is approximately three years. No residual value is
estimated for the other intangible assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company will not amortize
the goodwill, but will evaluate it at least annually for impairment (Note 5). Goodwill is not expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-Related Restructuring: During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company finalized its
plans to integrate the Eurologic operations. The integration plan included the involuntary termination or
relocation of approximately 110 employees, exiting duplicative facilities and the transition of all
manufacturing operations from Dublin, Ireland to the Company’s manufacturing facility in Singapore. The
consolidation of the manufacturing operations as well as involuntary employee terminations was
completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. The acquisition-related restructuring liabilities were
accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included in the purchase price allocation of the cost to
acquire Eurologic. The Company recorded a liability of $3.3 million in fiscal 2004 for these activities. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company utilized approximately all of these charges and the plan is materially
complete.

ICP Vortex: On June 5, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of ICP vortex. ICP vortex was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Intel Corporation and provided a broad range of hardware and software RAID
data protection products, including SCSI, SATA and fibre channel products. The final purchase price was
$14.5 million in cash, which included $0.3 million in transaction fees, consisting of legal, valuation and
accounting fees. This purchase price included a final adjustment of $0.1 million in the first quarter of fiscal
2005 to both goodwill and acquisitions costs. ICP vortex’s goodwill and amortizable intangible assets were
allocated based on the relative fair values of the Company’s OEM and Channel segments (Note 17).
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The allocation of the ICP vortex purchase price to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is summarized below (in thousands). The allocation was based on
management’s estimate of fair value, which included an independent appraisal.

Cashl. . $ 2,706
Accounts receivable . . ... .... . ... e e e 2,961
InVventory . ... ... e 2,015
Other CUITent @SSEtS . . . . v vttt it it et e e et e e e e 3,087
Property and equipment ... ....... . ... e 1,458
Total'assets acquired ... ... ... 12,227
Accounts payable . ... (722)
Current Habilities . .. ... oo vt (2,522)
Long-term liabilities ........... ... ... .. .. . . (400)
Total liabilities assumed . . . . . . o oo (3,644)
Net tan01ble assets acqulred ......................................... $ 8583

The allocatlon of the purchase price to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assurned is as follows (in thousands)

Net tanglble assets acquired . . .. ...... ST e e $ 8,583
Goodwill . . ... oo RIS O AP 1,050
Other intangible assets: ' '
Core technology .. ... e e 3,630
Customer relationships . ... ... . 410
Trade name .............. ..., e 830
Royalties ......... e e 60
. - . 4,930
Net assets acquired (Purchase Price) .. ........ .0 ... v, $ 14,563

The other intangible assets are being amortized over periods which reflect the pattern in which the
economic benefits of the assets are expected to be realized: The core technology and trade name are being
amortized straight-line over an estimated useful life of three years, the customer relationships are being
- amortized straight-line over- four years and the royalties were amortized through the end of the third
quarter of 2004. The estimated weighted average useful life of other intangible assets, created as a result of
the acquisition of ICP vortex, is approximately three years. No residual value is estimated for the other '
intangible assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company will not amortize the goodwill, but will
evaluate it at least annually for ‘impairment (Note 5). Goodwill. is not expected to be deductible for tax -
purposes. : ;

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005 the Company finalized its plans to integrate the ICP vortex
operations. The integration plan included the involuntary termination of 19 employees, the transfer of
manufacturing operations to Singapore and the “integration of certain duplicative resources. The
acquisition-related restructuring liabilities were .accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were
included in the purchase price allocation of the cost to acquire ICP vortex. In fiscal 2004, the Company .
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Note 2. Business Acquisitions (Continued)

recorded a liability of $0.4 million for severance and benefits, of which $0.3 million of these charges were
utilized and $0.1 million was recorded as a reduction to the restructuring liability with a corresponding
decrease to goodwill in the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

Elipsan: On February 13, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Elipsan, a provider of
networked storage infrastructure software. The Company acquired Elipsan’s storage virtualization
technology to enable the Company to make storage more cost-effective, easier to scale and to increase
performance across multiple RAID subsystems. The final purchase price was $19.4 million in cash, which
included $0.7 million in transaction fees, consisting of legal, valuation and accounting fees. This purchase
price included a final adjustment of $0.8 million in fiscal 2005, primarily related to the reversal of the
acquisition-related restructuring reserves of approximately $0.7 million. Elipsan’s goodwill and amortizable
intangible assets were allocated based on the relative fair values of the Company’s OEM and Channel
segments (Note 17). :

Holdback: As part of the Elipsan purchase agreement, $2.0 million of the cash payment was held
back (“Elipsan Holdback™) for unknown liabilities that may have existed as of the acquisition date. The
Elipsan Holdback, which was included as part of the purchase price, is included in “Accrued liabilities” in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2005 and will be paid to the former Elipsan stockholders
18 months after the acquisition closing date, except for funds necessary to provide for any unknown
liabilities.

The allocation of the Elipsan purchase price to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed is summarized below (in thousands). The allocation was based on management’s
estimates of fair value, which included an independent appraisal.

AcCOUNtS TECEIVADIE . .« . oo it e $ 162
Other current assets . ... ... ... e 731
Property and equipment ........... ... 105
Total assets acquired ... ... ... 998
Accounts payable . .......... . ... (171)
Current liabilities ... ... ... . (1,497)
Total liabilities assumed . . ... ... .. L (1,668)
Net tangible liabilities acquired .. .......... ... ... . . . i $  (670)

The allocation of the purchase price to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is as follows (in thousands):

Net tangible assets acquired . . . ... ... e e $ (670)
Acquired in-process technology .. ....... ... ... . . i 4,000
Goodwill. . ... 3,479
Core technology .. ........ ..., e 12,600
Net assets acquired (Purchase Price) ........... ... .. . . . ... . i, $ 19,409

The core technology is being amortized straight-line over an estimated useful life of five years. No
residual value has been estimated for the intangible asset.. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
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will not amortize the goodwill, but will evaluate it. at least annually for impairment. Goodw1ll is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-Related Restructuring: During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company finalized its
plans to integrate the Elipsan operations. The plan included -the integration of certain duplicative
resources related to both severance and benefits in connection with the involuntary termination or
relocation of employees and, accordingly, the Company recorded a $0.8 million reserve as of March 31,
2004. In fiscal 2005, the Company recorded an adjustment of $0.7 million as a reduction to the liability with
a corresponding decrease to goodwill as the Company intends to retain these employees.. The acquisition-
related restructuring liabilities were accounted for under EITF 95-3 and therefore were included in the
purchase price allocation of the cost to acquire Elipsan. As of March 31, 2005, the Company made
payments of approximately $25,000 under. the plan. The' Company anticipates that the remaining
restructuring reserve balance of approximately $45,000 will be paid out by the second quarter of fiscal
2006.

In-process Téchnology

As part of the purchase agreements of Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p Series RAID business, Eurologic
and Elipsan, certain amounts of the purchase prices were allocated to acquired in-process technology.
which were determined through established valuation techniques in the high-technology computer industry
and written off in the second quarter of fiscal 2005, first quarter of fiscal 2005, first quarter of fiscal 2004
and fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, respectively, because technological feasibility had not been established
and no alternative future uses existed. The values were determined By estimating the net cash flows and
discounting the estimated net cash flows to their present values. A'summary of the amounts written off
were as follows:

Acquired

In-Process Technology

(in thousands)

Snap ApPHANCE! . ...\t $2,200
IBM i/p Series RAID business .................vouiiuiin.n... 3,000
Eurologic®. . ... ... e 3,649
Elipsan® . ... . 4,000

(1) The identified in-process projects were related to operatmg system enhancements and system
functionality improvements.

(2) The in-process projects were related to designing semiconductors and related boards and
enhancements to RAID and firmware code.

(3) The Company acquired various external and networked storage products that enable organizations to
install, manage and scale multiterabyte storage products. The identified projects focus on increasing
performance while reducing the storage controller form factor.

(4) The in-process projects were related to the development of software modules to add additional
functionality to the existing storage virtualization software as well as address specific customer needs.
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The net cash flows from the identified projects were based on estimates of revenues, cost of revenues,
research and development expenses, including costs to complete the projects, selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, royalty expenses and income taxes from the projects. The Company believes the
assumptions used in the valuations were reasonable at the time of the acquisitions. The estimated net
revenues and gross margins were based on management’s projections of the projects and were in line with
industry averages. Estimated total net revenues from the projects of Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p Series
RAID business, Eurologic and Elipsan were expected to grow through fiscal 2009, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2008
and fiscal 2007, respectively, and decline thereafter as other new products are expected to become
available. Estimated operating expenses included research and development expenses and selling,
marketing and administrative expenses based upon historical and expected direct expense levels and
general industry metrics. Estimated research and development expenses included costs to bring the
projects to technological feasibility and costs associated with activities undertaken to correct errors or keep
products updated with current information (also referred to as “maintenance” research and development)
after a product is available for general release to customers. These activities range from 0% to 5% of net
revenues for the in-process technologies.

The effective tax rate used in the analysis of the in-process technologies reflects a combined historical
industry specific average for the United States Federal and state statutory income tax rates. The cost of
capital reflects the estimated time to complete the projects and the level of risk involved. The following
discount rates were used in computing the present value of net cash flows for the acquired companies:
approximately 24% for Snap Appliance, between 23% and 28% for the IBM i/p Series RAID business,
approximately 27% for Eurologic and approximately 63% for Elipsan.

The percentage of completion was determined using costs incurred by Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p
Series RAID business, Eurologic and Elipsan prior to their respective acquisition dates compared to the
estimated remaining research and development to be completed to bring the projects to technological
feasibility. The Company estimated, as of the respective acquisition dates for, Snap Appliance, the IBM i/p
Series RAID business, Eurologic and Elipsan, that the projects were approximately 25% complete, 50%
complete, 60% complete and 28% complete, respectively. All projects outstanding as of the acquisition
dates for Eurologic and Elipsan were completed as of March 31, 2004 and December 31, 2004,
respectively. The Company expects remaining costs of approximately $0.3 million and $12.3 million related
to Snap Appliance and the IBM i/p Series RAID business, respectively, to bring the planned in-process
projects to completion.

Pro Forma Results: The following unaudited pro forma financial information for fiscal years 2005 and
2004 presents the combined results of the Company and the IBM i/p Series RAID business, Snap
Appliance, ICP vortex and Elipsan, as if the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the periods
presented. Eurologic was not included in the calculation as the results of Eurologic have been included in
the Company’s financial statements from April 2, 2003. Certain adjustments have been made to the
combined results of operations, including amortization of acquired other intangible assets; however,
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charges for purchased in-process technology were excluded as these items were non-recurring. The pro
forma financial results for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(in thousands, except per
share amounts)

Netrevenues ............... e $489,171 $541,822°
" Net income (10SS) . . oo oot v e (152,454) 35,884

Net income (loss) per share:

BasiC . ...oovii P .. % (138 s 033

Diluted . .. ... e $ . (1.38) $ 031

The pro forma financial information does not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would
have occurred had the Company and Eurologic, ICP vortex and Elipsan constituted a consolidated entity
during such periods.

Platys: In connection with the Platys Communications, Inc. (“Platys”) acquisition in August 2001,
$15.0 million of the cash payment was held back (the “General Holdback”) for unknown liabilities that
may have existed as of the acquisition date. In fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004, the Company paid $10.7 million
and $3.6 million, respectively, of the General Holdback to the former Platys shareholders or for the
settlement of certain claims on their behalf. The remaining $0.7 million of the General Holdback will be
paid to the Platys shareholders upon resolution of the outstanding claims, except for funds necessary to
provide for liabilities with respect to the claims submitted by the former Platys employees and consultants.

In fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded reductions of $0.4 million, $1.3 million and
$2.4 million, respectively, of deferred stock-based compensation related to cancellations of assumed Platys
stock options that were unvested and repurchases of unvested Platys restricted stock. In fiscal years 2005,
2004 and 2003, the Consolidated Statement of Operations included stock-based compensation expense
with respect to the restricted stock and/or the unvested options of $2.0 million, $4.1 million, and
$10.6 million, respectively. :
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The Company’s portfolio of marketable securities at March 31, 2005 was as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)
Available-for-Sale Marketable Securities:

Short-term deposits . ... ..vvvrv vt $373,190 $ — $ — $373,190
Corporate obligations . . ........... ..o, 32,119 — (443) 31,676
United States government securities. . . .............. 22,864 2 (320) 22,546
Other debt securities . .. ... .. v 43,917 160 (312) 43,765
Total available-for-sale securities . .............. ... 472,090 162 (1,075) 471,177
Less amounts classified as cash equivalents ........... 379,915 — — 379,915
Total ... e $ 92,175 $162 $(1,075) $ 91,262
The Company’s portfolio of marketable securities at March 31, 2004 was as follows:
Gross Gross Estimated
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)

Available-for-Sale Marketable Securities: .
Short-term deposits ... .......... et $ 688 § — $ () $ 6837
Municipal bonds . . . ...... ... . 16,550 — — 16,550
Commercial paper ........... i, 999 — — 999
Corporate obligations . . . ........... ..oy 200,636 2,086 (14) 202,708
United States government securities. . . .............. 175,609 982 ¥ 176,574
Other debt securities .. ..o v it it e 194,705 722 97) 195,330
Marketable equity securities . ............... .. ..., 873 — (18) 855
Total available-for-sale securities . .................. 596,210 3,790 (147) 599,853
Less amounts classified as cash equivalents ........... 30,435 — —_ 30,435
Total .. $565,775  $3,790 $(147)  $569,418

In fiscal 2004, the Company retained 190,936 shares of Roxio’s common stock upon the potential
exercise of outstanding warrants which expired unexercised in January 2004. In accordance with SFAS
No. 115, this common stock was classified as available-for-sale securities and recorded at fair market value
and included in “Marketable securities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2004. The
Company sold the securities in fiscal 2005.

Sales of marketable securities resulted in gross realized gains of $0.6 million, $2.5 million and
$3.2 million during fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Sales of marketable securities resulted in
gross realized losses of $5.9 million, $1.4 million and $2.9 million during fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company repatriated $360.6 million of undistributed
earnings from Singapore to the United States. In connection with this transaction, the Company liquidated
$408.6 million of investments held by its Singapore subsidiary resulting in gross realized losses of
$4.5 million.
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The following table summarizes the fair value and gross unrealized losses of our available-for-sale
marketable securities, aggregated by type of investment instrument and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at March 31, 2005:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value  Losses  [Fair Value Losses  [Fair Value Losses
(in thousands)

Corporate obligations . . .. .. .............. $20,106  $(273) $ 9,015  $(170) $29,121 § (443) .
United States government securities . ... ... ... 9,460 (122) 9,359 (198) . $18,819 § (320)
Other debt SECUTItIEs - -« « o oo vveeeennn. 13468  (119) 16737  (193) $30205 §$ (312)

$43,034  $(514) $35111  $(561) $78,145  $(1,075)

Our investment portfolio consists of both corporate and government securities that have a maximum
maturity of three years. The longer the duration of these securities, the more susceptible they are to
changes in market interest rates and bond yields. As yields increase, those securities purchased with a
lower yield-at-cost show a mark-to-market unrealized loss. All unrealized losses are due to changes in
interest rates and bond yields. We expect to realize the full value of all these investments upon maturity or
sale.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments in available-for-sale debt securities at
March 31, 2005, by contractual maturity, were as follows:

Available-for-Sale
Debt Securities Estimated

Cost Fair Value

(in thousands)
Mature inone yearorless ...................... ... ..., $420,948 $420,860
Mature after one year through threeyears.................. 51,142 50,317
0 7 1 $472,090 $471,177

The maturities of asset- and mortgage-backed securities were allocated primarily based upon assumed
prepayment forecasts utilizing interest rate scenarios and mortgage loan characteristics.
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Inventories

The components of net inventories at March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

March 31,
2005 2004
(in thousands)
Rawmaterials . ....... ... .. . . $15,914 $16,244
Work-in-process. . . ... o 7,435 6,210
Finished goods . ... ... .. .. . 36,855 26,434
Jotal . .. e $60,204 $48,888

Property and Equipment
The components of property and equipment at March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

March 31,
Life 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Land ... ... .. — $ 953537 $§ 9537
Buildings and improvements . ........... 5-40 years 43,439 42,788
Machinery and equipment . . . .. ......... 3-5 years 83,304 . 88,340
Furniture and fixtures . .. .............. 3-7 years 64,093 68,506
Lower of useful life or
Leasehold improvements . . .. ........... life of lease 5,547 4,909
Construction in progress . .............. — 162 375
206,082 214,455
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . (149,902)  (156,020)
Total ... . $ 56,180 $ 58435

Depreciation expense was $15.2 million, $20.1 million and $24.0 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.
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Accrued Liabilities

The components of accrued liabilities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

March 31,
2005 2004
. (in thousands)
Tax related . . ..o e e $ 57,538 §$ 65,812
Acquisition related . ... .. . o 6,748 8,200
Accrued compensation and related taxes . ..., ... oLl 18,304 19,336
IBM distribution agreement (Note 13). ................. ... ... 11,575 —
Other . . e e 21,842 13,044
BOtal . o e $116,007 $106,392

Accumulated Other Comprehenéive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes, at March 31, 2005
and 2004 were as follows:

March 31,
2008 2004

(in thousands)

Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax of $—in fiscal 2005 and

$1,443 in fiscal 2004 . .. .. .... ... P $ (546) $2,186
Foreign currency translation, net of tax of $834 in fiscal 2005 and $543 in

fiscal 2004 . . . . . e e e e 1,252 814
Otal L e e $ 706 $3,000

Note 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill allocated to the Company’s reportable segments and changes in the carrying amount of
goodwill for fiscal 2005 was as follows:

S8G SNG OEM Channel Total
(in thousands)
Balance at March 31,2004 . . ............... $22825 $45667 § — § —  $68492
Reallocation (See Note 17) . ............... (22,825) (45,667) 30,326 38,166 —
Goodwill acquired (See Note 2) . ............ — — 18915 57,043 75,958
Goodwill impairment . .. ............ .. .. .. — — —  (52,272) (52,272)
Goodwill adjustments . ................... — — (458) (234) (692)
Balance at March 31,2005 . ................ $ — $ — $48,783 $ 42,703 $ 91,486
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The goodwill reallocation shown in the table above related to the reorganization of certain of the
Company’s reportable segments are discussed in Note 17. The goodwill formerly included in the SSG and
SNG segments was allocated between the OEM and Channel segments based on a relative fair value
approach using an independent appraisal and management estimates of fair value of the segments. No
impairment was recorded as a result of the change in segments.

Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is reviewed annually and whenever events or circumstances
occur which indicate that goodwill might be impaired. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the Company’s
reporting unit level which is at the segment level by comparing each segment’s carrying amount, including
goodwill, to the fair value of that segment. To determine fair value, the Company’s review process uses the
income, or discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach. In performing its analysis, the
Company uses the best information available under the circumstances, including reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its implied
fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of
impairment loss, if any. Based on its annual review of goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the
Company recorded an impairment charge of $52.3 million related to its Channel segment. Factors that led
to this conclusion included, but were not limited to, the negative impact of estimates of expected future
income associated with increased costs related to recent acquisitions and business alliances that occurred
in fiscal 2005. These additional costs, along with industry technology transitions, place significant risk on
the Company’s ability to achieve and maintain profitability, and, therefore have adversely impacted its
profitability forecasts. The Company’s annual review of goodwill in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 and
2003 determined that there was no impairment related to its goodwill.

Other Intangible Assets

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004
Gross Carrying  Accumulated  Gross Carrying  Accumulated
(in thousands)

Acquisition-related intangible assets:

Patents, core and existing technologies . . . . ... $112,630 $ (64,885) § 74,930 $(50,898)
Supply agreement . .. ....... ... 7,600 (1,140) — —
Covenants-not-to-compete . .. ............. 4,818 (4,818) 4,818 (4,095)
Customer relationships .. ................ 1,290 (631) 1,290 (308)
Tradenames. . ......... ... ... 12,406 (2,999) 2,306 (963)
Foundry agreement . . .. ................. 600 (90) — —
Backlog and royalties ................... 455 (455) 455 (455)
Subtotal . .......... ... . 139,799 (75,018) 83,799 (56,719)
Intellectual property assets and warrants ... .. 44,868 (30,192) 43,892 (22,070)
Total ... .. $184,667 $(105,210)  $127,691 $(78,789)

Intellectual property assets comsist of a patent license fee (Note 13), a technology license fee
(Note 13), an amount allocated to a product supply agreement (Note 13) and certain intellectual property
acquired in fiscal 2003.
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In August 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to sell external storage products to IBM. In
connection with the agreement, the Company issued IBM a warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of the .
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $6.94 per share. The warrant has a term of five years from
the date ‘of issuance and was immediately exercisable. The warrant was valued at $1.0 million using the
Black-Scholes valuation model using a volatility rate of 62%, a risk-free ‘interest rate of 4.0% and an -
estimated life of 5 years. The value of the warrant was fully expensed against “net revenues,” as the
economic benefits were not considered probable at March 31, 2005.

Other intangible assets increased by approximately $57.0 million in fiscal 2005 as a result of the
Company’s acquisitions of the IBM i/p Series RAID business-and Snap Appliance and an agreement
entered into with IBM discussed above. Other intangible assets increased by approximately $25.5 million in
fiscal 2004 as a result of the Company’s acquisitions of Eurologic; ICP vortex and Elipsan. Amortization of
other intangible assets was $26.4 million, $24.0 million and $20.0 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The annual amortization expense of the other 1ntang1ble assets that emsted as of March 31, 2005 is
expected to be as follows:

Estimated Amortization Expense

" Intellectual
Acquisition-related - property assets
intangible assets and warrants

(in thousands) .
Fiscal years:

2006 . . e $17,375 $ 6,609
2007 . e e e 14,591 6,316
2008 L e e e 11,476 1,691
2009 .. 10,722 —
2010 and thereafter . . R 10,617 —
Total. . . e $64,781 $14,676
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March 31,
2005 2004
) (in thousands)
Va0 NOES « v e et et e e e $225,000  $225,000
3% Notes ... e e 35,190 35,190
Total ..o $260,190  $260,190

%% Notes: In December 2003, the Company issued $225.0 million in aggregate principal amount of
¥4% Notes due December 22, 2023. The issuance costs associated with the %% Notes totaled $6.8 million
and the net proceeds to the Company from the offering of the Notes were $218.2 million.

The %% Notes are convertible at the option of the holders into shares of the Company’s common
stock, par value $0.001 per share, only under the following circumstances: (1) prior to December 22, 2021,
on any date during a fiscal quarter if the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock was more than
120% of the then current conversion price of the %% Notes for at least 20 trading days in the period of the
30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the previous fiscal quarter, (2) on or after
December 22, 2021, if the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock was more than 120% of the
then current conversion price of the %% Notes, (3) if the Company elects to redeem the %% Notes,
(4) upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions or significant distributions to holders of the
Company’s common stock occur or (5) subject to certain exceptions, for the five consecutive business day
period following any five consecutive trading day period in which the average trading price of the %%
Notes was less than 98% of the average of the sale price of the Company’s common stock during such
five-day trading period multiplied by the %% Notes then current conversion rate. Subject to the above
conditions, each $1,000 principal amount of %% Notes is convertible into approximately 85.4409 shares of
the Company’s common stock (equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $11.704 per share
of common stock).

The Company may redeem some or all of the %% Notes for cash on December 22, 2008 at a
redemption price equal to 100.25% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed, plus accrued
interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. After December 22, 2008, the Company may redeem some
or all of the %% Notes for cash at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes
being redeemed, plus accrued interest to, but excluding, the redemption date.

Each holder of the %% Notes may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their %%
Notes on December 22, 2008 at a price equal to 100.25% of the %% Notes to be purchased plus accrued
and unpaid interest. In addition, each holder of the %% Notes may require the Company to purchase all or
a portion of their %% Notes on December 22, 2013, on December 22, 2018 or upon the occurrence of a
change of control (as defined in the Indenture governing the %% Notes) at a price equal to the principal
amount of %% Notes being purchased plus any accrued and unpaid interest.

The Company will pay cash interest at an annual rate of %% of the principal amount at issuance,
payable semi-annually on June 22 and December 22 of each year, which interest payments commenced on
June 22, 2004. Debt issuance costs of $6.8 million are being amortized to interest expense over 5 years. The
%% Notes rank senior in right of payment to the 3% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2007 (“3%
Notes”). The %% Notes rank junior in right of payment of the 3% Notes and are subordinated to all other
existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company.
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In connection with the issuance of the %% Notes, the Company purchased marketable securities
totaling $7.9 million as security for the first ten scheduled interest payments due on the %% Notes. The
marketable securities, which consist of United States government securities, are reported at fair market
value with unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, recorded in “Accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of taxes” as a separate component of the stockholders’ equity on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. At March 31, 2005, $1.8 million was classified as short-term marketable
securities due within one year and $4.6 million was classified as long-term due within three years.

- Convertible Bond Hedge and Warrant

Concurrent with the issuance of the %% Notes, the Company entered into a convertible bond hedge
transaction with an affiliate of one of the initial purchasers of the %% Notes. Under the convertible bond
hedge arrangement, the counterparty agreed to sell to the Company up to 19.2 million shares of the
Company’s common stock, which is. the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the %% Notes in
full, at a price of $11.704 per share. The convertible bond hedge transaction may be settled at the
Company’s option, either in cash or net shares, and expires in December 2008. Settlement of the
convertible bond hedge in net shares on the expiration date would result in the Company receiving a
number of shares- of its common stock with a value equal to the amount otherwise receivable on cash
settlement. Should there be an early unwind of the convertible bond hedge transaction, the amount of cash
or net shares potentially received by the Company will depend upon then existing overall market
conditions, and on the Company’s stock price, the volatility of the Company’s stock and the amount of time
remaining on the convertible bond hedge. The convertible bond hedge transaction cost of $64.1 million has
been accounted for as an equity transaction-in accordance with EITF No. 00-19.

During 'the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, in conjunction with the issuance of the %% Notes, the
Company received $30.4 million from the issuance to an affiliate of one of the initial purchasers of the %%
Notes of a warrant to purchase up to 19.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise'
price of $18.56 per share. The warrant expires in December 2008. At expiration, the Company may, at its
option, elect to settle the warrants on a net share basis or for cash. As of March 31, 2004, the warrant had.
not been exercised and remained outstanding. The warrant was valued using the Black-Scholes valuation
model vsing a volatility rate of 42%, risk-free interest rate of 3.6% and an expected life of 5 years. The
value of the warrant of $30.4 million has been classified as equity because it meets all the equity
classification criteria of EITF-00-19. The separate warrant and convertible bond hedge transactions have
the potential of limiting the dilution associated with the conversion of the ¥%:% Notes from approximately
19.2 million to as few as 12.1 million shares.

3% Notes: In March 2002, the Company issued $250 million in aggregate principal amount of 3%
Notes for net proceeds of $241.9 million. The 3% Notes are due on March 5, 2007. The 3% Notes provide
for semi-annual interest payments each March 5 and September 5, which interest payments commenced
September 35, 2002. The holders of the 3% Notes are entitled to convert the notes into common stock at a
conversion price of $15.31 per share through March 5, 2007. The 3% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in
part, at the option of the Company, at any time on or after March 9, 2005 at declining premiums to par:
Debt issuance costs are amortized to interest expense ratably over the term of the 3% Notes. The Notes
are subordinated to all other existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company.

In connection with the .issuance of the 3% Notes, the Company purchased marketable securities
totaling $21.4 million as security for the first six scheduled interest payments due on the 3% Notes. The
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marketable securities, which consist of United States government securities, are reported at fair market
value with unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, recorded in “Accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of taxes” as a separate component of the stockholders’ equity on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Gross unrealized gains on these securities were $0.3 million in fiscal 2003
and gross unrealized losses on these securities were $0.2 million in fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2004, the Company
utilized a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of %% Notes and repurchased $214.8 million in
aggregate principal amount of the 3% Notes, resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $5.7 million
(including unamortized debt issuance costs of $5.0 million). Due to the partial repurchase of the 3% Notes,
the restriction on $9.4 million of the restricted marketable securities lapsed. At March 31, 2005 and 2004,
$0.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively, was classified as restricted cash in connection with the
remaining $35.2 million outstanding 3% Note balance.

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, the Company repurchased $18.8 million of the 3% Notes on the open
market for $18.6 million, resulting in a loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $0.1 million (including
unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.3 million). The loss on extinguishment of debt will be included in
“Interest and other income” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the first quarter of fiscal
2006.

4¥%:% Notes: In February 1997, the Company issued $230.0 million in aggregate principal amount of
4%% Notes for net proceeds of $223.9 million. The 4%% Notes were due on February 1, 2004 and
provided for semi-annual interest payments each February 1 and August 1, which interest payments
commenced on August 1, 1997. The holders of the 4%% Notes were entitled to convert the notes into
common stock at an original conversion price of $51.66 per share through February 1, 2004. The 4%%
Notes were redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of the Company, at any time at declining
premiums to par. Debt issuance costs were amortized to interest expense ratably over the term of the 4%4%
Notes. During fiscal 2000, a noteholder converted $0.2 million of the 4¥:% Notes into 3,871 shares of the
Company’s common stock.

As a result of the Roxio (which is now known as Napster) spin-off and in accordance with the terms of
the 4%% Notes’ indenture, the conversion price was adjusted to $38.09 per share. The adjusted conversion
price was determined by multiplying $51.66, the original conversion price, by a ratio equal to (1) the
difference between the price of the Company’s common stock at the date of the Roxio spin-off, as defined
in the Indenture, and the fair market value of Roxio’s common stock as determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors, (2) divided by the price of the Company’s common stock at the date of the Roxio
spin-off.

In fiscal 2004, the Company redeemed the outstanding $82.4 million balance of its 4%4% Notes for an
aggregate price of $83.0 million, resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $0.8 million (including
unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.2 million). In fiscal 2003, the Company repurchased 4%% Notes
with a book value of $120.4 million for an aggregate price of $116.3 million, resulting in a gain on
extinguishment of debt of $3.3 million (net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.8 million). The gain on
extinguishment of debt has been included in “Interest and other income” in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations for fiscal 2004 and 2003.
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Note 7. TSMC Agreements

During fiscal 1996, the Company entered ‘into agreements with TSMC, which was subsequently
amended in fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2002, which provide the Company with guaranteed capacity for wafer
fabrication in exchange for advance payments (“Option Agreements”). The Company reflected the
advance payments as either prepaid expenses or other long-term assets based upon the amount expected to
be utilized within the next twelve months. As wafer units are purchased each year from TSMC, the advance
payments are reduced at a specified amount per wafer unit. .

The Company utilized $6.6 million, $9 3 million and $11.2 million of the advance payments in fiscal
years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The advance payments have been fully utilized as of March 31, :
200s5.

Note 8. Interest and Other Income

The components of interest and other income for all periods presented were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Interest iDCOME . . . . o v ittt e e e e e e $11,799 $19,197 $29,877
Gain on settlement with former president of DPT .. ... .. PP — 49,256 —
Payment of license fee with NSE. .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... (1,692) — —
Realized loss on repatriation (Note 3) ... ............. ... ....... (4,466) — —
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt, net (Note 6) . .. ............. —  (6466) 3,297 .
Foreign currency transaction gains (losses). .. .................... 692 1,342 (668)
Intereston taxrefunds . . ........ ... . 691 1,164 —
Other .. . e 1,345 1,936 1352
Total . ..... N $ 8,369 $66,429 $33,858

In June 2004, the Company, Nevada SCSI Enterprises, Inc. and Thomas A. Gafford (jointly, “NSE”)
entered into a license and release agreement, pursuant to which the Company paid NSE $1.3 million as a -
one-time, fully paid-up license fee to settle NSE’s claims that some of the Company’s products infringed
certain patents. The license and release agreement expressly excluded any sales of products made by
Eurologic prior to the Company’s April 2003 acquisition of Eurologic. In November 2004, the Company -
exercised its option to secure a license and release with respect to such Eurologic sales by payment to NSE
of a royalty fee of $0.4 million. The Company has filed a claim against the Eurologic acquisition Holdback
for the $0.4 million royalty it paid with respect to Eurologic’s pre-acquisition sales. The Eurologic
shareholders are disputing the Company’s right to withhold the $0.4 million from the Holdback.

In December 1999, the Company purchased Distributed Processing Technology Corporation
(“DPT”). As jpart of the purchase agreement, $18.5 million of the purchase price was held back
(“Holdback Amount”) from former DPT stockholders for unknown liabilities that may have existed as of
the acquisition date. The Holdback Amount was included in “Accrued liabilities” in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at March 31, 2003. Subsequent to the date of purchase, the Company determined that
certain representations and warranties made by the DPT stockholders were incomplete or inaccurate,
which caused the Company to lose revenues and incur additional expenses. This caused the Company to
file court proceedings against Steven Goldman, the principal shareholder and former president of DPT,
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alleging causes of action for, amongst others, fraud, fraudulent inducement, and negligent
misrepresentation. In May 2003, the Company entered into a written settlement and a mutual general
release agreement with Steven Goldman, on his own and on behalf of all the selling shareholders of DPT,
pursuant to which it was agreed that the Company would retain the Holdback Amount and, additionally,
Steven Goldman would pay the Company $31.0 million. The Company received the $31.0 million payment
in May 2003 and recorded a gain of approximately $49.3 million in fiscal 2004. The cash received from the
DPT settlement of $31.0 million was included in cash provided from operating activities in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Note 9. Restructuring Charges

During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $5.9 million,
$4.3 million and $14.3 million, respectively. All expenses, including adjustments, associated with our
restructuring plans are included in “Restructuring charges” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and are not allocated to segments but rather managed at the corporate level. The restructuring plans are
discussed in detail below.

Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plans

Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: 1In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company
initiated certain actions to consolidate primarily engineering resources in connection with the Vitesse
Semiconductor Corporation (“Vitesse”) strategic alliance (Note 10) and recorded a restructuring charge of
$0.5 million. The Company does not expect to incur any further charges in connection with this
restructuring plan.

Third Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company
initiated certain actions to simplify the Company’s structure by streamlining the corporate organization
and reducing operating costs. This resulted in a restructuring charge of $2.4 million, which related to the
involuntary termination of 46 employees in all functions of the organization and costs pertaining to
estimated future obligations for non-cancelable lease payments for an excess facility in Germany. In the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, a provision adjustment of $0.1 million was made related to the third quarter
of fiscal 2005 restructuring plan as severance and benefits were lower than originally anticipated. The
Company does not expect to incur any further charges in connection with this restructuring plan.

Second Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company
initiated certain actions to consolidate duplicative resources in connection with the acquisition of Snap
Appliance, primarily in selling, marketing and administrative functions, and recorded a restructuring
charge of $0.7 million. The Company does not expect to incur any further charges in connection with this
restructuring plan. For the acquisition-related restructuring plan associated with the Snap Appliance
acquisition, please see Note 2 for further details.

First Quarter of Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan: In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company initiated
certain actions to consolidate certain development and administrative functions in the United States and
Europe, which were completed in the first half of fiscal 2005. The Company recorded a restructuring
charge of $0.8 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 related to the involuntary termination of employees
and the costs pertaining to estimated future obligations for non-cancelable lease payments for an excess
facility in the United Kingdom. Additional charges of $1.4 million related to this plan associated with
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severance and benefits for employees primarily in the area of research and development were taken in the
second quarter of fiscal 2005. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, a provision adjustment of $0.1 million was
made related to the first quarter of fiscal 2005 restructuring plan as severance and benefits were lower than
originally - anticipated: Restructuring - charges related to the first quarter restructuring plan total
$2.1 million. The Company does not expect to incur any further charges in connection with this
restructuring plan. o

The following table sets forth an analysis of the components of the fiscal 2005 restructuring charge
and the provision adjustment and payments made against the reserve through March 31, 2005:

Severance And
Benefits Other Charges Total

(in thousands)

Restructuring provision: _ , ' ‘
QV05 Restructuring Plan. . . ........ ... .o oL ... 81,657 $540 $2,197

Q205 Restructuring Plan. . . ............... JR 700 — 700
Q3’05 Restructuring Plan. . .. ....... ... . o i 2,286 102 2,388
Q405 Restructuring Plan . . .. ... ... ... . L, 505 — 505
Total ... ... A e 5,148 642 5,790
Provision adjustment . . ................ e e (229) — (229)
Cashpaid................ N (4,023) (234) (4,257)
Non-cash charges . ..... e PR = (109) (109):
Reserve balance at March 31,2005 ...................... $ 896 $299 $1,195 '

The. Company anticipates that the remaining restructuring reserve balance of $1.2 million will be
substantially paid out by the third quarter of fiscal 2006.

Fiscal 2004 Restructuring Plans

In the fourth, third and second quarters of fiscal 2004, the Company’s management implemented
restructuring plans (collectively called the fiscal 2004 restructuring provision) to consolidate primarily
research and development resources, the involuntary termination of certain technical support, marketing
and administrative personnel, the shutdown of the Company’s Hudson, Wisconsin facility, and asset
impairments associated with. the identification of duplicative assets and facilities. As a result, the Company
recorded a restructuring charge of $3.7 million, of which $3.3 million related to severance and benefits of -
30 employees. The Company recorded an adjustment to the fiscal 2004 restructuring provision of
$0.2 million in fiscal 2005 as a reduction to severance and benefits as actual results were lower than
anticipated, offset by an adjustment of $0.6 million in fiscal 2004 related to the additional lease costs. As of
March 31, 2005, the Company has utilized approximately all of these charges and the plan is materially

complete. g

Fiscal 2003 Restructuring Plan

In the fourth and second quarters of fiscal 2003, the Company announced restructuring programs
(collectively called the. fiscal 2003 restructuring provision) to reduce expenses and streamline operations
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and recorded a restructuring charge of $13.2 million. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, the Company
recorded adjustments to the fiscal 2003 restructuring provision of $0.2 million and $0.1 million,
respectively, related to the reduction to severance and benefits as actual results were lower than
anticipated, offset by additional lease costs. As of March 31, 2004, the Company had substantially
completed its execution of the fiscal 2003 restructuring provision. As of March 31, 2005, the remaining
accrual balance of $0.1 million relates to the estimated loss related to facility in Florida through
April 2008, the end of the lease term.

Fiscal 2002 Restructuring Plan

In the fourth and first quarters of fiscal 2002, the Company’s management implemented restructuring
plans (collectively called the fiscal 2002 restructuring provision) to reduce costs, improve operating
efficiencies and tailor the Company’s expenses to current revenues and recorded a restructuring charge of
$10.1 million. During fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded adjustments to the fiscal
2002 restructuring provision of $0.2 million, $0.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively, related to the
additional lease costs offset by a reduction to severance and benefits as actual results were lower than
anticipated. As of March 31, 2004, the Company had substantially completed its execution of the fiscal
2002 restructuring provision. As of March 31, 2005, the remaining accrual balance of $0.3 million related to
the estimated loss of two facilities in Florida and Belgium through the end of the lease term, which are
April 2008 and October 2005, respectively.

Fiscal 2001 Restructuring Plan

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company’s management implemented a restructuring plan
(the fiscal 2001 restructuring provision) in response to the economic slowdown to reduce costs and
improve operating efficiencies and recorded a restructuring charge of $9.9 million. During fiscal years 2003
and 2002, the Company recorded additional charges of $0.7 million and $0.3 million, respectively, related
to additional lease costs and the write-off of certain manufacturing equipment that was being held for sale,
which was offset by a reduction to severance and benefits as actual results were lower than anticipated. As
of March 31, 2004, the Company substantially completed its execution of the 2001 restructuring provision.
The remaining accrual balance relates to the estimated loss of a facility that the Company subleased in
California through April 2008, the end of the lease term.. The estimated loss represents the estimated
future obligations for the non-cancelable lease payments, net of the estimated future sublease income. In
fiscal 2005, the Company recorded additional charges of $0.5 million related to additional lease costs. As
of March 31, 2005, the Company anticipates that the remaining restructuring reserve balance relating to
lease obligations of $1.0 million will be substantially paid out by the first quarter of fiscal 2009.
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The following table sets forth the activity in the accrued restructuring balances related to the fiscal
years 2003, 2002 and 2001 restructuring plans.for lease obligations at March 31, 2005: '

FY 2003 - FY 2002 FY 2001
Restructuring  Restructuring  Restructuring
Plan Plan Plan Total
‘ : . (in thousands)
Reserve balance at March 31,2004 . ............. $107 $802 $561 $1,470
Provision adjustment . ............. ... ... ..., — — 515 515
Cash Paid . . oo v oot (51) (531) . (110) (692)

Reserve balance at March 31, 2005. . ............ 56 $271 $966 $1,293

Note 10. Other Charges (Gains)

Other charges (gains) consist of asset impairment charges related to certain properties classified as
assets held for sale in fiscal 2004 and subsequently sold in fiscal 2005 and minority investments. Other
charges (gains) also included charges associated with the Company’s strategic alliances with ServerEngines
LLP (“ServerEngines”) and Vitesse. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of assets of $0.3 million in
fiscal 2005 and asset impairment charges of $6.0 million and $1.5 million in fiscal years 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

On March 16, 2005, the Company entered into a strategic alliance with ServerEngines, to develop and
market the next generation IP storage products. Under the terms of the alliance, ServerEngines employed
33 of the Company’s former engineering employees and licensed certain technology and acquired certain
assets related to the Company’s iSCSI and TCP/IP offload protocol engines. On January 26, 2005, the
Company entered into a strategic alliance with Vitesse Semiconductor Corporation to develop and market
the next generation SAS products. Under the terms of the alliance, Vitesse employed 44 of the Company’s
former engineering employees and licensed certain SAS technology and assets related to the Company’s
development of SAS ROC products. As a result, the Company incurred charges in fiscal 2005 of
$0.9 million and $1.6 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal
fees associated with the ServerEngines and Vitesse alliances, respectively. ‘

In fiscal 2004, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $5.0 million to reduce the carrying
value of certain properties classified as assets held for sale to fair value less cost to sell. The Company
decided to consolidate its properties in Milpitas, California to better align its business needs with existing
operations and to provide more efficient use of its facilities. As a result, two owned buildings, including .
associated building improvements and property, plant and equipment, were classified as assets held for sale
and were included in “Other current assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2004 at their
expected fair value less expected cost to sell. In October 2004, the Company completed the sale of these
properties that were previously classified as held for sale. Net proceeds from the sale of the properties
aggregated $9.6 million, which exceeded the Company’s final revised fair value of $6.8 million. As a result,
a gain on the sale of the properties of $2.8 million was recorded in fiscal 2005 as a credit to “Other charges
(gains)” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company holds minority investments in certain non-public companies. The Company regularly
monitors these minority investments for impairment and records reductions in the carrying values when
necessary. Circumstances that indicate an other-than-temporary decline include valuation ascribed to the
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issuing company in subsequent financing rounds, decreases in quoted market price and declines in
operations of the issuer. The Company recorded an impairment charge of $1.0 million and $1.5 million in
fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively, related to a decline in the values of minority investments deemed
to be other-than-temporary. A portion of the write-off in fiscal 2003 of $0.5 million related to the
Company’s investment in Chapparal, a related party transaction. The Company and Chaparral also were
parties to various component supply, technology and software licensing and product distribution
agreements. During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded royalty and product revenue of $0.3 million. There
were no further transactions with Chaparral subsequent to fiscal 2003 due to a severe curtailment of
Chapparal’s operations.

Note 11. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share gives effect
to all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period, which include certain stock
options and warrants, calculated using the treasury stock method, and convertible notes which are
potentially dilutive at certain earnings levels, and are computed using the if-converted method.

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share computations was as follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2005 2004 - 2003
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .................... $(145,106) $ 62,907 $(15,426)
Adjustment for interest expense on %% Notes, net of taxes ....... _ — 469 —
Adjustment for interest expense on 3% Notes, net of taxes . . ... ... — 4,477 —
Netincome (l08S) . . . oo v vt e $(145,106) $ 67,853 $(15,426)
Denominator: ‘
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic ................. 110,798 108,656 106,772
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options and other. . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... — 2,036 —
a0 NOTES . . ottt e e e — 4,806 —
B30 NOES o .ot e — 13,309 —
Weighted average shares and potentially dilutive common shares

outstanding—diluted . .. ... ... . oo 110,798 128,807 106,772
Net income (loss) per share:
BasiC . . . $ (131) $§ 058 § (0.14)
Diluted .. ... ... $ (131) $ 053 § (0.19)

Diluted loss per share for fiscal years 2005 and 2003 was based only on the weighted-average number
of shares outstanding during each of the periods, as the inclusion of any common stock equivalents would
have been anti-dilutive. In addition, certain potential common shares were excluded from the diluted
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computation for fiscal 2004 because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. The items excluded for
flscal years 2005 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
' Lo g o g X (in thousands)
Outstandmg employee stock optlons ...... T N 15,498 14,079 19,731 -
Warrants(1) ..o e e Sl 19,874 19,374 1,310
4%:% Convertible Subordinated Notes .. ............ ... ... ... ... — — 2,858
300 NOTES « vt e e e e 2,298 — 16,327
340 NOTES . v o v vt et et e e e e 19,224 — —

(1) In connection with the issuance of its %% Notes, the Company entered into a derivative financial
instrument to repurchase up to 19,224,000 shares of its common stock, at the Company’s option, at
specified prices in the future to mitigate any potentlal dilution as a result of the conversion of the %%
Notes, See Note 6 for further details. ‘

The Company adopted EITF 04-08 in frscal 2005 which requlred the inclusion of shares related to
contingently convertible débt instruments for computing diluted earnings per share using the if-converted
method, regardless of whether market price contingency has been met. As a result of applying EITF 04-08
to fiscal 2004, diluted earnings per share were $0.53 rather than $0.54 as previously reported. There was no
effect to earnings per share for fiscal 2003 with the adoption of EITF 04-08.

Note 12.'Stockholders’ Equlty A

Employee Stock Purchase Plan: The Company has authorized 10,600,000 shares of common stock for
issuance under the 1986 ESPP. Qualified employees may elect to have a certain percentage (not to exceed -
10%) of their salary withheld pursuant to the ESPP. The salary withheld is then used to purchase shares of -
the Company’s common stock at a price equal to 85% of the market value of the common-stock at either
the beginning of the offering period or at the end of each applicable six month purchase period, whichever
is lower. During fiscal 2001, the Company amended the ESPP to extend the offering period from six
months to 24 months, beginning in August 2000. Purchases are made every six months. During fiscal 2004,
an additional 5,000,000 shares were added to the ESPP, making a total of 15,600,000 authorized shares
under the 1986 ESPP. Under the ESPP, 1,109,000, 1,027,000 and 1,163,000 shares were issued during fiscal
years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, representing approximately $5.4 million, $5.3 million and
$6.0 million in employees’ contributions, respectlvely

2004 Equity Incentive Plan: During the second quarter of f1sca1 2005, the Company’s Board of
Directors and its stockholders approved the Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan and reserved for
issuance thereunder 10,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock plus shares reserved but not issued
under the Company’s 1999 Stock Option Plan and 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan provides for granting of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock, stock awards, restricted
stock units and stock appreciation rights to employees, employee directors and consultants. Incentive stock
options may also be granted to the Company’s employees under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. As of
March 31, 2005, the Company had 14,091,193 shares available for future issuance under the 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan.
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2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan: During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company’s Board
of Directors approved the Company’s 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and reserved for issuance
thereunder 8,000,000 shares of common stock. The 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan provides for
granting of stock options to non-executive officer employees of the Company at prices equal to at least
100% of the fair market value at the date of grant. Stock options granted under this plan are for periods
not to exceed ten years and generally become fully vested and exercisable over a two to five-year period.
Upon stockholder approval of the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan in August 2004, the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan was terminated with respect to new option grants. There were no shares available for option
grants under the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan as of March 31, 2005.

1999 Stock Option Plan: During the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors
and its stockholders approved the Company’s 1999 Stock Option Plan and reserved for issuance
thereunder (a) 1,000,000 shares of common stock, plus (b) any shares of common stock reserved but
ungranted under the Company’s 1990 Stock Option Plan as of the date of stockholder approval, plus
(c) any shares returned to the 1990 Stock Option Plan as a result of termination of options under the 1990
Stock Option Plan after the date of stockholder approval of the 1999 Stock Option Plan, The 1999 Stock
Option Plan provided for granting of incentive and nonstatutory stock options to employees, consultants
and directors of the Company. Options granted under this plan are for periods not to exceed ten years, and
were granted at prices not less than 100% and 75% for incentive and nonstatutory stock options,
respectively, of the fair market value on the date of grant. Generally, stock options become fully vested and
exercisable over a four to five-year period. Upon stockholder approval of the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan in
August 2004, the 1999 Stock Option Plan was terminated with respect to new option grants. There were no
shares available for option grants under the 1999 Stock Option Plan at March 31, 2005.

1990 Stock Option Plan: The Company’s 1990 Stock Option Plan allowed the Board of Directors to
grant to employees, officers, and consultants incentive and nonstatutory options to purchase common stock
or other stock rights at exercise prices not less than 50% of the fair market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. The expiration of options or other stock rights did not exceed ten years
from the date of grant. The Company has issued all stock options under this plan at exercise prices of at
least 100% of fair market value of the underlying common stock on the respective dates of grant.
Generally, options vest and become exercisable over a four-year period. In March 1999, the Company
amended the 1990 Stock Option Plan to permit non-employee directors of the Company to participate in
this plan. Upon stockholder approval of the 1999 Stock Option Plan, the 1990 Stock Option Plan was
terminated with respect to new option grants. There were no shares available for option grants under the
1990 Stock Option Plan at March 31, 2005.
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Assumed Stock Option Plans: The Company assumed the stock option plans and the outstanding
stock options of certain acquired companies, which include Snap Appliance in fiscal 2005, Eurologic in
fiscal 2004, Platys in fiscal 2002 and DPT in fiscal 1999. No further options may be granted under these
assumed plans. : ‘

Option activity under the Company’s stock option plans during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005 was as
follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Weighted Average
: v ‘ C Available Shares Exercise Price
Balance, March 31,2002 . ................ .. 78,889,293 17,213,155 $12.91
Granted .......... J o0 (5,632,090) 5,632,090 8.42
Exercised ............ e P —  (475,875) 2.74
Forfeited......... e [ = (78,506) 0.32
Cancelled . ......... P Do 3,190,207 (3,190,207) 14.17
Balance, March 31, 2003 ... .. e 6,447,410 19,100,657 11.69
Assumed............... R - — 498,789 7.41
Granted ...................... R (4,530,400). 4,530,400 7.89
Exercised.....................,.', ..... — (895,199) 2.51
Forfeited. . . ........ ..., e _ — . (242,249) 6.59
Cancelled ...................... e 3,046,688  (3,046,688) 12.33
Balance, March 31,2004 .. ......... e oo 4,963,698 19,945,710 11.09
Authorized ........... . ... . . ... ... V.. .. 10,000,000 — ‘ —
Assumed . . ... P - — 1,232,489 1.50
Granted . .......... i (4,243,400) 4,243,400 7.52
Restricted Stock Issued .. ...... I Lo (14,900 — —
“Exercised .. ... A —  (1401,267) - 211
Forfeited. . .. ... e AP [ = (194,640) 7.98
Cancelled ...................... PR 3,385,795  (3,385,795) 11.57
Balance, March 31, 2005 . .. ... e 14;091,193 20,439,897  $10.34
Options exercisable at: ’
March 31,2003 .. ... ... .. ‘ 11,471,643 $13.19
March 31,2004 .. ... ... ... . ... .. . ..... 12,661,660 12.81
March 31,2005 . ....... ... i 13,036,572 11.85
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The following table summarizes information about the employees’ stock option plans as of March 31,
2005:

Options Outstanding

VX:E_':;S Options Exercisable
Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding  Contractual Average Exercisable Average
Range of Exercise Prices at 3/31/05 Life Exercise Price - at 3/31/05 Exercise Price
$010-$ 500 ........... 2,366,029 542 $3.53 1,400,555 $3.67
$ 5.06-310.00 . .......... 8,250,431 533 7.69 2,458,874 7.48
$10.18-$15.00 . ... ....... - 5,440,152 3.98 12.84 4,817,611 12.80
$15.13-$2000 . ........ .. 4,266,315 3.69 15.54 4,242 563 15.54
$20.18-$3,473.67 . . .. .. ... 116,970 3.70 28.85 116,969 28.82
20,439,897 4.63 10.34 13,036,572 11.85

Stock Option Plans—Directors

The 2000 Director Stock Option Plan: During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company’s Board
of Directors approved the Company’s 2000 Director Stock Option Plan and reserved for issuance
thereunder 1,000,000 shares of common stock. The 2000 Director Stock Option Plan provides for the
automatic grant to non-employee directors of nonstatutory stock options to purchase common stock at the
fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, which is generally the last day of
each fiscal year except for the first grant to any newly elected director. Upon joining the Board of
Directors, each new non-employee director receives an option to purchase 40,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock which vests over four years and expires ten years after the date of grant. On the last day of
each fiscal year, each non-employee director receives an option to purchase 15,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock which vests over a one-year period and expires ten years after the date of grant.
As of March 31, 2005, the Company had 378,750 shares available for future issuance under the 2000
Director Stock Option Plan.

The 1990 Directors’ Stock Option Plan: The 1990 Directors’ Stock Option Plan provides for the
automatic grant to non-employee directors of non-statutory stock options to purchase common stock at the
fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, which is generally the last day of
each fiscal year except for the first grant to any newly elected director. Upon joining the Board of
Directors, each new non-employee director received an option to purchase 40,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock which vests over four years and, prior to March 31, 1997, expired five years after the date of
grant. Prior to March 31, 1997, each director received a grant at the end of each fiscal year for 10,000
shares, which vested quarterly and over a four-year period and expired five years after the date of grant.
During fiscal 1997, the Company amended the 1990 Directors’ Stock Option Plan such that all newly
issued options expire ten years after the date of grant and all newly issued annual options vest over a
one-year period. In fiscal 1999, the Company amended the 1990 Directors’ Stock Option Plan to increase
the annual grant to 15,000 options for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999. Upon the approval of the 2000
Director Stock Option Plan, the 1990 Director Option Plan was terminated with respect to new grants.

There were no shares available for option grants under the 1990 Directors’ Stock Option Plan at March 31,
2005. ‘
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Option activity under the directors’ stock option plans during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005 was as
follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Options Average Exercise
) ) : Availabie Shares Price
Balance, March 31;2002 .. .. ........... e . 652,500 510,000 $21.05
Granted ............... e (120,000) 120,000 6.11
Exercised . ... ... . .. —_— — —
Cancelled . ...... ... i — — —
Balance, March 31,2003 ............... e 532,500 630,000 18.21
Granted . ........ ... e (160,000) 160,000 8.74
Exercised ....... . ... i . —  (3,750) 6.11
Forfeited. . .. ... ... . —  (35,000) 34.13
Cancelled . ....... ... i, 41,250 (41,250) 9.68
Balance, March 31,2004 ... ..................... 413,750 710,000 15.85
Granted ...... e e e e e e (105,000) - 105,000 4.58
Exercised ........ .. e —  (15,000) 6.11
Cancelled . ............ e e 70,000  (70,000) 11.00
Balance, March 31,2005 ............. . TR, . 378,750 730,000 14.89
Options exercisable at: , ‘
March 31,2003 . ... ........... .. .. PP o ... 402,500 $22.89
March 31, 2004 ... .. e e 482,500 18.42
March 31,2005 ........... e e 575,000 17.05

The following table summarizes information about the directors’ stock option plans as of March 31,
2005: »

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

‘ Weighted
Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
‘ i ~ Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

Range of Exercise Prices _ °  at 3/31/05 Contractual Life - Exercise Price at 3/31/05 Exercise Price
$ 4.58'-:$10/.OO ..... e 385,000 . . 8.7 ‘ $6.98 252,500 $7.81
$10.01-$20.00 EERER 210,000 - 6.8 14.27 187,500 14.10
$20.01-’$30.0Q e 30,000 3.0 20.06 30,000 20.06
$30.01-$40.00 ......... 20,QQO . 2.0 . 3725 20,000 37.25
$40.01-$4938 . ....... : 85,000 3.8 _ 45.17 85,000 45.17

730,000 7.1 ©14.89 575,000 17.05

Assumptions of Fair Value

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is required to be
determined as if the Company had accounted for the options granted pursuant to its ESPP, employees’
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stock option plans, and directors’ stock option plans, collectively called “options,” under the fair value
method as required by SFAS No. 123. The pro forma information for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 is
reported in Note 1 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” The fair value of options granted in
fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 as reported was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Employees’ Stock Directors’ Stock
ESPP Option Plans Option Plans
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Expected life (in years) .......... 12 14 05 23 27 4 10 14 5
Risk-free interest rate ........... 26% 15% 11% 3.1% 18% 2.4% 3.4% 13% 2.8%
Expected volatility . . . ........... 40% 60% 76% 44% 62% 76% 34% 43% 78%

Dividend yield................. - - - = = = = = =

The following table states the weighted average estimated fair value of its options granted or issued
for all periods presented:

2005 2004 2003

(per share amounts)

o $6.11 $2.77 $2.39

Employees’ stock option plans . .. ......... ... . i, $2.18 $3.17 $5.16

Directors’ stock option plans . . .. ... .o $0.68 $1.82 $3.92
Warrants

In January 2000, the Company issued a warrant to Agilent Technologies, Incorporated (“Agilent”) to
purchase 1,160,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at $62.25 per share. The warrant had a term of
four years from the date of issuance, was immediately exercisable and was valued at $37.1 million using the
Black-Scholes valuation model. As a result of the Roxio spin-off, which is now known as Napster, the
Company retained 190,936 shares of Roxio’s common stock, in the event that Agilent exercised its warrant

to purchase 1,160,000 shares of the Company’s common stock; however, the warrant expired unexercised
in January 2004.

In December 1998, the Company received a warrant to purchase up to 982,357 shares of BroadLogic’s
common stock, a related party, at $4 per share, which expired in December 2003.

Rights Plan

The Company has reserved 250,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock for issuance under the 1996
Rights Agreement, which was amended and restated on February 1, 2001. Under this plan, stockholders
have received one preferred stock purchase right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of the Company’s
common stock. The Rights trade automatically with shares of the Company’s common stock. The Rights
are not exercisable until ten days after a person or group announces the acquisition of 20% or more of the
Company’s outstanding commen stock or the commencement of a tender offer which would result in
ownership by a person or group of 20% or more of the then outstanding common stock. If one of these
events occurs, stockholders, other than an acquiring person, would be entitled to exercise their rights and
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receive one-thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock for each Right they hold at an exercise price
of $180.00 per right. -

The Company is entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.01-per nght anytime on or before the day
following the occurrence of an acquisition or tender offer described in the preceding paragraph. This
redemption period may be extended by the Company in some cases. If, prior to such redemption, the
Company, is. acquired in a merger or other business combination, a party acquires 20% or more of the
Company’s common stock, a 20% stockholder engages in certain self-dealing transactions, or the Company
sells 50% or more of its assets, then in lieu of receiving shares of Series A Preferred Stock for each Right
held, stockholders, other than an acquiring person, would be entitled to exercise their Rights and receive
from the surviving corporation, for an exercise price of $180.00 per right, common stock having a then
current market value of $360.00.

The Series A Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each
share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to an aggregate dividend of 1,000 times the dividend
declared per common stock. In the event of liquidation, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will be
entitled to a preferential liquidation payment equal to 1,000 times the per share amount to be distributed
to the holders of the common stock. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock will have 1,000 votes, voting
together with the common stock. In the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction in which
the common stock is changed or exchanged, each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to
receive 1,000 times the amount received per common stock. These rights are protected by customary
anti-dilution provisions.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

As of March 31, 2005, the Company has reserved the following shares of authorized but unissued
common stock: -

ESPP.......... e P 5,694,287

Employees’ Stock Option plans. . .. ......ovuire it nt i 34,531,090
Directors’ stock option plans . .. .. ... ... .. ... 1,108,750
Qutstanding warrants (Notes 5,6 and 13) ....... ... .. ... ... . ... .... 19,874,203
Conversion of %% Notes (Note 6) .. ... .. 19,224,203
Conversion of 3% Notes (Note 6) . ............... e e e e e 2,298,199

Otal . . e e e e 82,730,732

Note 13. IBM Distribution Agreement, ServeRAID Agreement and Patent Cross-License Agreement

" In December 2004, the Company entered into a distribution agreement on its RAID controllers and
connectivity products sold for IBM iSeries and pSeries servers. The agreement was made through an
amendment to the Company’s existing i/p Series RAID supply and intellectual property agreement entered
into in June 2004 (See Note 2). The distribution agreement is accounted for as a standalone transaction as
it was not contemplated at the time ‘the Company entered into the original IBM i/p Series RAID
transaction, : .

Under the amended intellectual property agreement, the Company is required to make fixed and
variable royalty-based payments to IBM. The fixed payments potentially due under the arrangement total
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$52.1 million, of which $25.0 million was paid in December 2004, the date the Company entered into the
agreement, and the remainder is due quarterly, in varied installments, through December 2008. A portion
of the $52.1 million in total payments is contingent upon IBM purchasing certain levels of the Company’s
products. Upon entering into the agreement, the Company recorded the full remaining amount payable to
IBM as a liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as the Company considers payment of the full
amount to be probable. At March 31, 2005, $11.6 million was recorded in “Accrued Liabilities” and
$11.9 million was recorded in “Other Long-Term Liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

The fixed consideration for the distribution agreement of $52.1 million was recorded as an asset to
“Prepaid expenses” and “Other long-term assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the
amortization is being included in “Net revenues” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations over a
four-year period, reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets expected to be
realized. The royalty-based fee per unit is calculated using the average net sales price for units sold within
the quarter and baseline royalty rates subject to certain adjustment factors. The amortization of the fixed
consideration and the royalty-based payments are being recorded as a reduction to revenue in the period
the units are sold.

In March 2002, the Company entered into a non-exclusive, perpetual technology licensing agreement
and an exclusive three-year product supply agreement with IBM. The technology licensing agreement
grants the Company the right to use IBM’s ServeRAID technology for the Company’s internal and
external RAID products. Under the product supply agreement, the Company will supply RAID software,
firmware and hardware to IBM for use in IBM’s xSeries servers. The agreement does not contain
minimum purchase commitments from IBM and the Company cannot be assured of the future revenue it
will receive under this agreement. Either party may terminate the technology licensing agreement if the
other party materially breaches its obligations under the agreement. The product supply agreement
automatically terminates at the end of three years or earlier upon breach of a material contract obligation
by the Company or upon the occurrence of any transaction within two years of the effective date of the
agreement that results in: (i) a competitor of IBM beneficially owning at least 10% of the voting stock of
the Company or any affiliate of the Company; (ii) a competitor of IBM becoming entitled to appoint a
nominee to the board of directors of the Company; or (iii) a director, office holder or employee of a
competitor of IBM becomes a director of the Company.

In consideration, the Company paid IBM a non-refundable fee of $26.0 million and issued IBM a
warrant to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price $15.31 per share.
The warrant has a term of five years from the date of issuance and is immediately exercisable. The warrant
was valued at approximately $1.0 million using the Black-Scholes valuation model using a volatility rate of
71.6%, a risk-free interest rate of 4.7% and an estimated life of five years. The Company allocated
$12.0 million of the consideration paid to IBM to the supply agreement and allocated the remainder to the
technology license fee. Fair values were determined based on discounted estimated future cash flows
related to the Company’s channel and OEM ServeRAID business. The cash flow periods used were five
years and the discount rates used were 15% for the supply agreement asset and 20% for the technology
license fee based upon the Company’s estimate of their respective levels of risk. Amortization of the supply
agreement and the technology license fee shall be included in “Net revenues” and “Costs of revenues,”
respectively, over a five-year period reflecting the pattern in which economic benefits of the assets are
realized.
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In May 2000, the Company entered into a patent cross-license agreement with IBM, which was
subsequently amended in March 2002. Under the agreement, the Company obtained a release of past
infringement claims made prior to January 1, 2000 and received the right to use certain IBM patents from :
January 1, 2000 through June 30, 2007. Additionally, the Company granted IBM a license to use all of the
Company’s patents for the same period. In consideration, the Company paid an aggregate patent fee of
$13.3 million. The patent license fee is being amortized over the period from January 1, 2000 through

June 30, 2007.

Note 14. Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) from operations before provision for (benefit from) income taxes
for all periods presented were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Income (Loss) Before Taxes: ‘
DOmMeStiC . . . ot $(80,392) $17,360 $(34,306)
Foreign . ... .o (12,027) 12,574 16,612

$(92,419) $29,934 $(17,694)

The components of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes for all periods presented were as
follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2905 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Federal:
CUITENE & o\ vttt e et e e e e e § 978 § (297) $(4,234)
Deferred . ... . 42,394 (13,029) (4,151)
| 43372 (13,326) (8,385)

Foreign:
Current . .........covvvn.. e 3,017 (8,074) 1,776
Deferred . ... ... [ e (215) 50 1,879
2,802 (8,024) 3,655

State: _ - :

Current . .. ... .. e -(2,047) 0 3,234
Deferred . . . .. e A 8,560  (11,623) (772)
o . 6,513 (11,623) 2,462
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ................ 852,687  $(32,973) $(2,268)

The tax benefit associated with dispositions from employees’ stock plans were $0.6 million,
$0.6 million, and $1.1 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. To the extent that these
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amounts reduce taxes currently paid, the benefit is recorded directly to stockholders’ equity. The benefits
associated with dispositions from employee stock option plans are not currently recognized to the extent
that the resulting tax deduction creates a net operating loss carryforward. These benefits will be recorded
directly to stockholders’ equity when the net operating loss carryforward is realized.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

March 31,
2005 2004
(in thousands)

Intangible technology . . .« o v oo vt $27,482 $23,134
Research and development tax credits. . . ... ... ..o L 12,362 8,714
Net operating 10sS CaITyOVET . . . . oo v it e 12,106 —
Compensatory accruals. . . ... ... 5,376 5,488
Capitalized research and development. .. ..................... ... 3,932 3,590
Cost sharing buy-out .......... .. i U 3,038 —
Fixed asset accrual . . . ... .ot i e 3,008 8,108
Restructuring charges. . . .. ..ottt i 2,059 1,059
Forejgntax credits . . . ... ... ot 1,912 401
Inventory reserves . ... e 1,838 2,592
Other expense accruals . .......... .. ... ... PR . 1,195 3,463
Deferred revenue ............ .o 943 —
Royalty accrual ... 781 438
Accrued returned materials . .................. e 746 047
Uniform capitalization adjustment . ............... ... ... ...... 554 500
Other,net............. e 1,281 128
Gross deferred tax assets .. ......... ... S 78,613 58,562
Deferred tax liabilities: - -

Acquisition-related charges. ... ...... ... . L il (11,081)  (2,341)
Cumulative translation adjustment .............. .. ... . ... . ..., (834) (543)
Gross deferred tax liability . .. .. .. PO (11,915)  (2,884)
Valuation allowance . . . ...t i e - (67,167) —
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . .. ............ ... ii.on.. $ (469) $55,678

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was recorded at March 31, 2005 as the Company
determined that it was more likely than not that its U.S. deferred tax assets would not be realized. The
Company continuously monitors the circumstances impacting the expected realization of its deferred tax
assets on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. At March 31, 2005, the Company’s analysis of its deferred tax
assets demonstrated that it was more likely than not that all of its U.S. deferred tax assets would not be
realized. Factors that led to this conclusion included, but were not limited to, the Company’s past operating
results, cumulative tax losses in the U.S., and uncertain future income on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction
basis. The estimates of expected future income were negatively impacted by increased costs related to
recent acquisitions and business alliances that occurred in fiscal 2005. These additional costs, along with
industry technology transitions, place significant risk on the Company’s ability to achieve and maintain
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profitability and therefore have adversely unpacted the profltablhty forecasts initially used to release the
valuation allowance‘in fiscal 2004.

The Company’s effective tax rate differed from the federal statutory tax rate for all periods presented
as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
Federal statutory rate . ... ..ot (35.0)0% 350 % (35.00%
State taxes, net of federal benefit ........ ... ............. 0% (169Y% 9.0 %
Foreign subsidiary income at other than the U.S tax rate ... ... 8.7 % (6.5)% (16.6)%
Change in valuation allowance ......................... 642 % (72.2)% (19.1)%
Reduction in tax TESEIVES . . ... vvvrvneererteeeeneenn.. 247% (21.0)% —
Acquisition charges. . ........ ... PP 206% (194)% 750 %
Repatriation. ........ e P 19.0 % — —
Research and development credits. .. .................... (3.0)% (9.4)% (31.6)%
Other .. ..ttt i i PP 02 % 02% 55%
Effective income tax rate ......... e 570 % (1102)% (12.8)%

The Company’s subsidiary in Singapore is currently operating under a tax holiday. The Company has
agreed to terms for a new tax holiday package effective for fiscal years 2005 through 2010. The new tax
holiday will provide that profits derived from certain products will be exempt from tax, subject to certain

conditions.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company repatriated $360.6 million of undistributed earnings
from Singapore to the United States, resulting in a tax liability of $17. 6 million. The one-time deduction is
allowed to the extent that the repatriated amounts are used to fund a qualified Domestic Reinvestment
Plan, as required by the Act. If the Company does not spend the repatriated funds in accordance with its ,
reinvestment plan, the Company may incur additional tax liabilities. The Company has not provided for
U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on the remaining undistributed earnings of
$255.6 million since these earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely. Although the Company does
not have any current plans to repatriate the remaining undistributed earnings from its Singapore subsidiary
to its United States parent company, if the Company were to do so, additional income taxes at the
combined United States Federal and state statutory rate of apprommately 40% could be incurred from the

I epatr iation.

The Company’s tax related liabilities were $57.5 million and $65.8 million at March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Tax related liabilities are:primarily composed of income, withholding and transfer taxes
accrued by the Company in the- taxing jurisdictions in which it operates around the world, including, but '
not limited to, the United States, Singapore, Ireland, United Kingdom, Japan and Germany. The amount
of the liability was based on management’s evaluation of the Company’s tax exposures:.;in,light of the
complicated nature of the business transactions entered into by:the Company in a global business
environment. In fiscal years. 2005 and 2004, net tax related-liabilities were released totaling $26.4 million
and $6.3 million, respectively, as the result of favorable outcomes of.certain U.S. tax controversies. The
Company also continuously reviews its tax related liabilities to ensure that it is appropriate by considering .
tax controversy factors such as the period-covered by the cause of action, the degree of probability of an
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unfavorable outcome, its ability to reasonably estimate the liability, the timing of the liability and how it
will impact the Company’s other tax attributes. At March 31, 2005, the Company believed that the tax
related liability recorded on its Consolidated Balance Sheet was sufficient.

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain land, office facilities, vehicles, and equipment under operating lease
agreements that expire at various dates through fiscal 2028. As of March 31, 2005, future minimum lease
payments and future sublease income under non-cancelable operating leases and subleases were as
follows:

Future Future

Minimum Sublease
Fiscal Year: Lease Payments Income
(in thousands)

2006 .. e $ 8,554 $3,900
2007 e 6,621 3,222
2008 L e e 5,540 2,042
2009 . e 2,622 135
2010 .. e 2,261 —
2011 and thereafter . .... ... ... ... . .. e 11,935 —
Total. ... o FEPIPE $37,533 $9,299

Net rent expense was approximately $3.1million, $2.6 million and $3.1 million during fiscal years 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company invests in technology companies through two venture capital funds, Pacven Walden
Ventures V Funds and APV Technology Partners II, L.P. At March 31, 2005, the carrying value of such
investments aggregated $3.3 million. The Company has also committed to provide additional funding of up
to $0.5 million.

In connection with the acquisition of Snap Appliance, the Company acquired an available revolving
line of credit of up to $7.5 million that bears interest at the greater the bank’s prime rate or 4.25% per
annum. At March 31, 2005, the Company had no borrowings against this line. Borrowings are
collateralized by certain accounts receivable balances. Under the amended terms of the line of credit, all
financial covenants are waived through the term of the line of credit on April 23, 2005.

On June 27, 2000, the Company received a statutory notice of deficiency from the IRS with respect to
its Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1994 to 1996. The Company filed a Petition with the United States
Tax Court on September 25, 2000, contesting the asserted deficiencies. In December 2001, settlement
agreements were filed with the United States Tax Court reflecting a total of $9.0 million of adjustments and
an allowance of $0.5 million in additional tax credits. The outcome did not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, as sufficient tax provisions have been made.
The final Tax Court stipulation will be filed when the subsequent audit cycles are completed. Tax credits
that were generated but not used in subsequent years may be carried back to the fiscal 1994 to 1996 audit
cycle.
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On December 15, 2000, the Company received a statutory notice of deficiency from the IRS with
respect to its Federal income tax return for fiscal 1997. The Company filed a Petition with the United
States Tax Court on March 14, 2001, contesting the asserted deficiencies. Settlement agreements have been
filed with the United States Tax Court on all but one issue. The Company believes that the final outcome
of all issues will not have a material adverse impact on its financial position or results of operations, as the
Company believes that it has meritorious defense against the asserted deficiencies and any proposed
adjustments and that it has made sufficient tax provisions. However, the Company cannot predict with
certainty how these matters will be resolved and whether it will be required to make additional payments.

In addition, the IRS is currently auditing the Company’s Federal income tax returns for fiscal 1998
through fiscal 2001. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company resolved all issues other than the
rollover impact of any potential resolution on the remaining fiscal 1997 issue and tax credits that were
generated but not used in subsequent years that may be carried back. As a result of the resolutions,
$31.9 million previously recorded as a tax provision was reversed during fiscal 2005. The Company believes
that it has provided sufficient tax provisions for these years and the ultimate outcome of the IRS audits will
not have a material adverse impact on its financial position or results of operations in future periods.
However, the Company cannot predict with certainty how these matters will be resolved and whether it will
be required to make additional tax payments.

The Company is a party to other litigation matters and claims, including those related to intellectual
property, which are normal in the course of its operations, and while the resuits of such litigation matters
and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believes that the final outcome of such
matters will not have a material adverse impact on its financial position or resuits of operations.

Note 16. Guarantees
Intellectual Property Indemnification Obligations

The Company has entered into agreements with customers and suppliers that include intellectual
property indemnification obligations. These indemnification obligations generally require the Company to
compensate the other party for certain damages and costs incurred as a result of third party intellectual
property claims arising from these transactions. In each of these circumstances, payment by the Company
is conditional on the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures specified in the particular
contract, which procedures typically allow the Company to challenge the other party’s claims. Further, the
Company’s obligations under these agreements may be limited in terms of time and/or amount, and in
some instances, the Company may have recourse against third parties for certain payments made by it
under these agreements. It is not possible to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential
amount of future payments under these or similar agreements due to the conditional nature of the
Company’s obligations and .the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement.
Historically, the Company has not incurred significant costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to
such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements with respect
to these indemnification guarantees.

Product Warranty

The Company provides an accrual for estimated future warranty costs based upon the historical
relationship of warranty costs to sales. The estimated future warranty obligations related to product sales
are recorded in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The estimated future warranty
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Note 16. Guarantees (Continued)

obligations are affected by product failure rates, material usage and replacement costs incurred in
correcting a product failure. If actual product failure rates, material usage or replacement costs differ from
the Company’s estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty obligations would be required; however the
Company made no adjustments to pre-existing warranty accruals in fiscal years 2005 and 2004. The
Company recorded $0.4 million of warranty costs in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 associated with certain
claims.

A reconciliation of the changes to the Company’s warranty accrual for fiscal 2005 was as follows:

March 31,

2005 2004

(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period . ......... ... ... ... . $1,598 $1,343
Warranties assumed. . . ..o e e e e e 1,045 120
Warranties provided .. ... ... . . . ... . . e 5,846 4,499
Actual costsincurred. . . ... .. .. L e (6,405) (4,364)
Balance atend of period . .. ...... ... ... . .. .. e $2,084 $1,598

Note 17. Segment, Geographic and Significant Customer Information
Segment Information

In the second quarter of fiscal 2005 and following the Snap Appliance acquisition in July 2004
(Note 2), the Company refined its internal organizational structure to operate in three reportable
segments: OEM, Channel and DSG. Where historically the Company’s former SSG and SNG segment
each offered distinct products across its entire customer base, the new OEM and Channel segments offer
an integrated set of products to customers that are specific to the segment. The Company reorganized its
business in a customer-focused manner to enable it to concentrate on addressing the specific business
needs of its customers and better coordinate product planning. A description of the types of customers or
products and services provided by each reportable segment is as follows:

* OEM provides storage products directly to OEMs or to ODMs that supply OEMs, enabling them to
resell next-generation storage products built on the Company’s intellectual property. OEM
customers are characterized by long sales and design cycles involving close collaboration between
the Company’s and OEMs’ engineering teams. The Company currently sells all of its storage
technologies, except DSG products, in various form factors, such as storage arrays, board-level
products, ASICs and stand-alone software, to its OEM customers.

* Channel provides storage products to VARs and end users through its network of distribution and
reseller customers. Channel customers are characterized by shorter sales cycles than OEM
customers and Channel customers purchase standard products. The Company currently sells many
of the technologies it provides to its OEM customers to its Channel customers generally in storage
array or board-level form factors.

* DSG provides high-performance 1/O connectivity and digital media products for personal
computing platforms, including notebook and desktop PCs. The Company sells these products to
retailers, OEMs and distributors.

F-51




ADAPTEC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 17. Segment, Geographic and Significant Customer Information (Continued)

In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company further refined.its internal organizational structure
such that certain operating expenses previously allocated to segments will now be separately managed at
the corporate level. These unallocated corporate income and expenses, which are in the “Other” category,
include amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets, restructuring charges, other charges, interest
and other income, interest expense, and all administrative, research and development and selling and
marketing expenses. Summarized financial information on the Company’s reportable segments, under the
new organizational structure, is shown in the following table. The segment financial data for fiscal years
2004 and 2003 has been restated to reflect this change. There were no inter-segment revenues for the
periods shown below. The Company does not separately track all tangible assets or depreciation by
operating segments nor are the segments evaluated under these criteria. Segment financial information is
summarized as follows for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003:

OEM Channel DSG Other Total
" (in thousands)

Fiscal 2005:

Netrevenues .. ............o0u..... $296,323 $140,335 $38,332 § — $474,990

Segment income (loss) . .............. 97,625 23,228' 8,458 (221,730) (92,419)
Fiscal 2004:

NetIevenues . . ..o v i vt vnvnnn e, $286,416 $123,117 $43,375 § — $452,908

Segment income (loss) ............... 98,498 74,478 15,732 (158,774) 29,934
Fiscal 2003:

Netrevenues ..........oovvvnnenns $215,228 $138,804 $54,081 $ — $408,113

Segment income (loss) . .............. 08,143 85,468 20,866 (222,171) (17,694)

(1) Included $52.3 million of the Company’s impairment charge on goodwill in fiscal 2005 (Note 5).

The following table presents the details of unallocated corporate income and expenses for fiscal years
2005, 2004 and 2003:

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Unallocated corporate expenses, net . ... ... e $(214,854) $(197,840) $(223,790)
Acquired in-process technology . . .................. (5,200) (7,649) —
Restructuring charges ... . ... ... ................ (5,896) (4313) (14289
Othercharges .......... ... . . . i, 290 (5,977) (1,528)
Interest and otherincome ....................... 8,369 66,429 33,858
Interest EXPense . . . ..o v vttt e (4,439) (9,424)  (16,422)
Total ....... e P $(221,730) $(158,774) $(222,171)
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The following table presents net revenues by countries based on the location of the selling entities:

Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
United States . ... vttt s $190,890 $158,881 $186,210
Singapore . ... 283,872 239,644 221,847
Other Countries . . ..o vttt i e e e et e 228 54,383 56
Total .o e $474,990 $452,908 $408,113

The following table presents net property and equipment by countries based on the location of the
assets:

March 31,
2005 2004
(in thousands)
United StatES . . vt v vttt e e $37,393  $40,518
SIMBAPOTE &+ v v v et e e e e e 16,284 15,064
Other COUNTIIES . . . .ttt i e et e e e e e s 2,503 2,853
Total ... e e e e $56,180 $58,435

Significant Customer Information

Two customers accounted for 14% and 11% of gross accounts receivable at March 31, 2005. One
customer accounted for 12% of gross accounts receivable at March 31, 2004. In fiscal 2005, IBM and Dell
accounted for 24% and 11% of total net revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2004, IBM and Dell accounted for
18% and 10% of total net revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2003, Dell, IBM, Hewlett-Packard and Ingram
Micro accounted for 14%, 13%, 11% and 10% of total net revenues, respectively.

Note 18. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Interest paid . . .. .o e $ 4,308 $ 9,810 $17,478
Income taxes paid . ......... ..o i 2,679 1,430 1,424
Income tax refund received . ...... .. i i 964 23,405 354
Non-cash investing and financial activities:

Deferred stock-based compensation . .................... 3,598 —_ -_
Adjustment for deferred stock-based compensation .......... (563) (1,323) (2417)
Common stock issued for acquisitions. . .................. 3,464 1,582 —
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities......... (2,732) (1,709) 1,151
Restricted Stock . .. ... it e 118 — —
Software licenses financed ... .......... ... .. i, — — 6,057
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Note 19. Comparative Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table summarized the Company’s quarterly financial data:
Quarters

First Second Third Fourth Year
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal 2005:

Net revenues ........... P $115,502 $121,700 $126,548 $111240 $474,990
Grossprofit ................... 50,368 53,426 . 42,891 34,559 181,244
Net income (loss) ............... 10 (8,063) 22,489 (159,542) (145,106)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic ...... ..., $ 000 $ (007) $§ 020 $§ (143) $ (1.31)
Diluted.............. ... ... $ 000 $ (007) § 017 $ (1.43) $ (131

Shares used in computing net
(income) loss per share:

Basic ...........c i 109,840 110,312 111,136 111,905 110,798
Diluted . . ................... 111,536 110,312 134,517 111,905 110,798
Fiscal 2004:
Net 1evenues ...........ocueun.. $107,293  $109,192 $115,143 $121,280 $452,908
Gross profit . .................. 45,814 46,397 . 46,568 49929 188,708
Net income (loss) ............... 40,802 261 (3,013) 24,857 62,907
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic ....... ... .. ... ... $ 038 § 000 $ (003) $ 023 § 058
Diluted..................... $ 033 § 000 $ (0.03) $ 019 $ 053

Shares used in computing net income
(loss) Per share:
Basic ............ i 107,956 108,411 108,858 .109,400 108,656
Diluted . .................... 127,901 110,219 108,858 135,494 128,807

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company purchased the IBM i/p Series RAID business (Note 2)
and made a payment of $1.3 million to NSE in the form of a license fee (Note 8). In the second quarter of
fiscal 2005, the Company purchased Snap Appliance (Note 2). In the third quarter of fiscal 2005 the
Company made acquisition related cash payments to former employees of Snap Appliance (Note 2),
recorded a gain of $2.8 million on the sale of certain properties (Note 10), made a payment of $0.4 million
to NSE in the form of a license fee (Note 8) and received a tax benefit from the settlements of disputes
with the IRS (Note 14). In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company recorded an impairment charge
of $52.3 million to reduce goodwill related to its Channel segment (Note 5), recorded charges of
$0.9 million and $1.6 million for severance, benefits, loss on the sale of property and equipment and legal
fees associated with the strategic alliances entered into with ServerEngines and Vitesse, respectively
(Note 10), incurred $17.6 million in tax expense associated with the repatriation of $360.6 million in cash
from its Singapore subsidiary and recorded a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $67.9 million
(Note 14). In the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company purchased Eurologic and ICP vortex (Note 2)
and recorded a gain of $49.3 million related to the settlement with the former president of DPT (Note 8).
The Company implemented restructuring plans in the first quarter of fiscal 2005, second quarter of fiscal
2005, third quarter of fiscal 2005, fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, second quarter of fiscal 2004, third quarter
of fiscal 2004 and fourth quarter fiscal 2004. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company purchased
Elipsan and recorded a reduction in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $21.6 million, recorded a
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reduction of previously accrued tax related liabilities of $6.3 million and recorded a $5.0 million charge for
impairment of properties classified as assets held for sale as the carrying amount exceeded its estimated
fair value less cost to sell (Note 10). These transactions affect the comparability of this data.

Note 20. Glossary

The following is a list of business related acronyms that are contained within this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. They are listed in alphabetical order.

* ASIC: Application Specific Integrated Circuit
* ATA: Advanced Technology Attachment
* CD: Compact Discs

* CD-RW: CD-Read Write

* DAS: Direct Attached Storage

* DSG: Desktop Solutions Group

* DVD: Digital Versatile Discs

¢ EDR: Enterprise Data Replicator

« ESPP: Employee Stock Purchase Plan

¢ FC/IP: Fibre Channel over Internet Protocol
* HBA: Host Bus Adapter

* IC: Integrated Circuit

* T/O: Input/Output

* IP: Internet Protocol

* IRS: Internal Revenue Service

* IPsec: Internet Protocol Security

* iSCSI: Internet SCSI

* IDE: Integrated Drive Electronics

* IT: Information Technology

* JBOD: Just a Bunch of Drives

* LAN: Local Area Network

* MPEG: Moving Picture Experts Group
* NAS: Network Attached Storage

* NIC: Network Interface Card

* ODM: Original Design Manufacturers
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Note 20. Glossary (Continued)
* OEM: Original Equipment Manufacturer
« PC: Personal Computer o
* PCI: Peripheral Component Interconnect
* RAID: Redundant Array of Independent Disks
* ROC: Raid on a Chip
¢ SAN: Storage Area Networks
» SAS: Serial Attached SCSI
¢ SCSIL: Small Computer System Interface
* SATA: Serial Advanced Technology Attachment
* SMI-S: Storage Management Initiative Specification
¢ TCP/IP: Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol
* TOE: TCP/IP Offload Engine
* Ultra DMA: Ultra Direct Memory Access
¢ USB: Universal Serial Bus
* VAR: Value Added Reseller
* VHS: Video Home System |
* WAN: Wide Area Network

The following is a list of accounting rules and regulations and related regulatory bodies referred to
within this Annual Report on Form 10-X. They are listed in alphabetical order.

* APB: Accounting Principles Board

* APB Opinion No. 25—Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ’ees

* ARB: Accounting Research Bulletin '

* EITF: Emerging Issues Task Force ,

* EITF No. 95-3—Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with ‘Pur’chase“ Business Combinations

* EITF No. 96-18—Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services

* EITF No. 00-19—Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially
Settled in, a Company’s own Stock

* EITF No. 03-01—The Meaning of Other- Than-Temporary Impalrment and Its Application to Certain -
Investments

* EITF No. 04-08—Accounting Issues Related to Certain Features of Contlngently Convertlble Debt
and the Effect on Diluted Earnings per Share
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FASB: Financial Accounting Standards Board

FIN: FASB Interpretation Number

FIN 44—Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation
SAB 107—Share Based Payment

SEC: Securities Exchange Commission

SFAS: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS No. 48—Revenue Recognition When Right of Return Exists

SFAS No. 95—Statement of Cash Flows

SFAS No. 115—Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities
SFAS No. 123—Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No. 123(R)—Share Based Payment

SFAS No. 142—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS No. 144—Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 148—Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatlon-—Transmon and Disclosure—an
amendment of SFAS No. 123

SFAS No. 150—Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities
and Equity

SFAS No. 151—Inventor Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4
SOP: Statement of Position
SOP No. 97-2—Software Revenue Recognition

SOP No. 98-9—Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain
Transactions
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Dlrectors and Stockholders
of Adaptec, Inc.

We have completed an integrated audit of Adaptec, Inc.’s 2005 consolidated financial statements and
of its internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg
Oversight Board (United States) Our oplnlons based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated ﬁnancial statements and ﬁnancial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item
15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Adaptec, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the

index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth,
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial,

statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based

on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public’
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform’

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes exammlng, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management,-and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal controi over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in management’s Report on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Itém' 9A, that the Company maintained effective

internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal

Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway -

Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those critéria. Furthermore, in our

opinion, the 'Company maintained, in all material - respects,. effective internal control over financial

reporting as of March 31, 2005, based on criteria established in {nternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of
internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our-audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
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external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessatry to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 10, 2005
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